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Espraxape Axp Brurr Hinn, Narrer.

NAPIER.

NATIER, the ehlef city of the provineial
district of Tawke's Day, Is bullt on a high
peninsula originally known as Scinde Island,
jutting into an open roadstead, Into which
o bregkwater s rnn out from one of the
points. It was called after Sir Edward
Hawke by Cook, who sighted It on the 12th
of October, 1769, The anchorage is good and
the roadstead sheltered from all but easterly
riles. The town Is bullt on a suceession
of rounded hills. 1ts shipping centres at
the point of the peninsula known as the
Spit and formerly ealled Port Ahuriri: In-
glde the Spit there Is a fine basin for vessels
of moderate size formed In the estuary of
the rivers Egk and Tuotaekurl, to which
acecess is obtalned by a channel enclosed
within a long groyne running into the bay.
Napier is connected with Wellington by rall
over the Rimutaka, and by the Manawatu
Company's western line. The distriet of
Hawke's Bay Is largely of limestone forma-
tion, and one of the best agricultural anid
pastordl areas in New Zealand. There are
many extensive meat-pregerving and other
factories connected with that industry, but
Napier itself is the commercial centre and

has few factories of any consequence in the
town. It is a diocesan city, the residence
of the Bishop of Walapn and has many fine
buildings and private residences. The prinei-
pal  hotels are, the Masonie, Criterion,
Clarendon, and others. There are severnl
loeal journals of which the “Hawke's Hav
Herald,” *“Telegraph,” *Courler,” “News,”
and *Monthly Church Herald,” are the ehief
ones, DBanking institutions are well
sented, there being
known corporations.

repre-
gix branches of well-
The churches are also
numerons and there are several publie and
private schools, publie hall, various lodges
and societies, hospital, theatre, and musenm.
Surrounded by some of the finest country
in the North Island, Napler Is more of a
genuine show-place for its flocks, wool, and
produce generally, than for Its secenery.
There are, however, several pleasant walks
or drives round about, such as to the
Botanical Gardens, the summit of Selude
Island on which the prineipal residences are
built, and along the Shakespeare Road.
Petane, seven miles northward, makes a
pleasant outing: an excursion eéan be made to
Taradale, and a good Idea gained of the
quality of the land in this provinee. Cape
Kidnappers ig seven miles to the southward

in the Walroa district, and there are several
other attractions for tourists.

Mr. WOBERT DONALD DOUGLAS
MeLEAN, Member of the House of Repre-
sentatives for Napler, is the son of the late
Sir Donald McLean, was born in Welllngton
in 1852 amd was educated at the Aunckland
Grammar Schoel and Clifton College, Eng-
Iand, It was intended he should proceed to
Cambridge University, but' an unfortunaie
break-down in his health necessitated his
return to the Colony, and he was articled to
Messrs. Hart and Buckley, a prominent legal
firm in Wellington. Returning to England
he was called to the Bar of the Middle
Toemple In 1882, passing tonth on a long
list, but Mr. MeLean did not enter Into the
practice of his profession, preferring the
freer Hie of a large run holder. Mr. McLean
is now and has been a member of the
Hawke's Bay County Conneil, Hospital and
Charitable Aid Boards, Hawke's Bay Har-
bour Board, Education Board, and Napler
High School Board of Governors.

Mr. SAMUEL CARNELL, J.P.,, late Mem-
ber of the Honse of Representiatives, was
born In Nottingham, Englaud, in 1833, and
brought wup to the lace trade, He
turned bhis atlention to photography and

CARNELL.

after the discovery of the collodion process
in 1852 left for the Colonies, arriving in
Aunckland by the “Caduceus” In 1862 and
was employed as operator by Messrs,
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Cromble and Webster, photographers of that
city. On the ontbreak of the Hokitika gold
“push™ in 1865 Mr. Carnell left for the Coast
to try his luck at the diggings, but not meet-
Ing with his anticipated suceess he went to
Nelson, where he opened a photographle
stuidio for six months, theén returned to
Avnckland and ultimately came to Napler
in 1869 where he established a stadio.
Mr. Carnell always took great interest
fn public matters and supportéd the
Liberal party. In 1804 he was indueed to
stand for the Napler seat and defeated his
onponent, Mr. Swan, by 520 votes He
represented the distriet for three years In
the Liberal Interest. He holds very advanced
views on the “Land Question,” belleving
that the only way to prevent the possession
of large estates 1s to llmit by law the
amount of land one man can hold. He has
always been opposed to the totalisator and In
the session of 1805 earried a motion In favour
of its abolitlon, and in the session of 1806,
he drafted a Bill to give effect to that resoln-
thon. The Bill passed Its second reading by a
majority of nine votes, but was blocked in
committee and slaughtered with the “inno-
cents," For many years he has been a mem-
ber of the Napler Hosapital Board, is 1 mem-
ber of the Napler Harbour Board, and till
lately o member of the Land Board., e is
n member of the Masonle body,

Mr. F. SUTTON, Ex-Member of the House
of Representatives for Napler, wans born In
Cambridgeshire, England, educated at Roy-
gston school and came to Napier In 1857,
Shortly after arrival he started in business
which he earried on successfully for a
number of years. In or about the year 1867
he was elected a member of the Provincial
Council as representative for Napler, which
position he continned to hold till the
abolition of provinees In 1877, Sir Donald
MeLean, then representative in the General
Assembly for Napler, having dled in Janu-
ary, 1877, Mr. Sutton was asked to stand
for the vacaney, and although he was op-
posed to men of the calibre of the late Mr.
Henry Stokes Tiffen and Mr. John Buchanan
he wias returned. At the general election in
18789, there being then two members of the
Napler distriet, Instead of, ns at present,
one for Napler and one for Hawke's Bay,
Mr. S8utton and Capt. Russell contested the
seats against Mr. Buchanan and the late
Mr. A. I). Meney. In this contest Mr. Sut-
ton and Capt. Russell headed the poll. In
1581 there was a division of the districts,
and prineipally through an inconvenient ar-
rangement not quite within parliamentary
proprieties;, Mr. Sutton  contested the
Hawke's Bay seat with Capt. Russell, the
leader of the opposition, on his own ground,
The election of 1884 was also contested, but
on this oceasion, the convenient third man
was brought into the field and Mr. Suatton
had in consequoence to take a back seat.
I'uving the years 1877 to 1879 Mr. Sutton
wns chalrman of the Connty Couneil, and
during that time he was so efficlent a
president that the council presented him
with a serviee of plate in recognition of his
gservices., He claims that during his tenure
of office the council surveyed, Ilaid out,
formed and completed a new road 100 miles

THE CYCLOPEDIA

OF

long from Napler to Patea. He has also
been a member of the education board sinee
the passing of the Edueation Aet, and
although from varions canses there does not
appenr to be muoeh chance in the meantine
of hiz being again in Parliament, more un-
likely thingd have happened than his being
yvet called npon to assist in the govern-
ment of the country.

BoroveH oF NAPIER.
BOROUGH OF NATIER s a
progressive town. Its population numbers
over 9250, within an area of 879 acres. The
ratable value of property is £83,0568, on
which there are levied general and special
rates yvielding a revenue of £11,200, 'There
is a funded debt of £105,000 borrowed for
public works. Napler Is lighted with gas
and has over twenty-eight miles of formed
streets.

HIS WORSHIP Mr. George Henry Swan,
Mayor of Napier, ia a native of Sunderland,
England, and was trained as a chemist at New-
castle-on-Tyne, where he also gained a know-
ledge of photography, He came out 1o
Australia in 1854, went to the Victorian gold-
fields, and afterwards entered into business
at Dunolly. In 1857 he came to New Zealand
and began business as a photographer in
Wellington with Mr. Wrigglesworth. In 1864
Mr. Swan went to Napier, where he opened
and carried on a branch studio for himself
and his partner, who traded in both Wellington
and Napier under the style of Swan and
Wrigglesworth. The partnership was dissolved
in abont two vears, but Mr. Swan carried on
the Napier busineas till 1870, when he sold
out to his assistant, Mr. Samuel Carnell. Prior
to thiz Mr, Swan had entered into the hotel
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trade, and in 1866 he became a large share-
holder and managing director in the Hawke's
Bay Brewing Company. In 1869 he purchased
the White Swan Brewery, which he has carried

NEW ZEALAND.

on ever since, though his sons have latterly
ags:sted him in the management. As & muni-
cipal administrator Mr. Swan has had a re-
markable record. He was elected to the
Borough Council of Napier in 1874, and he has
been mayor of the town continuously since
1885. No other mayor in any similar town
in the Colony has a record wnich can be com-
pared with Mr. Swan’s in this respect, and he
nas rendered to his borovgh services com-
mensurate with the honour which it has con-
ferred upon him. It was he who inaugurated
the public saltwater swimming baths, and the
et wall which protects the town and forms
the esplanade; and the Marine Puarade, which
is 4 mile and a half in length, and gives dis-
tinction to Napier, is largely the outcome of
his public spirit and intelligent persistency.
Mr. Ypan has Dbeen chairman of the Napier
Hospital Board and of the Hawke's Bay
United Charitable Aid Board for some years,
and he is, ex officio, a member of the Napier
Harbour Board. He represented Nupier in the
House of Hepresentatives from 1830 to 18323,
and favoured a policy of mederation and steady,
as apposed to precipitate, progress.

Connelllor HYMAN PHINEAS COOHEN,
Member of the Napier Dorough Couneil and
n well-known aunctioneer, wns born in Lon-
don. in 1837 aud i= the son .of the late Nr.

Cooncir.Lor H. P. CoHEN.

Phinens Colien, merchant, of London. He
was educated In thot city and entered his
father's offlee, where he remained until
1859, when e eame to thiz Colony, landinge
nt Aunckland, After working in o saw-mill
for a few months he went to Melbounrne nnd
procecded to the goldilelds at Inglewood and

Navarre. In 1862 when the Otago gold
““rugh' set In, Mr., Cohen jolned in that
migration and entersd nto business as a

storekeeper in Tuapeka, where he did fairly
well, In 1867 he went to the Thames and
spent three years in that district. After a
further period of three years in Auckland,
Mr. Conen settled in Napier and opened a



faney goods store, to which he afterwarda
added a farniture warehonse, and sobse-
quently anctloneering, conducting sales in
Hastlugs Street. Councillor Colen takes a
gireat interest in all public matters with
political leanings on the Liberal side, and in
Mr. Ballanee's days freqguently took the
chalr at his meetings. He is a member of
e Howke's Bay Hospital and Charitable
Ald Boards, and was for many years chair-
man of those bodies. He ig a school eomn-
missioner aml takes muoch interest in eduea-
tional matters genernlly. For the past six-
tecn or seventeen years Mre, Cohen has been
eaptain of the Fire Police aud SBalvage
Corps, and for a similar period has, without
Intermission, been a member of the Borough
Counncil. Im 1870 he married Aiss Moss, of
Dranedin, and has an only danghter.
Counciller JOHN C. MeVAY, Chalrinan of
the Iublic Works Committee of the Napier
Borough Council, has bheen more or less pro-
minent in Napler for upwards of thirty
yvears. He was born In Auckland and Is the
secomd sonof thelate Mre John MeVay, onenf
Aunckland's early settlers, Who arrived from
New Bouth Wales in 1541, The subject of
this sketch was educnted at the Rev., Jobln
Gorrie's Aeademy, and was subseguently
apprenticed to the saddlery trade. In 1874
he started the business which s now so
extensively known and In which he employs
thirty hands. Mr. MeVay has been a
borongh conncillor for over seventeon years,
and is 1 member of all the standing com-
mittees of the eouncil and ehairman of those
on which the mavor does not slt. For some
eight or ten yvears he was an active member
of the Napier Harbour Board, but press of
private bun=iness compelled his retiremoent
from that body. Mr. MceVay has been viee-
president of the Napler Park Raeing Club
nlmost sinee its Inception, about fourteen
He Iz a director of the Hawke's
iy Mermanent Bullding Soclety and trustee

Yonrs ago,

CouvxcinLor W. PLowamax.
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Messrs., F. G, Smrma & Co.'s Business PREMISES.

of the Napler Savings Rank. Few
ments for the advancement of the town
and distriet have been inaugurated In which
his ready assistance has not been avallable.
He is a Mason of many years' standing. In
1871 Mr. MceVay was married to Miss Craig,
of Belfast.

Councillor WILLIAM PLOWMAN, Mem-
ber of the Napler Borough Couneil, is a
partner In the well-known firm of Gifford,
Plowman and o, cordial manufacturers.
Councillor Plowman was born In Manches-
ter, England, in 1850, and is the son of Mr.
Jaomes Plowman, machine broker. He was
educated in his native city and apprenticed
to 8Bir Joseph Whitworth and Co,, Lid., en-
gineers. (On the completion of his time he
woent to London, where for two years he
wiag engaged in the wax and tallow ehand-
lery business, In 1871 he eame to this
Ualony per ship “8t. Leonards,” and on ar-
rival in Napler was engaged In the aerated
water factory of Mr., George DBowman,
Three yvears Ilater he entered the employ-
ment of Messrs. H. . Hobjohns and Son,
with whom he remained for eighteen years,
rising to the pozition of brewer and manager,
He then, In 1804, joined his present partner
In the purchase of the business of Messra,
Thomson, Giford and Co.., as deseribed in
the buslness notice of the present firm. Mr.
Plowman is a Master Mason and a member
of Lodge Scinde. He is now In his second
term as o councillor and takes an active In-
terest In the affairs of the borongh. e was
married in 1877 to a daughter of Mr. Pand,
of Falmouth, England, and has fouar
children,

COUNCILLOR FREDERICK GEORGE
SMITH, who has oceupied a seat in the
Borough Council of Napier for about twelve
years, is a well-known shipping and forwarding
agent. He waa born in 1850 in the seaport
of Hayle, Cornwall, and is a son of Mr. John
Pearce Smith, cooper and woodware maru-
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facturer. He was educated at the Havle
Grammar School and in due course was appren-
ticed to the sea with a West of England
Company. After attrining the rank of second
mate during a period of nine vears in the Val-
paraiso, Indian and China trade, Mr. Smith
gave up seafaring life and embraced an oppor-
tunity of coming to New Zealand. Settling
in Napier in 1875 he obtained employment
in the establishment of Messrs. Margolionth
and Banner, grocers and wine and spirit mer-
chants, and reéemained that firm seven
years, having charge of the Spit branch and
wool dumping works. Councillor Smith then
entered into business on his own account, in
which he has made himself prominent and
successful. He has been a volunteer for over
twenty years and was in command of the Napier
Naval Artillery from 1885 until 1897, when the
corps was disbanded and he was placed on the
reserve staff with the rank of captain. Coun-
cillor Smith is a past worshipful master Mason
and took his Mark and Royal Arch degree while
on & vigit to the Old Country in 1898. He was
married in 1879 to a daughter of Mr. Edward
Newbigin, of Ryton, Newcastleon-Tyne, and
has four danghters and two sons. Further
reference to Mr. Smith will be found in these
pages in the shipping agency section.

Connelllor JOHN STENTIFORD WELS-
MAN, who has been a8 member of the
rorough Council of Napler for more than
eleven years, Is  well known and highly
respected, not only in the town where for
the past twenty-two vears he has resided,
but algo In Anckland, where as a yvoung man
he did valuable ploneer work. Mr. Welsman
wis born In Devonshirve, England, In 1843,
and Is a son of Mr. Thomas Welsman, who
came with his family to Aoekland In 1858
per ship “Egmont.”” He was educated partly
In o public school in England and partly by
private tnition in Auckland, was apprenticed
to the lnte M. H. Potter, chemist and drug-
gigt in Auckland, and set up in busginess on

with
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his own account in 1864 in Queen Street.
The humidity of the Auckland climate, hows-
ever, proved so dangerous to the health of
Mrs. Welsman, that the doctors ordered an
immediate chaouge, and recommended Napler.,
Mr. Welsman, therefore, sold out In 1877
and establlshed Limself In Napler, where he
soon became a very popular chemist. In
fairness to the Napier climate, it should he
mentioned that Mrs, Welsman, who was
given three months to live in Auckland, is
now, after tweniy-one years, In the enjoy-
ment of robust health. For the past thirty-
gix years Mr. Welsman has been a hard
worker in connection with Sunday schools,
to which he has been attached. Oumhisarrival
in Napier he was elected superintendent of
the Wesleyan school, a position to whieh
he has been perlodically elected ever since.
The Napler Gas Company has for many
vears claimed him as one of its directors.
In 1870 Mr., Welsman was married to Miss
Allen, of Gloucester, England, and has three
sonsg and two danghters living.

Captain MATURICE NORMAN BOWER,
the popular Town Clerk of Napier, has filled
that post for nearly a quarter of a
century, and prior to his appointment had
geen a godd deal of milltary service. Capt.

Carrary M. N.

BowER.

Bower was born in Caen, Normandy, in
1834, and I8 a son of the late Mr. George
Edmund Bower of the old Orduanee Depart-
ment at the Tower of London. Niduneated
at 5t. Panl's school, London, the subject of
this sketeh was a scholar there when New
Zenland's present Chief Justce, Sir James
I'rendergast, was the =enior monitor, On
leaving this school, Capt. Bower went as a
cadet to the Royal Military Academy, Wool-
wich, where he remained two years, He
with the 13th Licht
Dragoons and the 10th Hussars in the
Crimea. Returning to England after the
peace, he purchased his discharge and sailed

subsequently served
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for New Zealand. On arrviving In Auckland
in 1857, he joined the Military Stores Depart-
ment, remalning there until the outbreak of
the Walkato - War in 15863 when he recelved
i commission as sub-lnspector in the Colonial
Defence Force, then under the command of
the late Col. Nixon. On the death of that
officer, who died from wounds received in
action at Rangiaowhia, he was promoted to be
inspector,servinginall the operations against
the Natives in the Waikato until the corps
was disbanded, He then joined the 1st
Waikato Regiment as captain and served
with it at Tauranga, Opotlkl, and the East
Coast until it was disbanded. He proceeded
to Napler and was employed as distriet
adjutant and quartermaster at Wairoa,
Poverty Bay, after the massacre, Waikare-
mona expedition, Taupo, ete., ete., in 1868
to 1873. In March, 1874, he was appointed
town clerk and treasurer of the Borough of
Napier and in this ecapaclty he is still
serving., In 1857 he married a daunghter of
the late Mr. John Mas=on, of Aunckland, and
haz g daughter and two sons living.

Mr. WILLIAM HODGSON, Receiver of
Itates for the Napier Borough Council, was
born at Norwich, Norfolk, in 1844, ig the son
of Mr. Thomas Hodgson, coanch-painter of
that clty, and was eduecated at the private
school of Mr., Bamuel Glidney. He was ap-
prentieed to the grocery trade, but in early
youth, through taking part In amateur per-
formances, he beeame infatuated with stage
life, and jolned the dramatic profession at
the age of elghteen years. For nearly four-
teen years he was a member of various stock
companies In provineial theatres, notably
the Queen's Theatre, Manchester, Theatre
Royal, Dublin, Theatre Royal, Hanley,

SomRreLr Puoro

Mr. W. Hongson.

Princes Theatre, Edinburgh, and at Bolton,
Blackburn, IPreston, Belfast, Leeds, Brad-
ford. Aberdeen, Greenock, and other places,

ZEALAND

Mr. Hodgson arrived In New Zealand [h the
shlp “Mataura" (Capt. Brown) In 1877 and
for seven years was book-keeper for 4 Napler
merchant. He was appolnted to his present
position in 1884,  Mr, Hodgson's remini-
scences of his dramatic days have been often
pleasantly recalled by meeting travelling mems-
bersof the profession with whom he had been
previously acquainted, such as Messrs. J. L.
Toole, Harry Paulton, . Maceabe, T. B.
Appleby, amd Harry Taylor. His engape-
ments were generally in juvenile lead and
light comedy business, Mr., Hodeson has on
many oceasions In Napler réndered valuable
assistance In amateur performances for
charlitable purposeés and was for many yvears
goecretary to the Napier School Committee,
He acts as retornlng-officer in loeal and
general elections amd Is secretary to the
Napier Bowling Club, Mr. Hodgson was
married at Edinburgh in 1866 to a daughter
of Mr. W. H. Welr, scenic-artist at the
Theatre Royal, Duldin, and has a son and
daughter living: the latter was recently
married to Mr. J. Geenty, of the Wallingford
Hotel and store.

Mr. HENRY CHARLES ADOLPHTS
WUNDRAM, Valuer and Inspector of Build-
ings for the Borough of Napier, was bhorn

Mer. H. C. A. Wuxprau.

in 1838 In Hanover. Germany, where his
Tfather builder, Educated at the
technical schools of Hanover, Mr. Wundram
began his eareer In a lawyer's office, but
gave that ap for the life of a sailor, at
which he spent some nine years, chiefly
consting out of Hartlepool. In 1862 he went
to New South Wales by the ship *“Royal
Bride’ and left the vessel at Syduey without
either” leave or license and as the “Royal
Bride’ was wrecked In Hawke's Bay a year
later he had no eaunse to rogret his act of
desartion, After fourteen years of ups and
downs on the Aunstralian and New Zealand
goldfields he came to Napler In 1876 and

WwWis il



started as a sign-writer. He next set up as
an architecl and soon made g name for hlm-
gelf in that capacity, and many of the finest
shope of Napler have been erected from his
plans,  In 1800 Mr, Wuandram was appointed
borough valuer, aud some two years later,
wis appointed inspector of buildings. He
also does a good deal of inside office work
and is architect for all buildings erected
under the auspices of the Borough Coumneil.
The pumping station, fire brigade =tation,
and other buildings were crected from his
plang and under hils supervision. As an
illuminator of addresgses, ote,, AMr. Wundram
has done a great deal of work in excellent
style. He Iz o past grand deacon In the
Masonic Order, secretary of Vietoria Lodge,
a member of Seinde Lodge, and was for
four years master of Charlton Kilwinning,
No. 4587 8.0,  Mr. Wundram worked hard
to zecure the Grand Lodge of New Zealand
and attended the meeting held in Wellington
in 1876 on that behalf under the presidency
of the late My, Vincent Pyke. For this and
many other services, he was the recipient
of a presentation from Charlton and Vie-
toria Lodges. He was president for a term
of the Working Men's Club, and has been
treasurer for the past fifteen yvears. He Is
also o1 member of the Napier Bowling Club
and secretary to the Loval United Priends
Benefit Soclety.

Mr. TOM WATERWORTH, Overseer of
Roads, Sanpitary Inspector, Fire Inspector,
ete., for the Borough of Napier, was born In
Sherburn, Yorkshire, in 1834, and is the son
of Mr. John Waterworth, a farmer of that
plaece, where the subject of this sketeh went
to =chool. After learning the trade of a
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monumental mason he came to this Colony
in 1550 by the ship “Robert Small. Land-
ing in Lyttelton, he staved there for two
years, then went to New South Wales and

CITY CORPORATION.

visited the diggings at Lambing Flat, but
wis back in New Zealand in the following
year and remained in Lyttelton until 1864
whin he went to the West Coast goldfields;
but soon returned to Lyttelton where he was
employed as foreman of works for Mr., 1. (.
Wright, now Member for Ashburton, Staying
in this occupation until 1868, Mr. Water-
worth In that year went to the Thames and
for about six years was mine manager and
afterwards was foreman for Mr.
Taylor, contractor.
Bay in

John
Leaving for Hawke's
1574, he became manager for the
harbour contractor and earried out the first
works at the Spit which lasted between two
and three years. Mr. Waterworth then
started in business In Napler as a monu-
mental mason. About ten years later lhe
left the business to his son, who still carries
it on suecessfully, and took the Provineial
Hotel. He, however, soon tired of hotel
Hfe and in 1892 was appointed by the
Borough Couneil to his present pasition.
Mr. Waterworth takes a very keen interest
in the work of his department, He has in-
vented a patent sewer-trap, which possesses
special sanitary advantages, and the Water-
worth Iatent Asphalt needs but to be
known to supersede all others. It has the
great advantage of setting immediately it is
put down for the requisite thickness and vet
it will keep soft and workable in heaps for
months. This is the result of important
changes effected in the tar by means of a
retort. Other advantages of the system are
that very valuable by-products are abtiined
from the tar in the process of preparing it
for the patent asphalt, For thirty-two years
in various places, Mr. Waterworth was a
member of fire brigades and he has only
recently resigned on account of ill-health.
the superintendency of the Napler brigade.
He has been present at all Pire Brigade Con-
ferences and competitions, is president of
the Fire Brigade Assaciation, and trustee of
the Fire Brigades' Accident Insurance So-
ciety for the Colony. He is 8 member of the
committee of the Napier Bowling Club, an
active member of the Masonic Lodge Vie-
toria, and takes an interest generally In all
local objects. He iz an ex-president of the
Working Men's Club and a prominent mem-
ber of the committee, Mr. Waterworth
married in 1858 a daughter of the late Mr.
Jonas Batey, of Offerton, near Sunderland,
and has four daunghters and two sons.

Ex-CouNoILLOnS.

Mr. JOHN DINWIDDIRE, Ex-Councillor of
the Borough of Napier, who I8 enjoying a
well-merited retivement, iz an old and highly
respected resident of Napier. He was born
in 1834 In Manchester where also he was
edueated. Leaving the Old Land in 1859 by
the ship “*Caduceus,” he landed in Auckland
during the first half of that year. In Janu-
ary of the following wear he removed to
Napier and having a knowledge of carpentry,
obtained employment on the o'd Government
Buildings, near the presént post office. De-
veloping into a bullder and furniture manu-
facturer, Mr. Dinwiddie soon had a very fine
business in those lines and. during his first
fifteen years In the distriet gained a good
competence. In 1876 he took a trip Home,
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vid the United SBtates, returning by way of
suex. Mr. Dinwlddie chose the life of a
farmer and settled In Patangata County.
In this, however, he was not particularly

Mgr. J. IMswIiDLIE,

succeessiul: therefore, selling his farm he
returned to Napler and assisted his brother,
Mr. Peter Dinwiddie, of the “Hawke's Bay
Herald,"” for some two or three vears prior
to his final retirement. Mr. Dinwiddle now
finds suffielent employment In looking after
his eity properties, and being an enthusias-
tie bowler, his recreation is mainly sought
on the green of the Napier Bowling Club,
of which he was one of the most active pro-
moters. During the time of the Maori
troubles, Mr. Dinwiddie saw active scervice
and was at the engagement at Omaranui. He
took great interest im volunteer matters for
about =even years, and was one of the first
to start the movement in Hawke's Bay, and
holds the New Zealand war medal. He is
marrlied and hasg a son and three daunghters,

Mr. JAMES STANSTREET LARGE, who
oceuplied a seat In the Napler Borough Coun-
cll about the vear 1883, is a well-known and
highly respected resident of Hawke's Bay.
He was born and edueated In Manchester,
where he learned the cablnet-making trade,
In his eparly years he emigrated to New
Zealand, landing at Dunedin in 1862 from
the ghip “*Commodore Perry."” S8Shortly after-
wiards continuing his journey to Napier he
established himself in business. In 1867 he
tookMr.Townley into partnership and started
i branch at Gishorne, The business assumedl
extensive proportlons and became one of the
largest In Hawke's Bay. In 1885 the partnér-
ship was dissolved, Mr. Large retaining the
principal Napier business and Mr. Townley
the Gishorne branch. In 1804 Mr. Large re-
tired with an ample fortune. He was an
active and unseful member of the Borough
Couneil for nearly three years, member of
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the Napier Belhiool Committee for a consider-
able period, and is still a member of the
Chaomber of Commerce, In 1863 he was
marrled to a daughter of Mr. James Fergu-
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son, of Manchester, and bhas two daungshters
and a son. The elder daughter, Lillie, is a
well-known vecalist of superior cultivation.
The second daughter, Amy, I8 at present
studying in DEngland, and Lhis only
Harold, B.A. of Caius College, Cambridge,
has already made his mark in the journal-
istic world.

B0,

Tar rate My, J. W. N»arn,
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Mr, JOHX WAINHOUSE NEAL, who was
nlmost eontinuously a member of the
jorough Counclil of Napier from its forma-
tion until his death on the Tth of Janunary,
1808, was one of that town's best friends
and most respected business men. To write
Lhis complete biography would be to give the
history of Napier, with whose progress he
wasg so Intimately connected. Mr. Neal was
Lorn near Leeds, Yorkshive, in 1839, and was
educated in his native county, Coming to
the Colony early in 1861 he spent about three
yvears In Auckland, after which he settled in
Napler and wnans In partnership with Mr.
John Close for nearly thirty-four years, few
firms belng better known throughout the
Colony than that of Neal and Close. As a
public man Mr. Neal carried Into his work
that punetilious attention and integrity
which were his chief characteristics, He
was chalrman of the public works and
waterworks committee and member of the
finance committee, where his business abili-
ties were of great service, and he was a
palnsgtaking member of the Napler Harbour
toard, 1o which he wag elected on geven ¢on-
secntive oceasions. On the Hawke's Bay
Charitable Ald Board, the Napler Hosplital
Trust, and the Napier High School Roard of
Governors, Mr, Neal also rendered valnable
services, and it is but fair to say that his
innnmerable acts of private and publie
charity were marked by his usual absence
of ostentation. In 1870 he marrvied Miss
Close, a sister of his partner, who ls left
with three daughters to mourn their loss.

Narier Harsour BoaArb.

NAPIER HARBOUR BOARD. This im-
portant body has carried out some very large
harbour works in creating an artificial port,
affording safe anchorage for large ships and
gleamers. An extensive mole has been ¢on-
structed and the shipping advantages thus
obtained have wvery greatly benefited the
provinee, The sum of £500,000 was borrowed
hy the board, whose annual Income Is
20,000, Vessels drawing 13 feet 6 inches of
witer can generilly enter the inner harbour
and be berthed at the wharyves.

Alr. J. VIGOR BROWN, who was elected
by the ratepavers to a seat on the Napler
Harbour Board on the death of Mr, J. W.
Neal, in February, 1898, 1= a Bcotehman by
hirtlh, and was educated at the Churel of
England Grammar School, Melbourne., His
father held a responsible position in the
Bank of BEngland, and Mr. Brown Is
generally aceredited with possessing a fair
measure of his father's abilities as an expert
financier. On this and other grounds much
is expected from Mr. Brown in his capaeity
as member of the harbour board. For three
vears he was president of the Napler Cham-
ber of Commeree, he iz a member of the
toroungh Couneil, a member of the council of
the Free Trade Association, president of the
Caledonian Society, a director of the Napier
PPark Recreation Company, chalrman of the
Napler Land Bullding and Investment Society,
nnd a director Napler Gas Company. In com-
mercii]l matters, Mr. Brown has hiad a long
experience, Brought up In Melbonrne, he
wig apprenticed to Messrs, SBargood, Eing

NEW ZEALAND.

and Sargood, pow the well-known firm of
Sargood, Son and Ewen. Leaving for this
Colony In 1875, he was engaged by Messrs.
A. P. Btuart and Co., of Wellington, for
whom he travelled for a period of two vears.
In 1877 he accepted the appointment of
manager of Mossrs, Archibald Clark and
Sons' Napler branch, which positlon he held
for twenty yvears, and there i3 no doubt that
much of that firm's soceess was due to his
energy amd exceptional tact. In May, 18085,
he resigned his position with Messrs, Clark
and Sons to undertake the management of
the extensive business of Messrs, Neal and
Close;, in connection with which further
mention of Mr. Brown is maode.

Mr. JOHN HELIER VAUTIER. Napler's
second mayor, and a member of the Har-

bour DBoard, has been a very prominent

Mz, J. H. Vivuriug.

figure in the distriet for upwards of forty
years. Born in Jersey in 1834 and a son of
the late Mr. John Vautier, fariier, of Si.
Martin's, the subject of this sketelh was
educated and brought up to the bullding
trade in his native isle, In 1854 lie went
to Liverpool and sailed In the ship “Light
ning" for Victorla. After o smart run of
seventy-six days, the “Lightuing’ arrived
in Melbourne, and there Mr. Vautier re-
mained until 1855 when he left for Welling.
ton in the brig “Onkaparinga,’ reachine
that port at the time of the disastrous earih-
quake which oceurved about three hours
later., and was very palpable even aflont.
Mr. Vautier has very lively recollections of
the effect produced on shore by the great
shock, The Ilnte Hon., Mr. Brandon was
the firat one he met on landing, and that
gentleman, like many others, was in no very
gerene condition of mind, Towards the end
of 15857, Mr. Vautier went to Nelson and
tried gold-mining at Collingwood., but soon
after removed to Napler. Hawke's Bay
was then a very sparsely settled district,



and when Mr. Vautier arrived, the hill, or
collection of hills, which is now the pride
of the borough, was covered with ferns.
There was oonly one hotel in the town, and
as the demand for houses and g2tores wius
great the advent of a builder was mutually
satisfactory. As this demand slackened,
Mr. Vautier entered into business ag a coal
amd  general merchant, and from this
graduoally became 0 shipowner on

fnirly large il remunerative seale.
In 1885 he sold out his vessels, and
gince then has spent his time in looking

after his landed properties, and serving the
publie¢ in a variety of ways. On the occa-
glon of the first borough council election,
Mr. Vautier was returned at the head of
the poll, and he was chairman of the public

works  committee until he was elected
mayor. As a member of the Napier Har-
bour Board he was first placed in  that

position on o life appointment from the
Governor, but on the repeal of the Aot
under which the appointment wns made, he
became 1 member by virtue of hls offfce as
wayor. and on the expiry of his ex-officio
term, was re-appointed by the Governmoent
amd has ginee re-nominated to  the
board from time to time. With the excep
tiont of a few months, therefore, Mr. Vautier
has been a member 6f the Harbour Board
continuously since itg inception. He was
one of the trustees of the Napler Savings
Bank throughout its entire existence of
thirty-six vears. He has often been asked
to stand for I'arliament. On the Queen's
Birthday, 1861. Mr. Vantler was married to
o danghter of Mr. Edward Touet, a well-
known and successful Nelson colonist. Mrs.
Vautier died on the ISth November, 1803,
leaving her husband with a daughter and
three sons.

|w|-||

Mr. WILLIAM EKINROSS WHITE. of the
Napier Harbour Board representing the

NAPIER HARBOUR BOARD.

Wairea County Council is a well-known and
highly-respected Napier merchant and man-
ager of public companies. Mr. White was
born in Glasgow and is a son of Mr. Josepn
White, of that eity. He was educated at
the Glasgow University, and after a twelve
months' pleasure trip on the Continent aned
a few years' experience of the Woest India
trade, salled for Melbourne, en route for
Napier, in the “*Lusltania' in
1570, On his arrival in Napier he was ap
pointed to a responsilde position in the mer-
cantile firm of Kinross and Co., wheh he
held until 1886, when he established himself
in business on his own account.  Mr. White
is manager of the North British and New
Zealand Investment Company, Ltd., and of
the North British and Hawke's Bay Frees-
ing Company, Ltd., both of which he him-
gelf promoted. He is attorney for the Lon-
don  and Lancashire Insurance Cowmpany,
and agent for the United Marine Insurance
Company, the Peninsular and Orlental
Steam  Navigation Company, and for
J. and E. Hall, Ltd., manufacturers of
refrigerating and leemaking machiners, be-
sides representing many other Ilmportant
enterprises. He has been active in public
affairs and a2 member of the Harbour Board
for six years. He was marrled in 1887 to a
daughter of the late Dr. Moore, of Christ-
church, one of the earliest Canterbury
settlers, and has three sons.

steamship

Mr. IFREDERICE WAMELYN WIL-
LIAMS, who for many years has repre-
sented the Borough Council on the Napler
Harbour Board, was born In Poverty Bay
in 1854, and is the eldest son of the Bishap
of Walapu. Mr. Willinms was educated
at St. John's College, Auckland, and the
Church of England Grammar School, Par-
nell. In 1873 he entered the mercantile
house of Messre, Kinrogg and Co., general
merchants, Napler, and remained with that
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firm until 1880, when he established himself
in the business from which has sprung the
mportant concern of Willinms and Kettle,
Ltd., and of which he is the senior manag-
ing director. Mr. Williams is chairman of
the Hawke's Bay Iermanent Building So-
clety, has been a mewmber of the Bduention
Board for some yvears, and is vice-president
of the Napier Chamber of Commerce, In
1853 he was married to the daughter of
Mr. J. B. Brathwaite, of Napier, late
manager of the Union Bank of Australia,
and has an only son.

Mr. HENRY WILLIAMS, J.I., Member
of the Napler Harbour Board, has been a
resident of Hawke's Bay for over a third

Mr. H. WiILLTAMS,

of a century. He wasg born at Bath, Somer-
set, Fngland, In 1848, and Is a son of the
late Mr. Isaane Willilams, paloter and decor-
ator of Lhat town. After receiving his edn
eation in his pative city he was apprenticed
to varions branches of the hardware trade,
and in 1862 came to this Colony per ship
“Arabella,” landing in Wellington, in which
port the ship was soon afterwards partially
destroyed by fire. Napler was in those days
a small but rapidly extending town, and the
branch of Mr. Williams® business mostly in
demand was that of tinsmithine and Humb-
ing. From the first he did exceedinzly well
and In a few years found himself in posses
glon of one of the finest and most complere
hardware establishments In the provinee,
Besides the splendid ronmongery warehnuse
in Napier, there are branches at Hastings
and Dunneville, whilst the American Coach
Factory and the Vulean Foundry, Napier,
are forther developments of the same busi-
NeRs. Mr. Williams has taken an active
part for several years in all publie mova-
ments, was a member of the Borongh Coun-
cll for some years, twlee represented the
ratepayers of Napier on the Harbour Board,
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and now represents the Government by
nomination. For a considerable period he
was visiting justice to the gaol, and he has
been o member of the Hospital and Charit-
able Aid Board almost from its inception.
Mr. Willlnms"™ house and grounds, **Ash-
ridge,” Taradale, are among the fnest In
the district. His two song assist him in the
hnginess.,

Mr. JOHN THOMAS CARR, C.H., Secre-
tary, Treasurer, and Engineer to the Napler
Harbour Board, has had an extensive Eng-
lish, Continental, and Colonial professional

M=m. J. T.
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experience. He was born in 1850 at Rlack-
heath, Kent, England, is a son of Mr. Mark
Willilam Carr, C.E., M.LC.I2., of Neweastle-
on-Tyne, was educated primarily at Eltham,
at the Western College, Brighton, and pro-
fessionally at King's College, London, and
Stuttgart I'olytechnlec in Germany. After
passing the necessary examination Mr, Carr
had several years’ engineering experience
with the East Hungarian Rallway, and in
1875 came to this Colony per ship “Durham™
under engngement to .- the Government nas
resident engineer of the Public Works De-
partment for Hawke's Bay. Mr. Carr's first
work In the Colony was the laving out of
the railway line from Takapau south as far
as the Manawatu Gorge. This oceupied a
year and he then went to the Bay of Islands
as resident engineer to lay out the line to
Kawakawa, and when that was completed, he
was sent to the Waikato to layv out the line
to Te Aroha through the great Pinko Bwamp,
That this was a work of very great diffienlty
all who know anything of the country are
well aware. On the completion of the work
In December, 1877, Mr. Carr was re-trans-
ferred to Hawke's Bay as district engineer,
and superintended the econstruction of the
railway from Kopua to Tahoraite, Leaving
the Government service In 1885, he entered

THE
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into. private practice in Napler, as a civil
engineer, and designed and constructed
numerons  works, including the Napier
Marine Parade and the famous Wairoa
Bridge, which Is 700 feet long in three spans
of 120 feet each, five spans of 60 fect each
und a draw span. In January, 18, on the
regignation of Mr. Goodall as engineer to
the Napier Harbour Board, he was appointed
to the vacancy and in June, 1897, the duties
of secretary and treasurer were added.
When Mr., Carr's conneetlon with the Har-
bonr Board commenced the breakwater was
well advanced, but he has made great fm-
provements in the protective works, He is
it past master of the Irish Constitution of
Masons, and is an old ericketer and foot-
baller. AMr. Carr was married in 1881 to a
danghter of Mr. F'. Sutton, ex-membeoer of the
Hounse of Representatives for Hawke's Bay,
and has two daughters and a son.

Captain HENRY ERARPFT,
Master and Pllot to the Napler Harbour
Board, Is a mnative of DPrussin and was
bronght up to sea-faring Hie from a very
early age. He came to New Zealand in 1857,
made various trips to Melbonrne and salled
for the Chatham Islands In the brig “Ade-
Indde," commanded by Captaln Weatherhall,
The shipwrecked

Harbour-

“Esther” and he jolned the “Wangla,” a

‘well-known steamer on the coastal trade. In

1860 he entered the pilot service at Napier
and was made assistant pilot in 1864, and
later was appointed harbonr-
master. During his long service he has been
instrumental in saving a number of valuable
lives, amongst them being Capt. Setton, of
the ship “Pleindes’ and two of the crew,
who were rescued throngh the heroie exer-
tiong of Capt. Kraeft and his men, a heavy
gale blowing at the time accompanied by
a tremendons sea. For his gallantry on that
oceasion a beantiful elock with a suitably
Ingeribed gold plate was presented to him
hy Captain Setton’s friends. ©On many
other oceasions he has been the means of
saving life, often at the rigk of his own.
During his long connection with Napler he
has won the respeet and esteem of all
classes, both In public and private life. Capt.
Kraeft is a member of the Masonic body and
an Culdfellow of long standing. He is
married, and his only daunghter is the wife of
Mr. Tritnmer, master of the Spit district
school.

Mr: FRAXCIS EMANTEL SAUNDERS,
Chief Wharfinger to the Napier Iarbour

Board, was born in London and learned the
profession of civil engineer, after practising
which for a number of years he came to
Aueckland by the ship “Ida Zeigler" in 1868.
He proceeded to the Thames goldficlds and
for two years did a large amount of sur-
veyving there. After practizing In the Bay
of Plenty Mr. Saunders eame to Napler in
1870 where he filled several positions and
eventually jolned the Harbour Doard in 1876
as  assgiztant to the . engineer, Mr. . H.
Webher. On the Tetirement of that gentle-
man in 1879 Mr. Saunders assumed the duties
of engineer, and in 1882 received the further
appointment of secretary carrving out the

combined duties until the commeneoment of
the breakwater in 1885, when Mr. Goodall
was appointed engineer to the board with
Mr. Baunnders a8 assistant together with the
socretaryship. These appointments he held
until 1897 when owling to retrenchment, Mr.
Carr, the engineer who suceeeded Mr, Good-
all in 1800, received the further appolntment
of seerctary, and Mr. Sannders became ¢hiof
wharfinger. He was for many years secre-
tary of the Port Ahuriri School Commlttes,
and at his death was chalvman of that body.
In local movements for the benefit of Napier
and the port Mr. Saunders teok a foremost

THE LATE Mi. F. E. SAUNDERS.

part, He was a Mason of many years' stand-
ing, having passed the principal chalrs of the
Victoria Lodge, and also 1 Forester for over
twenty-tive years. He died on the 1st of
July, 1808, deeply regretted by his numerous
friends, and left a widow with seven
children,
Hawxe's Bay Couxry Councrr.

HAWEKE'S BAY .COUNTY has an area of
4282 square miles and a population of about
TO0D, The total value of real property is
estimated at £3,752,000 on which a general
rate of five-elghths of o penny o the £ s
levied. The total annunl revenune from all
sources is over £12,300, and the expenditure
over £11.400k  There is an Indebtedness
of. £12581. The County Council which
meets monthly at the offices in Tenny=on
afreet, Napier, consists of Messrs. J. N
Williams (¢hairman), John Bennett, George
Bee, 1. Conroy, R. Id. 1. MeLean, MH.LIR.,
M. Chambers, W. Shrimpton, I'. Water-
house and C. Villers. Mr. G. T. Fannin is
county clerk and Mr. C. D. Eennedy, ¢on-
sulting engineer.,

Vouneillor JOAN BENNETT has been
a8 Member of the Hawke's Bay County Ooun-
¢il sinee its inception, and was chairman of
that body for six years during which time
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many importaut works soch as roads and
bridees were carried out. AMr. Bennett has
been closely identitied with public affairs for
mwany vears., He was a member of the alil

Soreect .ﬂnqﬂ
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Proyvineial Government, is al<o on the Napier
Harbour Boarvd, was 2 useful member of the
Redelyffe, Clive, and Puketapn Road Boards,
and was for several years chalrman of the
school committee. Mr. Bennett was born in
Tuxford, Nottinghamshire, England, and came
to the Colony in 185D by the “*Spray of the
Ocean,”” landing in Auekland. He =hortly
afterwards came to Napler and obtalned an
appointment in the Provinelal Government,
supervising public works, for eleven years,
and eventually settledon his property, “New-
stead,” whieh
earries about 15,000 sheep and 300 head of
eattle, Mr. Bennett also has a farm at
Omaranui which is leased to one of his sons
During the native troubles he saw active
service with the Hawke's Bay militia and
has received the New Zealand war medal.
He married a daughter of the late M M.

conslata of THO0 neres and

Shirley, and has three sons amd four
danghters,
Mr. CHARLES DUGALD EKENNEDY,

Engineer to the Howke's Bay County Coun
eil, is also a practising solicitor. He was
born in Napier in 1858, a son of the late Mr,
Alex. Kennedy, merchant, of Napier, and
captain of No. 2 Company Napier Militia,
who was wonnded at the memorable Owma
ranul flebit. My, Kennedy was educated at
the Napier Grammatr School and at the late
Rev., IVArey Irvine's school at Walpukuraa.
He passed the jonior and senior elvil service
examinations in 1873 and joined the I'nblic
Waorks Department. in whieh he remained
fonr years. In 1877 he enfered the Survey
Department and was in the King Conntry
when the survevors were stopped by a party
of eighty armed natives under the late

Major Kemp., He was placed in charge of
an  expedition with sixty armed native
voltnteers and saw a good deal of rough
work., In 1881 the Hawke's Bay Connty
Council asked Mr. Kennedy to nundertake the
road and bridge engineering work of the
county: since that time he has acted for
the counecil in that capacity, aud is consult
ing engineer for the Patangata, Heretaunga,
and Maraekakako Romd Boards, Clive atd
nkuhan River Doards, the Wairoa County
Connell and Harbour BRoard. 1o 1885 he
declded to study law and passed the final
exatnination in 1889, Mr. Kennedy is lleu-
tenant in the ¥ Battery Artillery Volun-
teers and has n high reputation as a marks-
. When In England fn 1893 he won
several prises at the Bisley meeting, being
included in the prize list of the * Queen's
Prize’™ and also gained o place In the fol-
lowine  competitions:—Alexandra,” “The
Armourers,” “Wantage,” “City of London,™
and “Extes Prizes.” Mr. Kennedy sas made
an honorary member of the Savage Ciub
and elected o Fellow of the Colonial Insti-
tute, He is a good footballer, polo mul
tennis player, and bowler. Though now
nnattached he is a Master Mazon and o past
master of the Irish Constitution.

MILITARY.
THE EAST COAST BATTALION, formed
of the yvarious volunteer corps In the pro-
vineinl distriet of Hawke's Bay, has its

headquarters in Napier,

Major JOHN CHICKEN, Commanding the
Fast Coast Battallon of New Zealand Volun-
cneland, in
Jozeph

teers., wias born in Sunderland,

1847, Is the son of the late Mr.

Masonr J. UHICKEN.

Chicken of DBishop-Wearmouth., and was
edueated partly in his native town  and
partly in Avekland, where he arrvived with
Lhig parents in 1859 per:-ship 2Willinm Wat-
gon,” Capt. Maefarlune., On leaving school
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he entered the employment of the late Mr,
John Andrews, buoilder and tlinber mer-
¢hant, and three years Inter removed o
Napier, where he went into the service of
Afe, R. Hold, sawmiller and timber mer-
ehant, with whom he hag beéen for the past
thirty years, for a considerable portion of
which time he was manager of the Napler
MilL. In 1866, when he joined the Napler
Militin, be took part in the ensuing cam-
paign, including the great fight at Omaranui,
where both his immediate comrades were
shot down besidehim. Hewasband-sergeant
and bandmaster in the Napier Ritles until
the corps was dishanded in 1874, In 1885
he was promoted to the rank of lieutenant,
theee vears later obtained his eaptalney, and
lils majority in 1878. He took part in the
expedition after Te Kooti, holds the New
Yealamd war medal and the long serviee
medal and is entitled to the Imperial decor-
ation. He Is a suceessful marksman and
was o representative of Hawke's Bay in
1871 and earried off the principal gold medal
competed for, In 1880 Major Chicken was
married to the daughter of the Ilate Mr.
J. It. MeAlpine and has n gon and two
langhters,

Captain JOHN GETHIN HUGHES (also
Adjutant) of the Jrd (Hast (Coast) Battalion
of Volunteers, Wellington District, was born
at the Bluf in 1866 and iz a son of the late
My, John Gethin Hughes who came to the
Colonies as an ofleer of the “Great Britain®
forty years ago amd settled In Southland
and later in South Canterbury and Banks
Peninsula where he died In 1874 Capt.
Hughes was educated at Mr. €. L. Wiggins'
aeademy, Akaroa, and entered the office of
Mr. A, Ormsby, solicitor, Timarog., In 1857
he removed to Napier to take a position in
the “Evening News" (now defunct), where
he was for some two vears book-Keeper.
Slnee that time he has been with Mr. H. A.
Cornford, solicitor. He joined the Volun-
teers at Tlhmarn in 1885 as a gunner In
¢ Battery of New Zealand Artillery, and on
resigning in 1887 had a corporal’s rank. In
1801 he joined the F Battery, Napier, and
rose to the rank of lientenant In 1895, and
captain in 1807. The battery was merged
into: an infantry company in 1807 and is
now known as the Napier Guards. On the
formation of the above battalion in 185985,
Capt. Hughes received the appointment of
adjutant. Captain Hughes has always
taken a keen interest in athlefies and has
played for the province at football, has
rowed in the Napier Rowing Club's repre-
sentative crew several fimes besides holding
the Gollan Challenge Senlls. Fe is also a
cricketer, polo, golf, and tennis player, and
onceasionally torns ont with thie Hawke's
Bay hounds. In amateur theatricals he has
taken many leading parts with ecredit, and
ig Fenerally active in all publiec movements.

NAPIER RIFLE VOLUNTEERS. 'This
Company was formed on the 5th of March,
1878, and took the place of the Napier Engineer
Corps, which had disbanded. It at once took
a leading place among the companiez in the
North Island as a strong and well-drilled force,
and it has maintained that reputation. In fact,
though it has seen many ups and downs and
met with many discouragements, it is now in
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a better position than ever. The company's
uniform has been repeatedly varied, the last
time in 1898, when it was changed to blue cloth
tunie, Norfolk with scarlet facings;
bugle badge on collar, with piping of yellow
braid round the ecollar; trousers, zouave shape,
cut very full, with brown leggings, and ficld
service cap with bugle badge and the letters
N.Z. The uniform of the officers corresponds
to that of the men, with gold braid instead of
worsted, and with peaked cap with bugle in
frent, and with the same brown equipment.
The arms are, sword and a rovelver, and the 303
Martini-Enfield rifle. The shooting of the com-
pany in individual scores and in team matches
has always been of a high average. A hand-
some silver shield, presented by Mr. J, H. Cole-
man for team shooting among the companies of
the Hawke's Bay district, has been won on two
opeensions, and at the Wanganui Rifle Associa-
tion Meeting this year (1888), membors of the
company, und especially Lieutenant Millner
and Private Storkey, made excellent scores. A
fenture in the history of the company is that
the majority of officers, past and present, have
risen from the ranks. The late Captain (now
Msajor) Chicken in command of the East Coast
3rd Battalion (Wellington Volunteers), has bean
asaocinted with the company since its incep-
tion, and, joining as a bupler, e has risen
through all the ranks to his present position;
and the present captain and first lieutenant
have ulso risen from the ranks. The present
officers are:—Captuin Thomson, Lioutenants
Millner and Hudson, and the strength is—one
colour-sergeant, four sergeants, four corporals,
two buglers, and fifty-one rank and file; total,
sixty-five. For field service each man 1s sup-
plied with an overcoat, haversack and water-
bottle, and is always ready to take the field
at very short notice; The company’s services
may never be needed to meet an invading force,
but should it happen otherwise, the members,
with the rest of the volunteers of New Zeuland,
will assuredly shew that the old martial spirit
of the Anglo-Saxon race is neither dead nor
decadent.

CAPTAIN JAMES PORTEOUS THOM-
SEON, of the Napier Rifles, iz a well-known
and popular business man. He wa=z born in
Dalkeith, Scotland, in 1839, is the =on of Mr,
James Thomson, draper, and was educated in
his native town, where nlso he was apprenticed
to his father,
and was for eix vears in the old-established
drapery house of Messrs. John Lewis and Co.,
in Oxford Street, where he became buyer for
the fancy department. Leaving England for
this Colony in 1885 via Melbourne per s.s.
“"Garonne,"

shape,

Mr. Thom=on went to London

Mr. Thomson spent his first vear
of colonial life at Dunedin, as manager of the
fancy depuartment of Messrs, 5. H. Carter and
Co. He then removed to Timaru to commence
business with his brother under the stvle of
T. and J. Thomson. Selling out his interest
to his brother two wyears later he opened his
pregent business in Napier, particulars of
which are given elsewhere. Captain Thomson's
military career bezan in 1878, when he joined
the wvolunteers in Dalkeith. He joined the
Napier Rifles in 1888, obtained a lieutenant's
commission in 1895, passed for a captain’s cer-
tificate and received his present rank in August,
1898. As a member of the conncil of the Hizh-
land Society since its inception, he fukes an
interest in Caledonian sports, and is a director

of the Starr-Bowkett Building Society. Capt.
Thomson was married in 1885 to a daughter
of Mr. William Newman, of Wincanton, Somer-
sef, England, and has a son and daughter.

Carpraix J. P. Tooumsox,

Capt. EDMUND TUKE, of the New Yes-
lawd - Militia, arrived In New Healand by
the ship “Cornwall” in 1851. He took up
land in the Hawke's Bay district for a
sheep run In 1863. When the Maori war
broke out Capt. Tuke was appointed by Sir
George Grey as second in command under
the late Col. J. Fraser of the Military Set-
tlers and saw active service on the BEast

Mg, 5. J. JAGoO.
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Coast, for which he received the New Zeg-
land war medal. He was also for eighteen
months in command of the goard over the
native prisoners, numbering 340, at the
Chatham Islands, but was not there when
they escaped, the guard having been re-
moved., In Guidgeon's *“Heroes of New Zea-
land,” a long report appears, written by
Capt. Tuke, on the state of the prisoners
at that date and before their escape, Capt.
Tuke was also one of the founders of the
Masonle Scinde Lodge in Napler, and has
been a Justice of the Peace since 1864

GeENERAL GovERNMENT QNFICERS.

THE CHIEF POST OFFICE, Napier, ocen-
pies one of the most prominent sites in the
Borough. It has frontages to Hastings Street
and Shakespeare Road, and has an imposing
appearance, with a clock tower. The staff con-
sists of Mr. 8. J. Jago (chief postmaster), Mr.
Cameron (chief clerk), two Money Order clerks,
two counter clerks, and four muil clerks, train
agent, six letter carriers, and & messengor.

Mr. SIDNEY JAMES JAGO, the Chief Post-
master for Hawke's Bay, and Registrar oi
Births, Deaths and Marriages, has filled these
positions since 1885. He was born in Glaszow
in 1841, is the son of Mr, Joseph Jago, of Corn-
wall, and was educated in hiz native eity.

e o

Mr. E. R. C. Bowex.

AMr. EDWARD RHAINES COURTENAY
HOWEN, Collector of Customs at Napler,
ling been connected with the Cuostoms De-
partwent for a third of & century. He was
born in the West of Ireland in 1844, s a
gon of the late Mr. Robert Bowen, was edu-
cated in Dublin, and came to this Colony
when abount twenty years of age. Two
years later, after being a short time in the
Canterbuory Pablic Works Office, Mr. Bowen
Joined the Customs at Hokitika. Rinee then
he has held various positions at Greymouth,
Westport, Invercargill, Auckland, Wellington,
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and Dunedin, and in Febraarvy, 1802, wag ap-
poiuted collector at Napier. Mr. Bowen lins
faithfully =erved the department and his well-
merlled promotion has glven general safis-
faction. e was married In 188) to a
danzhiter of the late My, WiHliam Seed,
forwerly inspector of customs, Wellington,
und hns two daungliters and o #on,

Mr. ERIC CHARLIES GOLD-SMITH, Com-
missioner of Crown Lands and Chief Sur-
veyor for Hawke's Bay, has had an extended
colonial experience and proved himself a

Mg, E.
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most efficient officer. He was born In Ca-
berwell, Surrey, England, in 1848 and iz a
son of the late Capt. Henry Gold-Smith, who
ciime to New Zealand per ““Star of India®™ in
1862 In command of No. 5 Company of the
1st Wailkato - Regiment. Educated at
Alntthew's Denmark Hill Grammar School;
Camberwnell, Mr. Gold-Smith eame to this
Colony in 1964 per bargue “*Bosphoros™ anid
soon  after his arrival joined the firat
Waikato survey party under AMr. Lowe,
and after ssaisting in the survey of the lands
set apart for the military settlers at I'n-
kerimu, went with Capt. Turner's party to
survey the confiseated boundary and the
military settlements near Tanranga. In 1867
he volunteered for active serviee at Tan-
pinga. joining the under Capt.
Skeet and Ldeut. amnd was soon
nnder fire. Old reshdents of Mahurvangi,
North Awckland, still remember Volunteer
Tom Jordan, and they will be glad to kuow
that the comrade still lives in whose arms
that brave young soldier died. Two stal-
wart lads, each standing over six feet and
who had been acqguainted but a0 few
days, were taking cover behind the trunk
of a large tree from the deadly  fire
of rebels whoe surrounded them. One
wis fatally hit and the other. disregarding
all further cover, supported the dying man
till his life's blood ebbed away and then

ecnrineers
Gundley,

carried the body out of the bush. The brave
survivor is the present Commissioner of
Crown Lands for Hawke's Bay, who when
interviewed appeared to have forgotten for
the moment that he had ever taken part in
the war. Thiswas early in 1867 and hefore the
end of that year Mr. Gold-Smith had passed
unhurt through the Tauranga and Opotiki
operations and as sergeant in Gundry's engi-
neers gecompanied Major Fraser's expedi-
tion to Walmana. For these services he has
been granted the New Zealand medal. Hoon
after the outbhreak of the Thames goldfelds
Mr. Gold-Smith went there sarveying ol
enrineerine. with hig father, wlho was n
civil engineer.  Joining Me. IPerey Smith's
gurvey party for the Kaipara triangulations,
he was, in 1870, appointed to the survoey
stafl of the General Government as assistant
surveyar under Capt. Heale. He was pro-
moted to his present position in Jauuary in
1897, In 1873 he marvied a dauvghter of the
late My . J. Kenslington, of Aunckland and
Port Chalmers, and has a daughter and three
SOTIS,

Mr. FREDERICK BULIL, Recelver of
Laitl Revenue for Hawke's Bay, has had an
extended Colonial experience and is well
known jn many parts of New Zealand, Like
many of the early colonists My, Bull left
for the Antipodes from a love of adventure
and change, His father, Mr. Thomas Love
Bull, was the sendior partner of the firin of
Diruee amd Bull, conl merchants in a large
winy of business and emploving many hands
both on land and water, but who will bhe
better remembered as the founder of the
National school at Christchurch, Chelsea,
and fellow-worker of RBir Wentworth Dilke,
father of the present baronet, in the estab.
lishment of the literary and seientific insti-
tute of West London, within the walls of
which his portealt, by Edgar Willinms,
A LA, may =till be seen. DBorn in Yalding,
Kent, in 1841, and edueated nt Bamsginte,
the subject of this sketeh entered the office
of one of the large copper firtns in London,
but left that employment to come to New
Zealand per ship “Zealandia,” Captain
Foster, In 1863. Landing In Canterbury he
signed articles to Mr. Charles Flrench Pem-
herton, district surveyor for the Provineial
Government of Canterbury. ©On completion
of his articles. Mr. DBull was surveying in
the Kowail distriect and was subsequently
appointed engineer to the Rowal Road
Board, and in that eapacity constructed
ronds In that distriet. buailding most of the
brideeg and rebullding many of them after
the destractive food and tidal wave of 1SG8.
Tenipted by the prospects of the flax in-
dustry Mr. Bull resigned his position and
cmwbarked in flax-dressing, employing about
fifty hands, The enterprige proved disastron:
and Mr. Boll realised his assets and in 1872
removed to Welllngton, where he folned the
Public Works Department of the General
Government and some three vears later was
transferred to the Survey Department ander
Mr., J. W. A. Marchant, now commissioner
of Crown lands.  On the abolition of the
provinees and the formation of the present
Lands and Survey Department, Mr. Bull
was appointed chief acconntant, which posi-
tion he held until 1803, when he was trans-
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ferred to Napier as receiver of land revenie.
Mr. Bull is a1 Master Mason, though un-
attached for many years past, his spare
time being mainly devoted to musie and the
management of musical socletles. For over
twenty yearg he was a prominent membey
of the managing committee of the Welling-
ton Orchestral Society and wrote n number
of operettas and burlesques which were per-
formed by the still well-remembered Wel-
lington Christy Minstrels. As a “ecellolst’
he has been particularly successful  and

Mz. F. BuLrL,

énjoys the unlgue reputation of beinzx the
only left-handed player known. He has
been a member of the Wellington Phillo-
sophical Soelety for many yvears and s an
avtive member of the management com-
mittee of the Napler Hortleultural Soclety
and well-known grower of prize chrysanthe-
mwnms, Mr, Bull also has abllity as a poet; his
“Jubilee Poem™ was and still iz very widely
apprecinted and his Jubilee version of “God
Save the Queen’ was enthusinstically sung
at the Napier Cathedral speclal services by
about 1500 voices: As one of the earliest
membeis of the Star Boating Clab of Wel-
lington--the premier club of the Colony—
Mr. Bull was the designer and originator of
the elub's crest and motto “*Semper Refual-
rens™ A8 recently as 1800 he patented an
Improved flax-dresser and spent much time
andd money In endeavouring to mprove the
quality of the manufactured arvticle. He
was exnmined in that connection before the
Itoyal Commission In the published report of
which Sir James Hector mentloned Mpre
Bull's invention asg one of the only two
real hmprovements produeed during the pre.
ceding twenty-five years., In 1876 he married
the youngest danghter of the Inte Mr. A. B.
Bheath, aceconntant of the Post and Tele-
eraph Department, who with his brother,
Mr. Alfred Sheath, initinted the telegraph
syatem of the Colony at Christchureh.



Mr. JOHN EMERSON, ex-Inspector of
Police, Napier, was born in Ireland and joined
the Irish Constabulary at the time of the Cri-
mean war, obtained an ensign’s commission

Tue vate Ixspectror KMERSOS.

atil was appoiuted to the stall of Comnis-
Adams. He served In the
trenches through the terrible winter of
1855, exposed to the hottest fire. His left
baud was shattered by a shell and he was
also wounded in the mouth. He was pro-
moted to the rank of lientenant with cap-
taln's pay and was attached to the Land
Transport Corps under General MeMurdoeh,
He recelved the Turkish medal and has sines
New Zenland medal and the
medal of the Royal Humane Society for
saving life at Pleton. In 1858 he resigned
hig commizsion and proceeded to Vietoria,
where e jolned the mounted police, and was
actively employed for four years on escort
In 1862 AMr. Emerson ciatue to New
Yealand and joined Branigan®s Monnted
I'olice at Dunpedin and stationed ot
Queenstown. In 1868 he was made inspector
of the Marlborough district, was transferred
to Tanrangn in 1882 and rendered excellent
gervice there duaring troubles with the
nafives, Mr. Emerson married in
1857 and has five sons and five daughters
living. [He died at Napier on the 3rd
April, 1899,

THE NAPIER DISTRICT GAOL occupies
one of the residential sites in the
barough, facing the Marine Parade ani
Coote IRRoad. The kil on which it stands,
though very steep, is planted with trees and
the gaoler's commanids a splendid
view of the town and harbour. The prison
enclosure is about five acres In extent and
is surrounded by very substantlal stone walls,
There I8 0 library, to which the
prisoners have nceess, Everything about the
gaol is scrupulously clean and the sanitary
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provisions for the health of the Inmates are
of the Jatest design. Prisoners are kept
ocenpied aft various outdoor and indoor oecu-
piations, all under adeguate diseipline and
classification. Every requisite for the use
of the gaol is, as far as possible, made in
the prison workroonis,

Mr., FRANCIS EGERTON SEVERNE, the
Governor of the Napier Gaol and Probation
Officer for the Naplor Diztrict, was born in
Derby, England, In 1841, and is the son of
Mr. Francls Severne, barrister-at-law of that
clty. Hducuted by private tultion in Pem-
brokeshire, Wales, the subject of this sketel
came to this Colony In 1864 per “Queen of
the Deep,” landing at Auckland. Early in
1865 he went to Hokitika and for a time
tried farming at Mangowal. HReturning to
Auckland Mr. Severne ultimately joined the

prison service as warder in 1872 and until
1883 was a elerk in the Auwckland prison.

Receiving the appointment of governor of
Nelson gaol, Mr Severne remained at that
post for eclzht years, when he wias trans-
ferred to his present position. He was
married In 1866 to the daughter of Mr. J. J.
Hobinson, an English sollcitor, and has a
danghter and four sons. The eldest son, Mr.
F. L. Severne, s in the office of the chiief
ill:"l.ll'!.‘lfll‘ of schools in Wellington: the
second, Mr. G. E. Severne, I3 in the office
of the inspector or telegraphs, Auckland: the

Mn. F. E.
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third is In the Bank of New Zealand at
Napier: and the youngest ls fourth master
at the Napler High school,

Mr. LUKE DRYDEXN BROWETT, Inspoe-
tor of Factories, Labour Agent, and Regis-
trar of Electors, I'rovinelal Bulldings, Napler,
was born in 1862 at Northampton, England,
where he was edocated and afterwards
learned the boot and shoe trade, About 1880
he emigrated to the Cape of Good Hope
where he remalned for five years, but owing
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to ill-health was compelled to leave for the
more salubrions ellmate of New Zealand
and landed at Lyttelton in 1885, Mr, Browett
worked for some thme at his trade in Christ-
chureh and Wellington, About 1891, owing
to 4 dispute, a strike was declared in the
boot trade and Mr. Browett was appointed
by the Dootmakers' Federal Council to take
charge of the strike Ip Auckland, a re-
sponsible position  which he held to the
termination of the strike to the credit of
himself and satisfaction of the trade. After
the strike which had unsettled the boot
trade, Mr. Browett left for Australian where
he remained six months, On returning to
New Zealand he worked at his trade in
Christchureh till 1895 when Lhe was ap-
peinted to the Labour Burean in Lyttelton
anid remained there till It was closeil in 1806
when he was appolnted Inspector of Fae-
tories, and in 1898 received the appointment
of Registrar of Electors, Mr. Browett has
always tnken a great Interest In socinl and
other matters pertalning to the welfare of
the public. He was the first president of the
Bootmakers' Federal Council in New Zdea-
land wherein he gave every satisfaction by
his dignified and urbane conduct. He was
married in 1888 and has three ehildren,

Mr. WILLIAM WOOF, Rabbit Inspector
of the Hawke's Bay DMstrict, i a son of a
farmer near Penrith, was born in 1867 In
Westmorland, educated at
St. Bee's Grammar School, Cumberland. He
wins artleled to his brother, but after passing
the preliminary and intermediate examina-
tions he left Home in 1885 and came by the
.2, “Aorangi” to Wellington, continned his
journey to Christechurch, and was engaged
there for three years in the wool trade.
Sometiwe afterwards he received an ap-
pointment on Messrs, Beetham's station,
Walrarapa, where he remained six years.
Im 1804 Mr. Woof recelved hiz preaent ap-
pointment. He iz a steward of the Waipawa
Racing Club and Hawke's Bay Hunt Club,

England, and
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THE WAIPAWA AND HAWEKE'S BAY
UNITED CHARITABLE AID BOARD man-
ages the charitable finances of an extensive
district, It levies contributions on the counties
of Hawke's Bay, Waipawa, Wairoa, and Patan-
gata, and on the boroughs of Napier, Hastings,
Woodville and Dannevirke. Its office i1z in
Napier and the board's secretary is Captain
Thomas Baker.

CAPTAIN THOMAS BAKER, Secretary of
the Hawke's Bay Charitable Aid Board, Napier
Hospital Trustees and District Hospital Board,
was born in Shropshire, England, in 1835, his
father of the same name being a merchant and
farmer of Shrewsbury. Educated at the famous
Blue Coat School, he left hiz native land for
Victoria in 1857 per Messrs. Money, Wigram
and Co.'s ship "Suffolk."” After mining at
Ballarat and Egerton, and a considerable ex-
perience as a stockman on the Western plains,
Mr. Baker came to New Zealand in 1886l
settling in the infant town of Invercargill, where
he entered the service of Messrs. Roberfson
and Co., auclioneers. Shortly after this the
Southland Provineial Government needed a
gaoler and Capt. Baker was appointed to the



position. Twelve months later he took charge

of the gold escort at Lake Wakatipn and in 1865

went to Canterbury, where he joined the pro-
vincial police force. Joining the Armed Con-

Carrars T. BAker.

stabulary at Wellington in 1869 under Com-
missioner Brannigan, Baker was
promoted to sergeant during his first month's
service, four years later he attained the rank of
sergeant-major, and in 1879 was appointed sub-
inspector. He was promoted to be captain
in the Permanent Militia in September, 1886,
and retired from the force in 1888, In the
beginning of 1890 he accepted the positions he

Constable
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now holds. Capt. Baker was initiated into
Masonry in Lodge Unanimity, Christchurch,
in 1865. He married in 1872 Miss Carleton, of
Hawke's Bay, and a year later was left a
widower with one daughter. His second wifa,
a daughter of Mr. Eyre, of Whangarei, to
whom he was married in 1875, died ten years
later, leaving a son and a daughter.

THE NAPIER HOSIPITAL occuples a
prominent site on “Old Barrack HIiIl" over-
looking the inner harbour, or Port Ahnriri,
ind near the western extremity of the group
of hills known as Seinde Island. The ap-

AND MRrs. HARDY AND A FEW OF 1HE ELDER GIRLS, NAPIER CHILDRER 8 Houmz,

pearance aml otility of the buildings have
been greatly improved by the additlon of
a storey to the central portion, in which are
sitnated the quarters of the resident medieal
officer. The wards are all lofty, woell-lighted,
and well-ventllated, and there is an air of
cloanliness and comfort whole
establishment which is very pleasing. The
Averiep patients Is thirtyv-five.
The regular stal consists of the mediecal
superintendent, Thr. Leahy, the matron, Miss
Tutin, and eleven nurses. The honorary
staflf  includes:—Dr.  Milne-Thomson, Dr.
Moore, Dr. de Ligle, and Dr. P. Monzies,
The Napier Hospital has an excellent name
among the resgidents and in officlal quarters.

Dr. JOHN PATRICK DAUNT LEAHY,
B.AL MLE. Ch.M., Medical Superintendent
of the XNapier Hospital, eame to Hawke's
Bay in 1804,

NAPIER CHILDREN'S HOME. This ox-
cellent institution ie located in a building in
Burlington Road, off Napier Terrace, Napier,
and is under the parental care of Mr. and Mrs.
Hauxdy.

Mr, and Mrs. HAGDY are the Father and
Mother of the Napier Children's Home. Mr.
Hardy obtains the best possible returns from tho
large piece of cultivated ground surrounding the
Home, which supplies considerable quantities
of vegotables. He has made all the improve-
ments in the property, attends to all the out-
door work, mends all the boots and shoes, and
takes part in the training of the children. Mrs.
Hardy ia not only a trained nurse, but is in
every way admirably fitted for the position she
fills. She was born in Cambridge, England,
12 the daughter of Mr. John Miller, was edu-
eated in her native town, and became a nurse
at St. Bartholomew's Hospital, and afterwards
matron fo the Royal Fortrose Prevention Home,
St. Michael's Hill, Bristol, where for a period
of six years she gave such complete satisfaction
that, sn breaking down through over-work, the

about the
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ONE OF THE DORMITORIES IN THE CHILDREN'S HoMmE,

ladies connected with the institution subseribed
8 sum sufficient to defray the expenses of her
journey to New Zealand. On her arrival in
Napier she rapidly improved in health and in
a few months was able to accept a temporary
appointment at the Napier Asylum. In 1878
she was married to Mr. Hardy. In 1864
Mrs. Hardy succeeded Miss Nelson in the
Home and with no other assistance than that of
the elder giris, does all the work of the estab.
lishment. That she is thoroughly alive to the
great responsibilities of her position, there is
no room to doubt, and the most casual observer
can see that the foster parents of the Napier
Children’s Home are loved by the children
under their charge. Mr. and Mrs. Hardy's only
son has o small farm at Taradale.

KpUucATIONAL.

BOYS' HIGH SCHOOIL, Clyde Road,
Napier. Board of Governors:—Messrs. J. W.
Carlile, M.A. (chalrman), H. A. Cornford, J.

Crosse, J. Moore, M.D.. J. W. Neal 8.
Johuston, G. H. Swan, Captain Russell,
MHLR., Rev, D. Bidey, D.D. (seeretary).
Alr. W Wood, AP, F.R.G:S. (head-

master), Messrs. A.S. M. Polson,B.A. (N.Z)),
and J. P. Dakin, B.A. (Lond.) (assfstant
mastersh: and Distriet Staff Sergeant-Major
E. H. S8everne (drill Instrnetor). This fine
school s sitnated on Clyde Rtoad, one of the
best sltes In Napier. The building is a large
three-storey structure, well ventilated, and
with drainage and sanitary arrangements
upon the most improved modern syvstem.
The dormitories and dining-rooms are large
and comfortable and are under the super-

Vision of Mrs. Wood. The school is anr-
rounded by spacions grounds, which in-
clunde tennis and fives courts, and the gover-
nors  have secured the use of the publie
recreatlon grounds for ericket and foothall,
There Iz a splendid gympasinm where
systematie instruction ls glven. The cadet
company I8 under the command of the
masters, The conrse of study Is similar to
that of the best English schools and pupils
are specially prepared for University and
other examinations. Of candidates for the
senfor and junlor eivil service examinations,
nine per cent. have been suceessful. The
ordinary eurricnlum includes English in all
Its branches, Latin, French, mathematics
(including  arithmetie, geometry, algebra,
trigonometry, and mechanies). sclenee, writ-
ing, drawing, gymnastics, and drill By
arrangement and without extra charge, hovs
may take Greek, German, book-keeping, and
shorthand. When there Iz a sufficient num-
ber of suitable volees, singing classes are
also formed, Reports of work and condnet
are zent to parents at the end of each term.
Particular attention Is paid to moral and
physical training of the pupils. The follow-
ing scholarships are open to pupils of one
and two years’ study in the school :—One
biennially of the value of £50 4s, per annum
for boys under sixteen, two annually of the
value of £10 45, per annum for boys under
sixteen, one annually of the value of £10 4s.
per annum for boys under fourteen, all ten-
able for two years. The school year is
divided Into three terms of about fourteen
weeks each, Fees are payable per term in
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advance, as follows:—Tuition, upper school,
3 3s. per term; lower sehool, £2 16s.; sta-
tionery, upper school, 52 per term: lower
school, 25, Gd. per term; board and residence,
£13 G, Sd. per term. A term’s notice is re-
quired previous to the removal of a pupil.
Mr. WILLIAM WOOD, the Headmaster, is
4 native of Kent, England, and completed
his education at Edinburgh University. His
first appointment was nas master of the
Forrest school, Walthamstow, England, and
he remained in that position for three vears,
when he was appointed headmaster of the
Pulwich gchool, XNorwood, svhere he re-
mained for ten years. He came to New Fea-
Innd In 1883 and was appointed second
muaster of the Girls' High School, Auckland.
About 1888 he came to Napler as second
master of the High School and In 1888 re-
ceived his present appointment, Mr. Wood
has always taken a very active part in
Volunteer movements, held the rank of
major in the Napier Volunteers from 1888
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till 1896, and now holds the honorary rank of
Heutenant-colonel of the Wellington Bate
talion.

Mr. ANGUS SUTHERLAXD MUZRAY
POLSON, B.A., Second Master of the Nu-
picr Tioys' High School, was boarn in Ouinara
in 1869, and is a son of Mr. Anpgus Polson
of “* Balruddery,” Enfield. He was educated
at the Teaneraki Publie School, Oamara Dis
triet High School, Otago High School, aud
Otago University, gaining his B.A. degree
in 1880. ‘When twelve years of age he
passed the sixth standard examination with
100 per cent. of marks and took first prize,
Two months later he won the Otago Ednea-
tinn Ticard’s Junior Scholarship of {830 six
months after this the Oamarn Caledonian
Society's Bursary of £60 was awarded him:
in Decemboer, 1883, he won the Otago Senicre
Scholavship of £120, and three years later



he won the New Zealand University scholar-
siip of £135, making a total of £395. Of

-
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first prizes the following were won:—TFonr
for English, three for French, and one pach
for cowposition, mapping, Latin, BEueclid,
algebrea, and general excellenve., He received
also a silver medal for best in drill. dux
medal of the Oamarn District High School,
and the reward of excellenes and a souvenlr
of the school, The first-clags certificntes
gained at the University include those fop
Mathematies, Mechanies, English, Fropeh.
nnd Mental SBelence.  Other examinations
passed with much eredit by him were the
Junior and senlor Clvill Serviece examinations
in the former of which he was first of 211
candidates. While studying at the Uni-
versity, Mr. I’olson was also assistant
master at the Otago High Sclhiool and in
1810 was appointed second master of the
Walmate District High School. In 1594 lhie
wits selected from seventesn graduates Top
the position of assistant master of the
Timarn High School: and in Jannary, 1808,
he was appointed to his present post out of
fourteen graduntes who applied. The tes-
timoninls held by Mr. Polson are of the
highest order. bearing evidences of his
character, scholarship, and scholastic CX -
riences. That Mr. Polson has not neglected
physical training In favour of mental, is
attested In many ways. He is an excellent
swimmer, eyclist, and footballer., and has
been long known as a successful sprinter.
He still holds the Otago High School records
of eleven seconds for 100 yards, and 55 2-5the
seconds for the gquarter mile. These records
were maide in 1886 when Mr. IPolson was a
gcholar, and he has since reduced them to
10 3-5the and 54 seconds respectively, For
five years he was captain of football clubs,
first at Walmate and afterwards at Thoar.
In volunteer matters, Mr. Polson has taken
a4 prominent part, baving been lieutenant in
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the Dunedin High Sehool Cadets, eaptaln f
the ecadets In Timarn and alse at Napler,
whieh Intter rank he still holds. He hasbheen
president or
debating and Christian Endeavour socleties,
and for many years he has been either man-
ager or on the staff of educational journals.
The “Seindinn,” the periodical of the Napier
Boys' High School, is now in his charge. Mr.
Polson 1s an elder of St. Paul's Charch, and
leader of Bible classes for boyvs and younggs

secretary of recreation clubs,

men, Adctive, energetie, and generous in all
useful undertakings, the second master of

the Napler Boys® High School is. like his
principal, Colonel Wood, a credit to the
profession. He was married In 1897 to o
daunghter of the late Mr. W. Strachan, of
Dunedin, and hag one danshter.

THE GIRLS HIGH
Itoad, Napier. Miss Matthews, Ll.A. (5L
Andrews), Principal; Miss BSpencer, B.A.
(N7, First Assistant: and severnl other
Iady teachers, The =choosl = =ituated on
oue of the finest amd most healthy pesliions
in Napler amd survounded by
eronnds. The bullding i= a very handsome
two-slorey structure containing a namber
of large well Turnished class-rooms, dinlng
room, wmusic-roomw, amd a number of single
bedrooms, each pupil occupying her own
root, Pupils are prepared for the practical
and theoretieal examinations of Trinity Col-
lexe, Clvil Serviee, matriculation, and col-
lege examinations. In proof of the success
of Mlss Matthews' teaching It may bé stated
that there have been only two failures in
exnminations during the last six

SCHOOL, Clyde

plea=nni

these
Nenrs.,

Miss MATTHEWS, the Principal of the
Napler Girls' High School, was born In Kng-
Iand, and gained ber degree at St Andrew’s
TTniversity. In 1887 she came to Auckland
where gshe conducted with great sucee=s the

ExTraxce HaLn oF e Giens' Hige ScHooL, NAPIER.
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Mount Eden Collegiate School, and In 1802
received hier present appolntment.

Miss MATTHEWS.
THE XNATIER GRAMMAR SCHOOL
(William  Gray, B.A.,, 8t. John's College,
Cambridge, Headmaster), Napier Terracoe,

Napier. Established by Mr.
M.AL In 1804 This fine cdueational estab
lishment is sltuated on one of the most
charming =ites on Seinde Island, and ecom-
mands beautlfnl views of mountain and
gset.  The building is rather pretentlous
amd  Is sarronmded by three acres  of

Monekton,

e il AL LT

PERINCIPAL ARXD STAFF.
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gronnils, Attached Is a
with tennis, ericket, and
The higher Dbranches of
taught, nomely: Classics, -mathemnties,
modern langunges, painting, drawing, and
shorthand. FPupils are also preparved for the
University and eivil service examinations in
which thisschool hasbeen sosuccessful. There
is accommodation for about twelve boarders
and the domestic arrapgements are ander
the immediate sapervision of Mrs. Gray.
Mr., WILLIAM GRAY, Headmaster of the
Nuapier Graommar School, is a native of Lou-
don, was eduacaled at Combridee and toolk
his I3.A. 1887. He was assistant

flne oymnasinn,
football fields.
eduecation are

desree in

in severnl large schools preparing higher
class pupils for the Army and University

exnminations.
finil

He came in 1884 to Napier
with Mr. Monckton in
astablislilng the school. In 1897, Mr, Monek-
ton retived leaving the school ent rely to Mr,

wihas nesocinted

M=. W. GrAy.

Gray. Mr. Gray g marrled to a daughter
of the Rev. J. L. Carriek, prineipal of Spring

Hill schoal, Southampton, England.

THI
TRICT
Walron,
The

HAWEE'S BAY EDUCATION DIS-
embraces Cook,. Hawke's Bay,
Walpawa, and I'atangatn Counties.

grhools of the district nonmber sixty-

gleht, amd the number of children on the
rall ig T600 with an average attendance of

aboul G5O,
of whom 129

There are in all 2001 teachers,
certificated. The REduca-
consists of:—Rev. Dr. Sidey
ichalrman)., Dr. Moore, and Messrs., €. A,

Fitzroy, T. G. Gillberd, K. L. Knight, §.
MeLernon, Thos: Tanner., Fred., Sutton, and
. Williams; Mr. Henry Hill {inspector) and
Mr. G. T. Fannin (seceretary).

THE REVEREND D. SIDEY, D.D..
Tennyson Street, Wapler, Chalrman of the
Edueation Board, Secretary to the High
Sehiool Board of Governors, and Clerk and

e

tion  Donard

Treasurer to the I'resbyterian General As-
semnbly of New Zealnnd, was born at Pitealrn
seotland,

Green, near Perth, efueated at

Rev. Dr. S1pDEY.

IRedgorton parish school and Perth Aeademy
and rradoated at Edinbarieh  University.
Iy, Sidey entered the ehurch in 1857 anid
had charge of a parish at Auchtermuchty
for about eight vears. He wns then
Iated to West Calder, ministering there for
six venrs after which he came to New Zea-
land by the =hip “Caduocens.” landing at
Aunckland in 1872, Proceeding to Napler he
took charge of the Presbyterian chureh to
which he had been appointed previons to his
depariure from Scotland, In 1884, when My,
Patterson him in his charge Dr.
Ridey clerk and treasurer to the
(General Assembly, but still occasionally

Eritns-

=11 :*1'111111 w]

hecame

officiated at religlous services. He has
always taken a prominent part In  educa-

tional  and  eeclesinstienl  matters. n

his arrival in Hawke's DBay there were
only two Presbyterian minlsters In the
provinee., now there are nine in charges
begideg one in Poverty Bay and a home

missicnary. This result is a monument to
the indefatigzable efforts put forth by him
and his ministry. Dr,
Sidey lost his wife in 1804, leaving him with
three sons and two danghters.

Mr. GEORGE THOMAS FANNIN, Secre
tary of the Hawke's Bay Hdueation Boarvd,
was born in Westmeath, Ireland, in 1830,
and is the son of Mr. Willinm Fannin, who

came to this Colony in 1852 per ship ““Wil-

associntes in  the

linm Reott,'” =settling on a rmn on the Rua-
taniwha Plains. Hducated in England and

at Trinity College, Dublin, the subject of
thiz sketeh eame to the Colony with his
parents and settled In Hawke's Bay where
the white population then consizted of zome
Lallf-dozen families. In 1858 Mr. Fannin

wne appointed clerk te the New Provineial

NEW ZEALAND.

Counell of Hawke's Bay, and retained that
position il the abolliion of the
in 1876, Dwuring a portion of that period,
when the Maori war was in progress, he
acted a8 secretnry to Sir Donald MeLean
and the Hon. J. b, Ormond, who repre-
sented the General Government In the con-
duet of the war. On the abolition of the
provinees, Mr. Fannin was appointed clerk
and treasurer to the Hawke's Bay County
Conneifl and  secerefary to the Hduoceation
Board, which latter position he now holils,

provinces

Mr. HENRY HILL, B.A,, F.G.8, {(Lond.),
Inspector of Schools under the Hawke's Bay
Board of Edueatlon, s the son of Mr.
B. Hill, iron and nail factor, and was born at
Lye, near Stourbridge, Worcester, England,
in 1849, and trained as a pupil-teacher
lu hiz native town. He educated at
Cheltenham College, where he completed his
training for the professlon of a schoolmaster,

was

10 RS SR L

[PANKIN.

He was afterwards appoeinted to organise
St Mark's Nottingham. and when
the Canterbuory 'rovineinl Government were
organizing their schools (Hon., W. Itolles-
ton beinge the superintondont), Mre. Fill was
with others for the work
and he came to the Colony in 1872 In the
“Mervope.” Whilst in Christehureh he acted
time as selence master of Christ's
College and mathematical master at Miss
Folise's young Inidies" sehool, He started
the New Zealand ““Schoolmaster™ and edited
that journal for several he was the
prime mover in the agitation which resulted
in the formation of the first Teachers® As.
sociation Iin New ZHealand, a general con-
forence of teachers belng held in Christ-
churel-In 1876, Im 1878 he was appointed
inspéetbr and secretary to the Napler Eduen-
tion Peard, and for thirteen years held the
dunl position. F¥le was, however, obliged to
relinguish the secretaryshiponacecountof the

zihiaol,

aploctod soveral

for some

YEeRTES



rapid inerease In the volume of examining
work., Mr., Hill Is an enthusiastic geologist
and his large district, extending from Cape
Runaway to Cape Turnagain, provides him
with an excellent field for observation. He
has greatly assisted the people of Wanganui
In the discovery of an arteslan water sapply,
and in gratitude for the services rendered,
the Couneil of that borough presented him
with a specially engraved and valuable gold
wateh, He was made a Fellow of the Roval
Gealogleal Soclety about twelve years ago
on the recommendation of Sir James Hector
aud I'rofessor Hutton. An earnest believer
in mutual lmprovement socleties, Mr, Hill
started the Napier Young Men's Club, anil
has done much to assist its progress. He
Is a Mason, but unattached. He was
married In 1873 to a daughter of Mr. John
Knowles, of Woreestershire, anid las four
daughters and three sons,

THE NAPIER DISTRICT SCHOOL,
which Is situated in Tennyson Street, i= said
to be the largest in the North Island. More
than a thousand pupils are under resular
instruction. Mr. Morgan, the headmaster,
has a staflf of four assistant masters, five
mistresses, and ten pupil-teachers, That the
scholars are well taught is amply proved
annually, both by the very large percentage
of passes and by the fact that on an average
no fewer than ten scholarships are
every year by this school., Delll instruetion
is given regularly to all the classes,

Mr. THOMAS MORGAN, Headmnster of
the Napier District School, has gained a hizh
reputation as a teacher, having beon most
successful wherever he has been located.,
He was edneated at Cheltenham College anid
cntered upon his seholastie eareer in London.

W

Mz. T. MonrGaAx.

From there he removed to the Welsh manu-
facturing fown of Llanelly, but his health
failing, he left the Old Country for New
Zealand in 1879 by the ship “Wanganui.”

EDUCATIONAL.

After n year in charge of a suburban school
near Christechureh, Mr. Morgan was ap-
pointed headmaster of the prineipal school
at Gisborne where he remnined some éleven
years; he received his present appointment

in 18092, He takes a keen interest in his
work and manvy of his scholars have
reflected great eredit on thelr master.  One

of his old Gisborne pupils took first place at
the Crystal Palace engineering examination
in 1898, Mr. Morgan is a Mason of thirty
years standing and waz one of the founders
of Lodee Abercorn in Gisborne,

THE HASTINGS STREET JUNIOR
SCHOOL, or NAPIER BIDE SCHOOL, has
bheen erected about eleven years and all the
ronms are large and well arranged. The roll

Miss Gounmse.

number iz 234 and the averars attendance
about 210. The Eindergarten system is parti-
ally adopted, and drill andsingingare tanght,
The stall consists of the head-mistress, Miss

Goulding, twao Iady assistantz, and three
pupil-teachers,

Migs JANE ELIZABETH MARION
GOULDING, Head-mistress of the Hast-
ingg Street School, = n danghter of
the late Mr. Richard Goulding who
was private secretary fo  Sir Charles
Darling, Governor of New Sounth Wales.
She was born In Bydney, New South
Wales, and was edueated in  Limerick,

Ireland, returned to the Colonies and was
trained as a teacher in Melbourne. Coming
to New Zealand, Miss Gounlding had charge
for six years of the school at Kawaran
Gorge, Otaro, and was afterwards at the
North Oamarn school. She then ecame to
Napler and, after a short tlme as assistant,
was appointed to her present position In
1581, Besides being closely engaged In teach-
ing all the week, Miss Goulding has taken
a most active part In Sunday school ani
other work in connection with 8t, Paul's
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I'resbyterian church, though an Episcopa-
llan by birth and training. She iz a counsin
of the lite Dr. Hannington, the first Bishop
of Fagt Eguatorial Africa, who was murdered
a few yeurs ago.

THI NAI'NER INFANTS SCHOOL ocen-
pies the corner of Clive Sgquare and Carlyle
Street.  The head-mistress, Mrs. Barnett,
has one assistant mistress and eight pupil-
teachers. The number of scholars on the
roll for the winter quarter of 1898 was 362,
with an average attendance of about 220,
The school contains five good elass-rooms.
The kindergarten system is partinlly taught
and military drill and singing are inehaded
in the sylinbus.

Mrs. BARNETT, the Head-mistress, has
been connected with the prineipal Napier
school sinee the institution was opened over
twenty years ago. During the first half of
that time she was scholar, pupil-teacher, and
aszistant teacher, and threughout the whole
of the latter half has been head mistress,
She was born in Napler, is the daughter of
the late Mr. Willlam Robottom, who came to
this Colony as schoolmaster-sergeant of the
a8th regiment, landing in the Bay of Islands
in 1845, and was eduecated as stated above,
Mrs., Barnett takes a good deal of interest
In musie and was a member of the Cathedral
Choir for many years. She was married In
1806 to Mr. A. H. Barnett, of the Railway

Mnrs. BARsETT.

Department, who Is referred to in this

volume as elerk In charge of the roods-
shed,

ECCLESIASTICAL.

THE DIOCESE OF WAIAPU, of which
Napier is the Cathedral City, was founded in
the year 1850, It Is divided, ecelesiastically,
Into three Archdeaconries of Tauranga,
Waiapu, and Hawke’s Bay. There are nearly
fifty licensed clergy and about 120 lay-

(k)
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readers, the majority of the latter being of
the native race. The Ciathedral chapter con-
slsts of the Bishop (the Right Rev. W. L.
Williams., D.D.), the Very Rev. Dean De
Berdt Hovell, the Venerable Archdeacon 8,
Willinmns, the Rev. Canon J. Elliott Fox,
M.A., the Rev. Canon Harry Woodford
St Hill, and the Itev. Canon A.8. Webb, M_A.,
The previous bishops were the Right Rey,
William Williams, ILO.L., and the Right
Rev. K. O. Stuart, 1.1, There are between
sixty and seveuty churches open for divine
worship in the diocese, while services are
held in school-rooms and other public bulld-
ings in about one hundred additional centres,
The ehurches in Napier are in charge of the
following clergymen:—The Cathedral, the
Very Rey. Ilean Hovell; St. Augustine's, the
Rev. H. E. Taylor; 8t. Andrew's, the IRRey.
Ollver Dean,

The Right Reverend WILLIAM LEONARD
WILLIAMS, Anglican Bishop of Walapn,
was born at the Bay of Islande In 1829, His
late father was the first bishop of Walapn
and one of New Zenland's most prominent
misgsionaries. IHe was at 8t, John's College,
Auckland, proceeded to England and graduo-
ated at Magdalen Hall, Oxford, taking the
B.A. degree with third-class honours in
Literls Humanioribms in 1852, In the follow-
Ing yvear he returned to the land of his birth
a8 a missionary and was engaged with his

father, who In 1830 removed his head-
quarters to Poverty Bay. In 1862, Mr,
Willlams was installed Archdeacon of

Walapu and continned to labour nmong the
Maorizs antil 1868 when the Poverty Bay
Migzlon was broken np in consequence of the

Rigar Rev. Bisgor WILLIAMS.

incorsions of the Haunhans. The Arch-
deacon took his family to Auckland, but,
notwith=tanding the very un=settled condition
of the natives, he himszelf spent most of his

time in the neighbourhood of Poverty Bay
In spite of many obstacles and warnings, He
was there with a portion of his family when
the Chatham Island prisoners led by Te
Kooti landed at Whareongaongn and was
within a few miles of the scene of the
massacre on the 10th of November, 1868, In
I8TT e made Gisborne his headguarters,
where In 1863, the Maori Theological Col-
lege was placed under his charge as prinel-
pial., He continned In this position until the
resignation by Bishop Studart of the Walapu
See and he was elected to A1 the vacancy
in 1894 and consecrated in the following yvear
at Napler Cathedral by the Primate, assisted
by the Blsbops of Christechurch, Nelson, and
Melanesia. In Maori Hterature, His Lord-
zhip has done mueh nseful work. He has re-
edited the “Dictionary of the Maorl Lang-
nage’ eompiled by his father and is the
author of *“First Lessons in Maori,” pub-
lished by Messrs, Upton and Co., of Auek-

land, Some of Bighop Willlams® papers have
been published in the proceedings of the
New Zealand Institute, notably one on

drpok's Landing at Poverty Bay,” amd one
exposing the falselhood of the story of John
Rutherford. As head of the Church in the
IMocese of Walapu, Bishop Willinms Is very
greatly loved and revered, and under his
guidance and influenee the churches of the
diocese are a power for good amd the nd-
vancement of religion. After an absence of
forty-four years from the land of his fore-
fathers, Bishop Williams revisited England
and the scenes of hisuniversity career during
the Record Relgn celebrations and sitting of
the Lambeth Conference. He was en-
thusinstically welcomed by his old college
which conferred upon him the degree of
Doctor of Divinity. . Willinms spent
four or five months in England and speaks
very highly of the unvarying kindness with
which he was everywhere recelved as a New
Zoaland Bishop and the eldest son of one
who bhad more than seventy years before
placed his life at the disposal of the Church
Missionary Soclety as a volunteer for
missionary work in what was then one of the
wildest, most savage, and least-Known
conntries on the face of the earth, Bishop
Willlams was married in 1853 to the danghter
of Mr. John Bradshaw Wamklyn of Withers-
lnck, Westmorland, and has four daunghters
and five sons., The eldest son, Mr. F. W,
Willinms, is well known as the senlor manag-
ing director of Messrs. Williams and Kettle,
Litd.. the secomd, the HRev, Herbert W.
Willinms, is the prineipal of the Maori
Theological Colloge at Gisborne:; the thicd,
Ar. Alfred Willlams, I= o surgeon at Harrow,
Middlesex, England: the fourth, Mr. Frank
W. Willlnms, Is a sheepfarmer on the East
Const, sonth of Gishorne: and the fifth, Mr,
Arthur Willlams, 18 an englineer In England,
Three danghters are married, the eldest to
Mr. Charles Gray of Gishorne, the second to
Alr. MeLean, manager of the Bank of New
Zealand, Palmerston North, and the third to
the Rev. A, F. Gardiner; late of Waipawa.

Mr. JOHN BREOKETT FIELDER, Secre-
tary. Treasorer, and Registrar of the Dio-
of Waiapu, wasg born in Finsbury
Square, London, In 1839, was educated af
Dialston Aeademy, London, and after serving

R
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as a clerk In various offices, he left England
for India, joining the 70th Surrey Regiment
it Rawulpindee in 15858 and two years later
came with the regiment to Auckland. Mr.

Mr. J. B. FIELDER.

Fielder was in the detachment sent to Dun-
edin on the outbreak of the goldfields in
Otago and wasappointed elerk to the deputy-
askistant commissary-general. In 1863 the
detachmoent left for the scene of the Tatarai-
muka massacre in Taranakl and a few
months Inter was ordereid to Auckland, Its
headquarters. He was next appolnted dis-
trict elerk at Otalhuho and  subsequently
moved to 'npakura in the same capacity.
Mr., Flelder saw active service In the Wal-
kato under General Cameron. In 1865 the
regiment was ordered Home and Mr. Fielder,
then holding the position of payvmaster-ser-
geant, took his discharge and entered the
civil service ns assistant clerk in the Napier
reslident magistrate's court, was afterwards
appointed clerk to the bench and deputy-
registrar of the Supreme Court, and two or
three years later entered the Deeds Depart-
ment amd became deputy-registrar of deeds
and deputy-commissioner of stamps, which
offices he held t111 his retirement from the
serviee in 1879, He then aceepted the secre-
taryship of the Napler Gas Company, and
the management of the Hawke's Bay Perma-
nent Building Society, having since 1867 also
held the secretaryship of the Napier Build-
Ing Societies, Nos. 1 and 2. Mr., Fielder has
tnken an active part in Church matters for
many years. He Is also provioeial corre-
gponding secretary of the Hawke's Bay Dis-

trict OO T ALY, secretary of the Napler
P'ark Company and Napier Recreation
Ground Company and Cemetery Trust.

When the natlve troubles arose, Mr. Fielder
jolned the Napier Rifle Volunteers and was
sergeant-manjor. He was present at Oumar-
anui and holds the New Zealand war medal,



Mr. Fielder was married in 1864 and has a
son and two daughters living.

NAPIER CATHEDORAL. Thiz fine bulld-
ing, the largest eceleginstienl edifice vet con-
structed in New Zealand, may be sald to owe
lts existence to the untiring energy and zeal
of the Very Rev., De Berdi Hovell, Dean
of Wa'apn. The scheme for itg erection
witd Inangurated in the yvear 1885, In the
month of September, 1886, the foundation
gtone was lald, and the Cathedral was conse-
criated and formally opened for divine wor-
ship in December, 1888, There being no
building stone of a suitable character abtaln-
able in Hawke's Bay, full use has heen made
inthe fabrie of theexeellent bright red bricks,
which ean be proenred in any quantity In
the vieinity of Napler, The task of design-
ing the Cathedral was placed in the compe-
tent hands of the late Mr. B. W. Mount-
fort, archifect, of Christchnreh, and there
cian be no question that Napier Cathedral is
one of his very best ereations.  From the some-
what retired position oceupled by the edifice
it does not shew externally, at present, to
very great advantage, hut this fault will be
remedied later on, when the building is com-
pleted by the erection of the chapel and
tower. From a description supplied by an
expert the following particulars are glven:—
“The plan of the Cathedral may shortly be
described as nave, chancel, and transepts,
with morning chapel north of chaneel, and
organ chamber on the south. At the west
end of nave are spacions vestries, in two
stories, for clergy and choir, while a very
magnificent tower s arranged for on the

ECCLESIASTICAL,

north side opposite the vestries. The nave
and chaneel are under one continuous roof
into which the transept roofs joln at a some-

VeErY HEv. Dean HoveLr.

what lower elevation, so that the ridge is
unbroken, save where the cross shows out-
wardly the commencement of the chancel
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ingide, The roof iz covered with slates of
two colours, arranged in patterns, and from
its great size, forms a conspicuous feature in
the view. It finishes at the skyline with a
perforated tile ridge. The main walls shew
a serics of buttresses on each side connected
together by bold arches forming recesses,
each of which econtainsg a window of a
couplet of lanecets with diamond perforations
above nnd between them. The brickwork of
the walls is relieved by stone string courses
and flat bands of stone and Is erowned by a
handsome and massive cornice, Great use
has been made of monlded Dbricks, both
within and without the buoilding. The north
and south transepts are entirely diferent In
their component parts, that on the north
ghewing three deep lofty recesses, the contre
containing a triplet and each slde a couplet
of lanceéts, also a poreh of entrance below:
while the south tranzept over a pent porch
shews a large rectangular window supported
by a single lancet on each side, and high up
in the gable a series of four equal lancets.
The great west front towers up in fine
grand massive style, with its three large
recessed arches containing windows, and the
western poreh below; while the lower vestry
building with its wvarled windows and
dormer givea greoat zeale to this front, On
entering the building by the west poreh, the
striking nature of the interfor at once pro-
clalms [tself. In one wide span the lofty
roof soars away for one hundred and seventy
feet in a long solemn stately perspective to
the great five-light eastern window. This
interfor 1s unlike anything yet attempted in
this Colony, and by its spacions effeet re-

NAPIErR CatHiEpRan CHOIR,
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minds the spectator of a wide basilica., The
roof Is without the beam and of course
would exert an enormous thrust on the walls,
but this pressure Is amply provided for by
abutments of more than ten feet projection,
which however, save for a sunitable pro-
portion, do not shew themselves outside:; in
fact the buttressesare three-fourths internal,
and their counter-butting effect is  still
further inecreased by boldly projecting the
internal face of the abutments, at a suit-
able height, on massive monlded stone cor-
bels, Each internal buttress is plerced on
the ground floor by a narrow pointed arch,
which forms a passage on each side of the
Cathedral for access to the seats, Yery
striking and varied effects can be obtained
from different points on looking down and
aeross this many arched cloister as it might
be termed. TEach prinecipal of the roof is
framed double, and in all direetions run
bands of cirenlar perforated cusped quatre-

foils. All this pierced work, repeated again
and agaln down the length of roof, glves
great lightness and play to the appearance
of the perspective. The chancel has an
nscent of three steps from the nave, from
which it is separated by a fine sereen of open
work with gates. The floor of the chanecel
eastward of the choir stalls continues to rise
until the Holy Table stands nine steps above
the floor of the nave. A handsome credence
of stone and tiles 1g arranged in the south
wall, The eastern window, of great size,
has been filled with very beauatiful stalned
glass, and is in memory of the late Hon.
Robert Stokes, M, L.C.; another richly
stained window has been erected to com-
memorate the first bishop of the diocese,
Dr. Willinms; while a third, in memory of
the wife of the late Mr. H. Stokes Tiffen,
has been placed in the north transept. Other
memorials have been erected to Captain
Carr, of the Royal Artillery, and Mr. Davis

NEW ZEALAND.

Canning, who were killed In action during
the Maorl war; while, under an Agnus Del
window, in the south transept, appears a
very touching lnscription., on white marble,
in commemaoration of the eldest son of the
Dean, Hugh de 8t. Croix Hovell, who died
under singularly sad clreumstances several
years ago, On the south side of the nave,
opposite the north entrance, a wide arch
leads to the vestries, underneath a ple-
turesque projecting minstrels’ gallery, which
is entered from the upper vestry, In the
gacristy admirable paintings of Bishop Sel-
wyn, Bishop Willlam Willlams, Bishop
Stuart, Bishop W. L. Williams, Dean Hovell,
and Archdeacon 8 Willlams, have been
placed, They ave from the brush of Herr
Lindauer, and the credit of having secuared
them for the diocese Is due to the Rey, J. C.
Eecles, wviear of Woodville. The following
are a few of the statisties relative to the
Cathedral:—Total length over all, 177 feet
6 Incheg: Lreadth over all, 57 feet 3 inches;
clegr Internnl  breadth, 49 feet 8 Inches:
breadth of transepts, 85 feet 9 Inches; length
of nave, 115 fect 6 inches: length of chancel,
48 feet 6 Inches; chapel, 38 feet 6 inches by
17 feet 6 Inches; helght, Internal, 58 feet;
cubie yards concrete foundation, 460; cuble
feet of white stone, 3500; bricks, 452,000;
timber, 109,000 feet.”

The Very Reverend DE BERDT HOVELIL,
Defin of the Cathedral Chapter of the Dio-
cese of Walapn and of Napler Cathedral, is
a sclon of the ancient and knightly Suffolk
family of Hovell, which Iz declared to be
an offshoot of the Royal House of Haut-
ville, “one of the most historleally Interest-
ing familles in Furope,” which gave Nor-
man Kings to MNaples, 8icily, Cyprus, and
Jernsalem (vide The Norman People, pp.
280, 2090y, The present representative of the
soenior line of the Hovell family iz Lord
Thurlow (vide Burke’s Peerage and Buarke's
Roval Descents). The Dbranch to which
Dean Hovell belongs left the County of
Suffolk about a bundred years ago and I8
now g2eated at Boreham Holt, near Elstree,
in Hertfordshire., The Deéan was born in
1850, being the eldest son of the late D,
Charles H. J. Hovell, formerly surgeon of
the drd Waikato Regt. and Brigade-Surgeou-
Lieutenant-Colonel. He was educated at
the King's School, Rochester, under that
prinee of headmasters, the Rev. Robert
Whiston, M.A., and succeeded in gaining,
by competitive examination in 1863, one of
the valuable scholarships pertaining to the
gchool, a similar one having been obtained
some time previously by Sir Edwin
Ammold, K.C.5.1., author of ‘““The Light
of Asia." It was originally intended that
Mr. Hovell should enter the English Clvil
Bervice, bt he declded to take Holy Orders,
and, with that oebject In view entered, In
1868, 8t. Boniface College, Warminster,
and, in 1809, St. Augustine's College, Can-
terbury. At this latter seat of learning, Mr.
Hovell secured in 1870, the Whytehead
Greek Testament Prize, one of the blne rib-
bons of the college. He was also, at the
same time, a prominent athlete, being eap-
tain of his college ericket eleven and foot-
ball fifteen, In 1873, together with several



other candidates, he was ordained deacon
in Bombay Cathedral by Bishop Douglas.
After his ordination he was statloned at
Kolapore, bl resident  in iombay
during the arsee-Mohammedan disturb
aneces in the latter ecity in 1874 He came to
New Zealand (whither his father had pre-
cediod him) in 1875, having been appointed
a member of the stafll of the Tro-Cathedeal
Church of 5t. Mlichael and All Angels In
Christchurch. In the following year he
wias unanimously nominated to the ineum-
beney of the united parishes of All Saints',
Prebbleton, St Saviour's, "Templeton, anil
8t. Mary's. Halswell, where he remainei
for a little over two years. During the tinte
that he held this charge the church at
Prebbleton was considerably enlarged el
two new bells were added to the peal. In
1878, upon the strong recommendation of
the late DPrimate of New Zoulind, M
Hovell was offercd and accepted the Indn-
beney of St. John's, Napier, the old PPro-
Cathedral ehinreh of the diocese of Walapa,
Before leaving Prebbleton, his parishioneis
presented him with a richly iHuminated ad-
dress on vellum, and a purse of nearly n
hundred sovereigns, while his  Masonie
friends gave him an exceedingly handsome
gilver salver, elaborately chased and saitalily
inscribed, “as a token of their affection and
esteem.'  On taking charge of the Napier
parish, Mr. Hovell found matters in a mosl
disconraring and  dizorganised condition,
The only existing Chureh of Eugland bulld-
ings in the town were an excccdingly ugly
wooden chareh which stond where the pre-
sent deanery lawn now extends, and a damp
unsnitable house whieh had been used ng a
residence by the previouns ncumbent. There
were only thirty persons registered as com-
municants for the whole of XNapler, and
there was not even a bunilding for Sumiday
gchool purposes. On the other Dand a debt
of £1300 was In existence. Ten yvearz passed
away, and how great a change had heen
effected was siated by Dr. Stunrt, Bishop
of the Diocese In an address to his Diocesan
Synod delivered in Napier on Tuesday, 27th
of September, 1887, in which he referred in
grafifying terms to the outward and mate-
rial progress of the church in Napier and
the uniiring energy amd =ound judgment of
the Incumbent of 8t. John's, which had econ-
tributed so greatly to the marked fmprove-
ment vigible on all sides. Napler Cathedral,
referred to by RBizhop Stuart as Dean
Hovell's magnum opus, was conseerated in
the presence of an Immense congregation in
December, 1888: and, when the Cathedral
Chapter was formed in 1889, and the Bizshop
announced that he intended to appoint Mre.
Hovell to the high office of Dean, the state-
ment was received in the Diocesan Synod
with loud cheers. As an example of the
Dean's influence with his people it may be
mentioned that on Sunday, 21st July, 1895,
he asked the Cathedral congregation to for-
ward him, during the following week, a st
of £1000 for the purpose of clearing off a
lHability  which still remalned upon the
Cathedral. All through the intervening days
contributions flowed in, and, on the suceeed-
ing Bunday, the Dean carried into the Cathe-
dral, upon the brazen alms dish, a sum of
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£1230 in cheques, notes, gold, silver, and
copper, and placed it upon the altar, while
the congregation rose as one man and sang
the Doxology with thrilling effect. The
Dean has also, upon occasion, brought his
influence to bear in the direction of making
for peace in the eommunity. It was largely
through his influenes and that of Father
Grogan, that the strike of the Napier Break-
water labonrers was brought to an end in
October, 1806. He has been a prominent
I'reemason for many years, and §is8 past
grand chaplain of the Grand Lodge of
New Zealand, past district grand echap-
lain of the English Constitation, and
also a past master: He at present
holds office as chaplain of Lodges Bceinde
and Victoria In Napier. He is, further, a

NAET,

past master of the Boclety of Loyal United
Friends, and a past chief ruler of the Order
of Rechabites. TFor twenty years he has
acted as chaplain of the Napler Garrison,
was appointed chaplain of the Wellington
iattalion upon its formation several years
aro, and has Iately been appointed chaplain
of the Kast Coast Battalion. He has been
a member of the General Synod of the
“hurch of the Provinee of New Zealand for
many years, and iz also a member of the
Standing Committee of the Diocese of
“':11:1]1“,- a dioeesan nominator, and an asses-
gsor of the Bishop's Court. He married, in
1876, BEmily, yvounger daughter of the late
AMr. George Ffiteh of Woodstock Station,
Canterbury, New Zealand, and formerly of
Felsted in the County of Essex, who was



134

oneé of the original land purchasers under
the Canterbury Association; by her he has
had four children, three of whom survive,
In 1596 his portralt, painted by Ierr Liu-
diauer of Woodville, was presented to him
at the annual session of the Diocesan Synod.
As a lectorer and preacher he is widely
known., A writer, who had attended one of
the Cathedral services, thus describes him,
in the columns of the Napier *Hyening
News" of 20th February, 1803:—“*The Very
Rev, the Dean, habited in his surplice, is
in the pulpit, In full view of the congrega-
tion and just in front of the Sanctuary
screen, and there stands before us here o
kindly, cultured gentleman of refinement
and sensibility, a typical Englishman of the
eduecated elass. The sermon is an admirable
one, splendidly delivered and deeply in-
teresting, scholarly Dut telling, spiritual but
sparkling, full of homely Hlustration as well
as logie and eloguence, and breathing
throughout a splrit of devotion. Looking
at him as he stands preaching in the noble

bullding which has been erected chiefy
through his energy and power one is re
minded of the words applied to Sir Chris-
topher Wren, the designer of Bt. I'aul’s,

‘i monumentom reguiris, ecircunmspice.””

Mr. WILLIAM THOMAS SHARTY, Organ-
Ist of Napler Cathedral, iz a professor of

music with a high colonial reputation. Ee
wis born in Lauoneceston, Tasmania, in 18563,
and is the son of Mr. Thomas Sharp, for

many years organist of St. John's chiureh in

that town, and formerly organist of St
George's, Ramsgate, Euglund. The subject
of thirg sketeh received from his father his

earlivet musieal instructionand made =omuch
that at the

Progress nge of ten yoars lie

Me W. T.

SHAHP,

played in Launceston, during the temporary
absence of his father, his first full choral
service. His ordinary education was received
at the Sydney Grammar School, and at the
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John's, Ashtield, Sydney.

awarded to an organist

ordinary terms of commendation.
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age of thirteen he was appointed organist of
S8t John's, Bishopthorpe, Sydney. where he
had charge for a year of a full pipe organ,
He then aceepted an appointment at St

Rev. H,

E. TAYLOR.
avid’s, Surrey Hills, Sydney, which he suc-
After a period

of two years at St Matthias, Paddington,
Mr. Sharp was appointed organist of St

Here he remained
tin and in January, 1805, arrived in
Napler, where he took up his present posi-
tion., Mr. Sharp was fortunate In having an
opportunity of taking coaching lessons from
the late Mr. W. T. Best, the old Liverpool
oreanist, who for many years enjoyeid the
title of “the Prinee of Organists.” In later
yvears when Mr. Sharp applied for the post of
city organist nt the Bydoey Town Fall Mr.
warmly recommended his old puapil;
but while Mr. Sharp stood first on the list of
colonlal appljcants, the coveted position wus
from the Old World.
He occasionally played on
that zrandest of organs and speaks of it in
high terms of praise. Wherever Mr. Sharp
has carried on the duties of his profession
he has opinions and on the
oceasion of his departure from Ashfield was
the recipient of an Hluminated address and
purse of soverelgns, In various parts of the
Colonies, he has given In all
hundred organ recitals, and the
“Syduney Morning Herald™ and other leading
papers  spenk of his  performances in no
Sinee his
nrrival in Napier, Mr. Sharp has been very
successful with. his recitals saond muosical
people are looking forward to o new organ
for the Cathedral which will enable him to
prove whal produced from a Arst-
T 1885 he was married to
a -daughter of Mr, Edwin Wilkinson Har-
bron, .of Sydney, and bas six children.
Farther reference to Mr. S8harp as a teacher
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ST. AUGUSTINE'S CHURCH, Napier,
occupies a picturesque site in Bower Street,
and was erected in 1882, The cheir is under
the conductorship of Mr. C. P. Lound.

THE REV. HENRY EDWARD TAYLOR,
the Vicar of St. Augustine's Church, Napier,
had & long clerical experience in England, and
came to this Colony with the object of retiring.
His health, however, so greatly improved with
the favourable climate that we was pressed
into active service again. Mr. Taylor was born
in Manchester, England, in 1858, and is a son of
the late Mr. Francis Taylor, J.P., of that city,
a prominent member of the Manchester Reform
and Cobden Clubs, of both of which he was one
of the founders. Mr. Taylor, the elder, was
also associated with the late Right Hon. W.
E. Forster in the cause of education. He was
also a prime mover in the agitation which
found ils expression in the passing of the first
Ballot Act: and in this connection he was
appointed to manage the test ballot held in
Manchester in 1869, when Messrs. Ernest Jones
and Milner Gibson were the candidates, and
the valuable evidence he gave before a com-
mittee of the House of Commons on the suc-
cegsful working of the system, had much
influence in hastening the reform. His
suggestions on the bankruptey laws were very

the musical sectlon of

valuable, and led to useful reforms also in that
connection. As a partner of Mr. T. B, Potter,
M.P. for Rochdale, Mr. Tavlor, senior, wis
warm personal friend and supporter of the
late Mr. John Bright. The Rev. Mr, Taylor
was educated at St. Andrew’s College, Brad-
field, Berkshire, and at Somersetshire College,

Bath.

He was intended for an engineer, and

Mg, CG. P.

Loumb.

engaged in that calling for some fime with
the celebrated firm of Mather and Platt, of
Sallord, engineers to the Czar of Russia. It
was intended that Mr. Taylor should go fo



Russia, but at the age of eighteen he was
8o severely injured by a boiler explosion that his
hife was despaired of, and, being unable to
wilk for more than five years, he was obliged
to give up all thought of continuing in that
profession, When sufficiently recovered to
think of further employment, Mr. Taylor
decided upon entering the medical profession,
and he studied medicine and walked the hos-
pitals of Liverpool. On the recommendation
of his brother, the Rev. R. Hunsley Taylor,
he, however, decided to take Holy Orders, and
in 1878 he was ordained deacon at Worcester
to the curacy of All Baints’, Coventry. In
1882 he was appointed to the curacy of Dart-
mouth in Devonshire, and while labouring
there was ordained priest by Bishop Temple,
then Bishop of Exeter. His next move was
to Stalbridge, in Dorset, where he took the
place of Capnon Fox, now of Gisborne, Mr.
Taylor laboured at St. Decuman's in
Somersetshire, at Hasitings in Sussex, where
he was chaplain at the Fisherman’s Church,
and at Great Woolston, Salop, of which place
he was vicar from 1890 to 1895. In the latter
year Mr. Taylor came to this Colony, per
“Ruahine,” and settled at Haveloek. Whila

also
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residing there he officiated occasionally at Te
Aute, Waipawa and other places, until 1598,
when he accepted his present charge. He was
married in 1880 and has four sons.

Mr. CHARLES FPHILIFP LOUND, the
energetic Choirmaster of 8t, Augustine's
Church, and the popular Secretary and Li-
brarinn of the Napier Working Men's Clab,
has had a varied and interesting eareer,
iorn In London In 1850, the son of the late
Mr. Thomas Lound, he was educated partly
in London and partly In Aueckland, where,
with his parents, he landed in 1859, from
the ship “Harwood.” Joining the Colonial
forces, Mr. Lound served under Colonel
Whitwore on both coasts of the North
Island and took part in the memorable yet
fruitless hunt after Te Kootl. For some
twelve or eighteen months he was sergeant
in charge of the field hospital in the Patea
district. A lover of musie, Mr. Lound has
throughout his life more or less con-
nected with bands and musical societies.
Beginning as a member of the band of the
MNapier Rifles, he rose to be bandmaster,
and has filled similar posts in the artillery
and other bands. His spare time is

been
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almost wholly devoted to St. Augustine's
cholr, of which he is choirmaster. He is,
however, a member of the orchestra of the
Working Men's Club, his instroment being
the flute. Mr. Lound s a member of
Masonic Lodge Scinde, and he is both dis-
trict secretary of the Ancient Order of
Foresters and secretary of Court Sir Charles
Napler. For upwards of fifteen years he has
been secretary of the Working Men's Club,
but It was some years later that his entire
services were needed. Now, however, he
is in attendance all day and on three even-
ings each week. The success of the club,
which has been almost phenomenal, is
largely due to the assiduity of the secretary;
tov much pralse e¢an hardly be bestowed
upon hiim for the care and attention which
have marked the execntion of his many
duties. Mr. Lound was married in 1877 o
i danghter of the late Mr, R. Lawrence, of
'J‘.lr.muh and has a son and daughter, both

of whom are members of St. Avgustine’s
choir.

THE ROMAN CATHOLIC CHURCH,
Napier. The foundation of the Catholie

Mission in Napler dates as far back as 1859

I‘

% d o 1 t“[]‘m jmq 1 th T
l‘“ i 1 I il

O -—“mm P

or. Parricx’s (R.C.) CHukcH, NAPIER.



136

when Father Regnier, S.M., built the frst
church, swhich is =till in an execellent state
of preservation and iz now used by the
Marist Brothers a8 a school. Tt was in the
same year, owing to the large number of
Roman Catholies amongst the soldlers, that
Napier was first separated from Meaneo,
and Father Forest was appointed the first
resident priest. Through the liberality of
Mr. Thomas Fitzgerald (first superintendent
of Hawke's Bay), who gave n grant of land
to the new mission, Father Forest was soon
able to build a presbytery on one of the
most beautiful sites In Napler, known as
“Holy Mount."” IPather Forest’'s most im-
portant work was the erection of the con-
vent and schools for givls in 1563, with the
introduction of the Sisters of “Our Lady of
the Missions™ In 1865, About the same time
Father Regnier, who still had charge of the
Meanee mission, erected in the Napier Con-
vent grounds a1 native school for half-caste
girls and ether poor children, an institution
which has since under the able care of tho
Sisters acquired an excellent reputation.
This school is subsidised by the Government
and visited twice a year by the Government
inspector for Natlve schools. At present
there are at the school over sixty Maord
and half-caste pupils, many of whom are
sent from other parts of New Zealand by
the Government to take out their scholar-
shipsunder the Bisters. Father Forest next set
himszelf to erect 86 Mary's Chareh, a handsome
structure of kauri timber with fine slated
roof, beauntiful stalned glass windows, and
a handsome marble altar, the whole costing
£2300. St. Mary’s is eapable of seating 450
persons. The last work of Father Forest
was the introduction of the Marvizst Brothers,
the first branch in the Colonles of the teach-
Ing order founded in 1837 by Father Cham-
pagnat at St. Genis, near Lyons, FPrance,
The present Catholie population of Napler
Is about 1400, and the number of children
attending the convent, including boarders
and Marist Brothers’ school, is over 380 in
all. These schools are nndoubtedly amongst
the most efficient in the «Colony. This pro-
gress required more school aceommodation

as well as a residence for the Brothors,
which cost £1200. TFather Forest, after
twenty-slx yvears’ misslonary labours in

Napier, died in 1884 In his eightieth year.
Shortly after the arrival in Napier of the
present Inenmbent, Father Grogan, he saw
that 8t. Mary's church was neither large
nor central enough for the requirements of
his numerous congregation. His first step
was to purchase a site for a1 new edifice in
the heart of the ecity, and 1894 saw his
labours crowned with success in the comple-
tion of 8t. Patrick’s churclh, usually called
Bt. Datrick’'s Cathedral, which is a fine
structure of Kaurl, of pure Gothie style
throughout, and Is eapable of seating about
700 people. It was built at a cost of £3500,
The beautiful stalned glass windows weps
imported from Lyons, and the bell, which
welghs half a ton, was ecast by the well
known firm of DBourdon and Co., of that
city. The tall elegant spire of 8t. Patrick's
is the first object to attract the eye on ap-
proaching Napier by train. Besides two
pretty cottages adjoining the chureh which

Father Grogan can use as a
when it way sult him. he
another site adjeining the
new presbytery, the erection of which
is to be taken in hand at once after the
new convent is completed,

preshytery
has purchased
church for n

The Rev. FATHER GROGAN, 8.M.. who
was appointed in 1884, is a native of County

Bev. Fararr GROGAXN.

Tyrone, Ireland, was educated partly in
France and partly at St. Mary's Collegoe,
Dundalk, where he received priest's orders,
and arvrived in New Zealand o 1897, com-
meneing his missionary career as  curate
with Father Forest in Napler. Twelve
months later e was appointed to the parish
of Hawers, where he bullt two churches
and a presbytery and worked with great
ecnergy for four years. Desides the Napier
parish, Father Grogan had formerly charge
of Wairon, a small but rising station abont
glxty miles from Napier, in which he also
did much good work, and when giving up
its charge was able to hand over £210
towards the building of the new presbytery
to his Father Lepetre.  Asso.
ciated with Father Grogan in the parish of
Napler Iz Pather Bell, who eame out from
London some slx years ago,

BINOCESE0T,

THE CONGREGATIONAL
Napier. The erection of a new building
Is contemplated, Services are now held in
the Foresters' Hall.

The Rev. HENRY WILLIAM JOHN
MILLIIR, Minister of the Congresationnl
Church in Napier, was born In Solio, London,
in 1858 and is the son of the late Mr. Henry
Miller, of Yorkshire. He was educated at
the Congregational College, Nottingham, and
also attended Glasgow University for one
session, filling at the same time the pasto-
riate of the Hutchesontown Congregational
Chureh, Glasgow. He was ordained in 1882,

CHURCH,
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It consequence of ill-health, Mr. Miller was
recommended to try o more equable elimate
and came to thizs Colony by the ship “Wai-
roa,”” arriving in Welllogton., Mr. Millor
gecepted a eall to the pastoriate of the Oune.
hunga Congregational Chureh In 1883 and
laboured there for a little over eleven years,
purchasing a fine chureh property and largely
inereasing the church membership. He
beeame the first distriet secretary for the
Auckland district and was twice elected
chairman, and in 1803 was  eleeted
chairman of the Congregational Union of
New Zealand., Im the following year the
Congregational Upion asked Mr. Miller to
inaugnrate services in Napier and he at onee
entersed upon the work in which he is now
g0 busily engaged. He iz secretary of the
rohibition League and the Hawke's Bay
Auxiliary of the Bible Society. For the past
three years he has been representing the
Napler electorate in the Prohibition Council
of the Wellington, Hawke's Bay, and Tara-
naki provincial convention. He was mairl d

Rev. H. W. J. MiLLER.

in 1882 to the daughter of Mr, Daniel Jones,

of Normanton, Yerkshive, and
daughters and three sons.

bas two

SocraL.

THE NAPIER CLUB, which occupies a
special suite of rooms at the Clarendon Cluo
Hotel, has n membership of about sixty.
Messrs John McVay (president), Vigor Brown
(vice-president), ¥. Bes, K. J. Duncan, C. B.
Hoodley, 8. J. Jago, and A. A. Kennedy (com-
mittee), and Mr. S. 5. Revans (secretary). The
sorial room is very large and comfortably fur-
nished and the library and card-rooms are
pleasant and cosy. The billiard-room is large
and well appointed. Visitors introduced by
members are placed upon the honorary list.

Mr. SAMUEL STEBBING REVANS, Secre-
tary of the Napier Club, is well and favourably
known in commercial and banking circles and



has bigen in t.e Colony over a third of a cen-
tury. He was Dborn near Montreal, Canada,
in 1835, and is a son of the late Dr. Stebbing
Revans of Canada and nephew of the late Mr.
Samuel Hevans, whose name figured promin-
ently in the early history of Wellington as
secretary of the first New Zealand Association
and as proprietor and printer of the first news-
paper published in the province of Wellington,
or indeed in the Colony. Hducated in Canadsg,
Mr. 5. 5. Hevans was engaged there in com-
mercial and banking pursuits and came to
New Zealand via London in 1862, landing in
Auckland from the ship “Africa” in August
of that year. He joined the Bank of New
Zealand at Aunckland and remuained in its ser-
vice unfil 1895, when he retired on a pension,
after having been either accountant or managor
at Christchurch, Wellington, Hokitika, Ash-
burton, Waimate, Nelson, and Napier. M.
Revans has since been engaged in commercial
pursuits in Napier. Mr. Revans is captain of
the Napier Boating Club, of which he is also
a life member, and he is a member of the
Napier Howing Club.

THE NAPIER PARK RACING CLUB'S
COURRE i=s situated at Taradale, three miles
from Napler, and is a block of beauntifully
Inid out grounds, containing about eighty-
two acres, The original cost of the land was
{4000 Lint ginee its gequisition over £10,000
hias been spent In lmprovements, it being the
alm of the club to make Napler Park one of
the finest recreation grounds In the Colony.
planting have been
ciarried out, the beautiful belts of trees
giving a grateful shade on summer days.
The grand stand is one of the finest In New
Zealand ,and theonlysimilarstrueture which
can claim a superiority is that of the Auck-
Lind Metropolitan Club. There is a second
stund outside the enclosure eapable of
accommodating five huandrved people. Tn
front of the stand, which Is built on a rise,
is 4 beauntiful terrace leading to the lawn.

txtensive operations
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Below the stand and approached from the
terrace by two wide flights of massive stone
steps of easy grade, are the luncheon rooms,
retiving roomg, stewnrds' roomn, telegraplh
office, and press room, and all otheér necessary
There are large sadidling paddocks,
ranges of loose hoxes and stabling to aceom-
modate thivty The race meestings
are yvery popularand always draw very larg.:
attendances, The following are the officers
of the club:—Messrs, John Close (president),
J. McYay (vice-presidenty, John DBennelt
(judge), K. W. Knpowles (treasurer), A. T,
Danvers (secretary and bhandicapper). The
stewards are Messrs, (. H, Swan, I. Bick:
nell, W. Heslop, FF. Moeller, F. Ormond,
J. G. Swan, R. Sweetapple and F. G, Smith.

Mr. A, T. DANVERS, the popular and
capable Secretary and Handicapper, who
hias filled those positions since the beginning
of the club, iz a native of Surrey, England,
and n descondant of one of the oldest and
most prominent English families, the founder
of which, Rolande I Envers, came over with
Willinm  the Conguerer in 1066 and was
endowed by that grateful monareh with
lares ostates at Calvert: His father, Mr.
Frederick Samuel Danvers, belonged to the
old East India Company's serviee, and his
brother, Mpr. Frederick Charles Danvers, s
resident general in the Indian service, 'The
subject of this sketeh was edueated for the
Royal Navy, but having o great desire to see
New Zealand he eame to Auckland in 1858
where he was engaged in farming for about
five years and removed to Hawke's Bay in
1558 before it wasdeclareda provionee. In 1852
he went Home for a trip and returned to
Hawke's Bay in 1864, since which time he
has practised as a veterinary surgeon. In
nddition to his position with the XNapier
Park Clob, Mr. Danvers Is handienpper and
referee for the Gun Club and handicapper
for a number of country racing ¢lubs. He
also saw active service Inm 1866 duaring the

offees.

horses.
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Maori wars in the Hawke's Bay militian, was
at the battle of Omaranui and has received
the New Zealand medal. Mr. Danvers, who
resides at Hastings, is married and has threa
sons and two daunshters.

MusicaL.

HOREN, SYDNEY IFFRANCIS, Teacher of
Musle, Napler. Mr. Hoben is one of a small
band of musicians upon whom the “Review
of Reviews" recently declared the future of
New Zealand musie rested. Born in Sydney
in 1866 of New Zealand parcuats, he came to
this Colony as a child and early evineced
decided talents as a musician, making the
pianoforte his instrument. After appearing
as a juvenile phenomenon of a healthy type
and going on tour he was finally sent to the
famous Hoyal Conservatorium of Lelpsic.
Here, so thoroughly hod he been grounded
by his mother, who so far had been his only
teacher, that he at once beran a brilliant
carecr and was appearing at the “Abends™
within three mouths of his arrival—an un-
precedented thing in a new pupil. He had
as masters in pianoforte vortrag so famous
a man as Dr. Carl Reinecke, for technigue,
the great Professor Zwintscher, for theory,

the eminent contra-puntalist Professor
Gustavy Schreck, and for voice production,
violin, languages, ete., other eminent

members of the professorial staff. After n
time the yvoungcoloninl became affected with
over stndy amd acquired a form of nervons
digorder of the arms which afilicts many of
the most distinguished pianists and from
which he still suffers. After treatment in
Europe he apparently recovered, but just ns
the artist was about to acceept a starring
engagement in England, his bhealth com-
pletely broke down and he was ordered bhack
to the Colony in the hope of restoration,
Ie settled in Napier where his brother then
was, and where his genernl health was
larpely regained. After a successful concert
tour of the Colony he returned to Napler
tenching suecessfully £l his health beeame
sufficiently restored to permit of his depar.
ture for Sydney In January, 1806, During
i stay In Euarope, Mr. Hoben contributed
to the press a brilllant series of articles
upon “Student Life in Leipsie,” which
attracted wide attention, and bas done much
other literary work. His compositions are
of a high order, aml his songs are sung hy
artists like Mesdames Sapio aod Belle Cole

and AMr. A, H. Gee, and his compositions
porformed by Madame Camilla Urso andd
artizts of like ealibre,

SHARP, WILLIAM THOMAS, Professor

of Musle, Clyde Road, Napier, Mr. sharp, tn
whom reference Is made In connection with
the Napler Cathedral, of which he is the
popular organist, has teaching the
planoforte and singing in Napier for the past
four years and his numerous puplls have
been very successful with the Trinity College
examinafions. Before his teaching connec-
fion became S0 extensive, he was orranist
for the Masonie lodge, but that position he
was  reluetantly  compelled to  relinguish
thronuzeh pressure of time.  For additional
particulars of his career readers are referred
to the Napler Hecleslastieal sectlon of this
volume,

heen
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WINDER, WILHELM RICHARDS (late
of the Conservatoire of Prague), Professor of
Violln and Singing, Napler. Herr Winder
wis born in Austria in 18684 and iz the son
of the eminent vielinist and conductor of
that name. Iis carly musical training was
received under good masters in his native
town and he entered the Celebrated Conser-
vatoire of Prague. Herr Winder then joined
one of the Austrian Infantry Regsimental
Bunds, under the conductorship of Kreal and
the celebrated Cibulka. After leaviog the
army, he practigsed his profession in Vienns,
Italy, and Russin, finally emigrating to
Awmeriea, where he carrled on his practice in
New York and Boston. Owing to ill-health he
ceturned to his native land and after visiting
the rreat musical centres of the Continent
cime to New Zealand In 1898, landing at Wel-
lington, BShortly afterwards he received au
invitation from the musical people of Napier
and Hastings and proceeded there where his
undoubted abilities have procured him =a
large and inereasing number of pupils from
amongst the principal families of Hawke's
Bay.

Newsparer Press.

“THE HAWEKE'S BAY HERALD" is one
of the oldest journals in the Colony, having
been founded while the districet was still part
of the provinee of Wellington. The rich
lands sarrounding the Bay and for many
miles Inland were being sold and the revenne
was belng expended in Wellington, while
Hawke's Bay was left practically roadless,
This was, of course, most nnsatisfactory to
the settlers and a movement for separation
wis Inaungurated, the promoters of which
keenly felt the need of a newspaper to n=sist

Mz. J. Woop
{ The first Proprietor of the “ Herald "),

them, and Mr. James Wood, an Auckland
Journalist, was Induced to start the *““‘Her-
ald,” the first number of which appeared on
the 24th of SBeptember, 1857, It was a very

small sheet, izssued weekly at first, but soon
afterwards was published twlee a week,
Early in 1871 Mr. Wood ventured to issue
a daily half-sheet, Mr. W. W. Carlile being
appointed editor. On the 1st of April of
that year the business was purchased from
Mr. Wood by Mr. I'. Dinwiddie (who had
been for-some time accountant to Mr, Wood),
My, Carlile amd Mpr. Morrizon, head of the
printing departinent, In 1878 Mr. Carlile
sold out his interest to his partuers, in the
following year Mr. Morrison sold his share
to Mr. Walker and the style of the firm wis
then changed to Dinwiddie, Walker and Co.
The concern was in 188G turned into @
Hmited liability company, Messrs, Dinwiddie
ind Walker retaining large Interests to-
gether with their respective positions of
businessz manager and editor. In December
of the same year a disastrons fire occurred
in Napier and the “Herald's"” premises and

Mg. MorrisoN
(e af the carly Propriclors).

plant were, with many other properties in
the neighbourhood, completely destroyed.
The present handsome brick and stone pre-
mises were then erected at a cost of about

£5000,  The “Herald' 18 not a violent party
organ, but tankes a strong anti-socialistic
stamd. It is par excellence the paper of the

connfry settlers and devotes much attention
to pastoral and agricultural matters. As an
exponent of public opinion, the “Hawke's
Bay Herald' is consistent in its poliey. Its
leading colnmng are always readable, the
subjects treated, especially politieal subjects,
are not done fo death, and a great deal of
information Is disseminated In an Interesting
and agreeable form. As a commercial enter-
prise the “Herald' is a flourishing concern,
Its plant is on a comprehensive secale, sult-
able to all the requirements of the town and
district. The quality of lithographic, job-
printing, and book-binding work issued from
the “Herald" office will compare favourably
with that executed In much larger towns.
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Mr. PETER DINWIDDIE was born In
Manchester in 1838, is the fourth son of Mr.
John Dinwiddie, contractor and bullder of
that city, and served an apprenticeship in the

Mz, P. Dixwippie,

well-known  export  warchouse of John
ender and Co., the head of which firm was
afterwards knighted for his serviees in con-
nection  with  the establishment of the
Eastern Cable Company. Mr. Dinwiddie left
Home on aecount of ill-health apd came out
to New Zealand in 1863 to join a brother who
had been in business for somwe time in the
Colony. After bhe arvived in Napier in Octo-
ber, 1863, he for g short time assisied his
brother, Mr. John Dinwiddie, as accountant
and was for a period with Mr. Vautier
Janisch, auctioneer and shipplng agent.
Bubsequently he became acconntant to Mr.
Wood, proprietor of the “Herald.," which
position he retained uootil 1871, when, in
conjunction with Messrs., Carlile and Morri-
son, he bought the property with which he
has ever sinee been conpected. During the
native tronbles Mr. Dinwiddie saw a good
deal of =ervice as a volunteer amd holds the
New Zealand war medal, Mr. Dinwiddie is
chairman of directors of the Btare-Bowkett
Inilding Society, a member of the Napler
Borongh Council anid Harbour Board, and
takes: a genernl - Interest in
matters. He is an ex-president of the Naorth
Island Bowling Associatlonand of the Napler
Bowling Club, and still takes a great Interest
in bowling matters. He was married n 18572

comimereial

to  the second danghter of Mro John
MeKinnon, of Arapawanui, and has four

sons aml four daughters.

Mr, RICHARD THOMAS WALKER,
FEditor of the “Hawke's Fay Herald," was
harn in Manchester in 1854 and eduncated at
Turton Hall, Yorkshire, his father, i,
Richard Walker, of Manchester, having died
before the subject under notice was two



years old. Mr. Walker served an apprentice-
ship on the “Harwich Newsman,” subse-
quently acting as reporter on the “‘Surrey
Advertiser” and the “Richmond and Twicken-
ham Times." He came to New Zealand in
1876 per ship “Plako' landing at Lyttelton
en route for Napier and joined the staff of
the “*Wellington Evening Post,” of which he
became 2ub-editor and where he remained
until his removal to Napler In 1879, In 1886
Mr. Walker was married to a danghter of
Mr., A, J. Allom, who arrived in Wellington
In 1842 as a4 member of the survey stafl in
Auckland, an interesting account of whose
career appedars in the Aunckland volume of

Mr. R. T. WALKER.
ihis work. Mrs. Walker died on the 23rd of
October. 1808, leaving two daughters.
“THE NAPIER DAILY TELEGRAPH"
came into existence In February, 1871, pro-
Jected by a company for the purpose of pro-
viding an independent newspaper, untram-
melled by party or sect. The company did
not live long as its shareholders failed to
realise the difficulty of the task they had
undertaken. Before a year had expired
Messrs, Alex. Kennedy, T. K. Newton, G, I,
Lee, and E. W, Knowles became the pro-
prietors of the journal, which they deter-
mined to earry on as an exponent of the
Liberal policy originally announced on its
first i=sue. In 1880 the present proprietor,
Mr. E. W. Knowles, became sole owner,
and since that time it has been managed by
ki, At the commencement of ity career the
“Daily Telegraph™ was under the manage-
ment of Mr. . Halkett Lord, the editorial
chair being filled by Mr. Hayes, who was
shortly afterwards succeeded by Mr. Robert
Price, who ably edited the paper until 1893
when he resigned his position to enter Into
pastoral pursnits. Mr. Price was sueceeded
by Mr. I&. Martin, a eapable journalist well
known in Otago and Southland, whose con-
nection with the “Daily Telegraph' was cut
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short by sudden death from heart disease,
and he was succecded by Mr. John W,

Mr. E. W. KExowrnes.

MeDougall, the present editor. The “Tale-
graph' ls a well-written and outspoken
paper, of decidedly democratie principles.
Mr. E. W, KNOWLESR, the I'roprietor of
the *“‘Dailly Telegraph,” comes of an old
English family settled for many generations
in Kent, He was born at Maldstone, in that
county, in 18338, where he was also educated,
Deciding to try his fortunes in a new
country, he left England for New Zealand,
arriving In Aackland early In 1856 and com-
mencing business in that city, but in the
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following yvear he proceeded to Hawke's Bay
and from then till 1856 carrvied on in Napler
a wine and spirit and grocery business. This
he relinguished in the Iatter year and he has
since given hiz whole attention to the
management of the “Dally Telegraph,” now
In the twenty-ninth year of a flourishing
existence, Mr. Knowles is an excellent and
active business man, and his beantifal home
and grounds on the hill overlooking the town
and bay are well-known in the district., He
is married to a davghter of the late D, J. A1
Brown, of London, nnd has one danghter
living.

M. J. W. MeDouoAtL,

Sed -P”‘I';r"' T4

Mr., ExowLes' IESIDENCE.
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Mr, JOHN W. MeDOUGALL, Editor of
the “Dially Telegraph,” was born at Peter-
borough, Northamptonshirve, in 1548, He is
of Scoteh descent, hiz father belonging to an
olil Argyleshire family, several of whose
members have served the Empire with dis-
tinetion in  Capnda and  India. Mr.
Meliougall was educated in London, where
he also married. Leaving England with his
wife very shortly afterwards, he first
tounched New ZXealand soll at 'ort Chalmers,
For a few years he led the e of a settler,
and was engaged in varioos contracts in
Canterbury. I'uring this period he was a
contributor to varions newspapers, princi-
prlly on politieal and social subjects, Coming
to Napier in 1877 he for some time combined
building operations with Hterary work, but
his writings having brought him into notice,
he was in 1880 offered the position of editor
of the “Walpawa Mall,” which he aceepted
and sinee that time has been engaged solely
In Journalistic pursults. In 1581 Lhe unsuccess-
fully coutested the Napler seat in the House
of Representatives, In the following vear he
joined the literary stafl of the “Hawke's
Bay Herald” and continued hiz connection
with that journal till 1894, when he beeame
sditor of the “Dinfly Telegraph.' He married
1 daughter of Mr. Edward Downey, of Slep-
ney, London, and has six sons

LEGAL.

LAW SOCIETY, Hawke's Bay Branch. The
uaw Society of New Zealand has a branch in
wch judicial distriet of the Colony, and that
f Hawke's Bay, with its head-quarters in
Napier, judicionsly guards the interests of the
wrofession.

Mr, E. H. WIinrzame,

Mr. EDWARD HEATHCOTE WILLIAMS,
President of the Hawke's Bay District Law
Society, for 1898, practises his profession at
Napier and Hastings. He was born in 1839
at the Bay of Islands, is a son of Mr. John
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William Williams, of Napier, and therefore
grandson of the late Archdeacon Henry Wil-
liams. Educated at the Church of England
Gruommar School, Parnell, Auckland, under
Dr. Kinder and Mr. Adams, Mr. Williams
joined the staff of the Colonial Bank at Wel-
lington, and after three vears' experience was
in 1879 articled to Mr. H. D. Bell, of Wellinz-
ton, and admitted a barrister and solicitor of
the Supreme Court in 1883, He commenced
practice in Hastings in 1884, and in 1888 opened
his Napier office. Mr. Williams is solicitor to
the Hastings Borough Council, Hastings Build-
ing Society, Bank of New Zealand, Hastings,
Bank of Australasia, Napier, and many other
corporations, He is a keen supporter of the
game of cricket and holds the presidency of
the Hawke's DBay Cricket Association. On
the formation of the New Zealand Cricket
Council he was unanimously elected the coun-
cil's tirst president and is now vice-president
of that body.

COTTERILL AND HUMPPHRIES (Arthur
James Cotterill and Herbert Humphries),
Barristers, Solicitors, and Notaries Public,

Shakespeare Road, Napler. Telephone 27

.0, Box 50, Bankers, Bank of New Zea
land. ‘The firm act as solicitors for the

Duank of New Zenland, Bank of New South
Wales;, the New Zealand Loan and Merecan-
tile Agency Company, The New Zealand
Shipping Company, The Tyser Line Limited,
the Tollemache Estate, Messrs, Nelson
Bros., Lid.,, Messrs. Dalgety and Company,
Ltd., and many others.

Mr. ARTHUR JAMIES COTTERILL, the
Seufor Partner, s Crown Solleltor at Napler.
He was born in Colney, Norfolk, England,
in 1848, and is the son of the Iev. Canon
Cotterill, of Christchurch. Mr. Cotterill
wits educated at Christ's College and studied
for the law under Messrs. Hanmer and Har-
per, of Christehareh, and was admitted in
1873 by Mr. Justice Gresson. Mr. Cotterill
was appointed Crown Solicitor in 187T.

Mr. HERBERT HUMPHRIES was born
at Kidderminster, Worcestershire, Enzland,
in 1857, and is the son of Mr. John Hum-
phries, a carpet manufacturer. e was
cdueated at Brighton College and studied
law malnly with Messrs, Wllzon and Cot-
terill, of Napler, and was admitted in 18585
by Chief Justice 8ir James Prendergast.

CRESSWELL, JOSEPIH, Barrister
Solicitor, Tennyson Street, Napier. P.0O.
Box 43. Bankers, Baunk of New Zealand.
Mr. Cresswell was born at St. Kilda, near
Melbourne, In 18640, amd Is the son of the
late Mr, Hurdman Charles Cresswell, solici-
tor of that city. He was edueated at the
Wesley College, Melbourne, and admitted a
barrister and solicitor of the Supreme Counct
of New ZFealand in 1884 by the Iante Mr.
Justice Gillies. Mr. Cresswell has been
established in Napier since 1887, i= solicitor
for the Licensed Trades' Association anid
hag formed a very valuable connectlon. He
is n commissioner of the Supreme Counrt of
Vietorla. As a Mason Mr. Cresswell be-
longs to Lodge Scinde, amd he has held the
high office of prinecipal 2ojonrner of the Vie-
toria Royal Arch Chapter for about ten
yedars. He is an old member of the Druids,
and was for some years lieutenant in F Bat-

and
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tery of Artillery Volunteers. Mr. Cresswell
was married In 1830 to Miss Forbes, of Gis-
horne, and has five daughters and two sons,

DINWIDDIE, WILLIAM, RBarrister and
Solicitor, Browning Street, Napier. 1.0,
Box D3, Bankera, National Bank of XNew
Zonland. Wellington agent, Mr. Henry

Mz. W. Diswinpig.

Hull, Mr. William Dinwiddie is a son of
the Iate Rev., Willinm Dinwiddie, B.A..
LL.B., of Londen, who died there In 1887,
but who was for a few vears a resident in
Napier. Mr. Dinwiddie was born in London
In 1863, educated at the London University
College Sehool and ecame to this Colony with

his parents In 1882, On arrival he went
into the offlce of Messrs, Carlile and
McLean, of Napler, and was afterwards

with Messrs., Duncan, Clotterill, and Martin,
of Christechurch. Passing his examinations
in 1889, Mr. Dinwiddie was admitted a bar-
rister and solicitor of the Supreme Court
by the late Mr. Juastice Richmond at Wael-
lington, and immedintely commenced prae-
tice in Napier. He is secretary of the Napier
branch of the National Association and of
the Napler Athemmenm.

EENNEDY ANXND LUSK (Charles Dugall
Kennedy and Hugh Butler Lusk), Barris-
ters and Bolicitors, Herschell Street, Napler.
IO. Box 104; Telephone 280. Bankers,
Bank of New Zealand. Mr. Charles Ken-
nedy, the senior partner, is also the senior
partner of the firm of Messrs. Kennedy
Bros., civil engineers and surveyors, and par-
tleulars of his career are given in conned.
tion with the Hawke's Bay County Counell,
of which he is the engineer. Mr. Kennedy
takes an active part In both concerns, but

the court work is all nndertaken by Mr.
Lusk. AMr. Hugh Butler Lusk was born in
Mongonni, North Auckland, in 1866, and is

a son of Mr. Hugh Hart Lusk, barrister and
golicitor. Educated at the Auckland Col-



lege and Grammar School, the subject under
netice was articled to the late Mre. J. B.
Russell, of Messrs, Russell and Cpmpbell,
Avckland, IMassing hiz examination in 1889,
he was admitted to the Sopreme Court early
In the following year by Mr. Justice Conolly,
and became a partner with Mr. W, L. Rees,
the well-known barrister and ex-member of
the House of Representatives, under the
style of Rees and Lusk, «This partnership
was, however, dissolved in 1884, when. Mr.
Rees left Napler. Mr., Lusk then carrvied on
alone notil September, 1896, when he joined
AMr. Kennedy., Mr. Lusk igs an exceedingly
popular lawyer. As a cricketer, he stands
in the front rank as ond of *New Zealand's
representatives and the holdér of the bat-
ting recond of the Colony. IDuring the sea-
son 1585, his total score in first-elass cricket
was 1111, being the only one to exeeed three
firnres. Though batting is his strong point
he &8 0 poosd change bowler. He s also a
fulr tennis and golf-playver. He was mar-
ried In 1891 to o danghter of Mr, W. L. Rees,
and has two daunghters.

WILLIAMS, EDWARD HEATHCOTE,
Bavviater amd Solleitor, Browning Streef,
Napler. I".0O, Box 78; Telephone 208. Branch
nt Hastings,

Mepicar.

CARO, JACODB SELIG, M.D.., Berlin and
Melbourne, Tennyson Street, Napler. Dr,
Caro is a native of Prussia, was educated at
the Berlin University and gained his dip-
loma in 1862, After practising In Germany
for a short time he ecame to Brisbhane In
1RG2 by the ship “La Rochelle and prae-
tised there o few months, then proceeded to
Melbourne where he took the 1]!';.'.'!‘1.11.' of

Dr. F. 1. De LisLE.

Doctor of Medicine. He eame to New Zoea-
Iand and for twelve months practised his
profesion in Dunedin. He then removed to
the Nelson province for some years, and
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afterwards to Geraldine In 1866 remaining
there until 1870, when he was indoced to
ro to the West Coast of the Middle Island,
practizing for some years at Staffordtiown,
near Hokitika. In 1877 he removed to Na-
pler and soon established a reputation as a
speciallst In chlldren’s diseases, His liter-
ary contributions to the “Australasinn Medi-
cal Gazette' are well Eknown to his medical
brethren., Dr. Caro was the first to intro-
duce the anti-toxin treaxtment in New Zea-
Innd. About 1884 he took a trip Home,
visiting the prinecipal hospitals In England
and Europe. He has taken no part in public
aMairs sinee leaving Marlberough, where he
was a4 member of the County Counecil. In
18G4 he married Miss Malcolm of Richmond,
Nelson, Mrs. Caro is the first of the very
few qgunlitied Indy dentists and has been
in successful practice for vears.

DE LISLE, FREDERIC IRVING, L.R.C.T.
(Edin.), L.AM. L.8.A.L., Physician, Tenny-
son Street, Napier, Dr. de Lisle was born in
Guernsey, and educated at Elizabeth College,
He entered the Navy as a midshipman and
gerved several years, but retired to pursne
medieal stadiez in Guy's Hospital, and ob-
talned his first diploma In 1871,  During the
giege of Paris he was dresser to the English
Ambulance Corps. He obtained his finol
diploma in 1871 when he received the ap-
pointment of surgeon to St. 'eter’s Hospital,
Guernsey, a position he held for fonr years,
He came to the Colony In 1877 by the ship
“Himalaya" and commenced the practice of
his professlon Immediately afierwards at
Napler. Dr. de Lisle was a member of the
Napler Borough Couneil for two years, He
was also medical officer to several of the
friendly societies, bt in 1802 he severed his
connection with those bodies owing to his
Increasing private practice. He I8 surgeon
to the hospital, medical referee to the Aus-
trallan Mutual Provident Soclety, and health
officer for the Borough and gquarantine otficer
to the port.

JARVIS, J. H. E., MRCS3 (Eag),
L.R.C.P. (Lond), Physician and Suargeon,
Marine Parade, Napier. Dr. Jarvis came to
New Zealand in 1890 and shortly afiter
started practice at Hawke's Bay.

LOCKING, BENJAMIN, MR.C.S,
L.R.C.P., L.8.A. (Lond.), Phy=lcian and Suar-
roon, Tennyson Street, Napier. Dr. Locking,
after practising a number of years in Eng-
land, ecame to Nelson, where he practized
several years, and then removed to Napler
in 1804, He is medical referee to the
National Mutual, Citlzens, Anstralian
Widows, and Provident and Industrial Life
Insurance companies; meilical officer to the
Oddfellows and United Friends' Lodges, and
a member of the honorary medieal stall of
Napler Hospital, He 1z alzo sargeon-captain
to the East Coast Battalion of Rifle Volun-
teers and a member of the AMasonie body,
firat of the Victory Lodge, Nelson, and subse-
quently of thie Vietoria Lodge, Napier.

MENZIER, EDWARD, M.R.C.B.IL. (Lon-
don), Physician and Bargeon, Napler. Dr,
Menzles, who s Mediecal Officer of the Napler
Old Men's Refuge, has had a most interest-
ing eareer, and now at the ripeageof seventy-
eight years is still in the enjoyment of re-
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markably good health.
born at Xingston,

Dr. Menzies was
Jnmaiena, in 1820, his

Tather, Mr. Edward Menzies, being a chemist
that Island. He was edua-

and druggist in

Dr. E. Mexzies.
cated at Hall Place School, Baxley, Keont,
and studied for his profession at Guy's

Hospital, London, where he took his degree
of MLR.C.5.1.. in 1841. He entered the army
amd was all through the Crimean war.  Dr.
Menzies, during his thirty years' connection
with the Army spent nearly twenty rears of
that period in the various provinces of India,
two years in Turkey, four In Ching, and a
few months in Canada, and retired on a
pension In 1872 with the rank of inspector-
general of army hospitals. He then went to
Buenos Ayres, where he practised nntil 1874,
when on the death of his wife he left for
England. After six yvears spent in Bath,
Dir. Menzieg came to this Colony, enterad
into practice In Napler and was appointed
to the charge of the Napier Hospltal and the
(M Men's Refuge, retiving from the former
position In 189G, He has taken a general
interest in all public matters and is a mem-
ber of the I'hilogophical Soclety.

AMEXNZIES, PERCY WILLIAM, L.RCP
and LR.C.S (Edin), and LF.P. and 8
(Glas.), Herschell Street,  Napler. Dir.
Menzies, who esiablished his present prac-
tice In Napier in 1803, I8 honorary visiting
surgeon to the Napler Hospital, and medical
officer to severnl of the Friendly SBocleties,

MILNE-THOMSON, A., Physician and Sur-
geon, Napier. Dr. Milne-Thomson arrived in
Now Zealand in 1898. He is surgeon to Court
Captain Cook, Ancient Order of Foresters,
senior honorary surzeon to Napier Hoapital,
and medical referee for the Australian Mutual
Life Association.

MOORE, THOMAS CHARLES., B.A.
M.B., Ch.B., and M.Id,, Physician and Sur-
geon, Tennyson Street, Napler. Telephone
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115. Dr Moore Is a son of the Rev. Dr.
Moore, late headmaster of Middleton College,
County Cork. He was born in Liverpool, and
studied his profession at Trinity College,

Dr, T. C. Moorg.

Dblin, where he galned honours and prizes
In both elassic and BEuglish literature. For

some time he had charge of the
midwifery department of the Rotunda
Hospital, On obtaining his diploma le re-

celved the appointment of surgeon in the
P and O. Company, and afterwards surgeon
In the New Zealand Government Emlgration
SBervice. He came to New Zealand in 1884

Mr. H. W. IFrosT.
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and settled in Napler. Dr. Moore is medieal
examiner to the Government Life Insurance
Department, surgeon to the Napler Gaol,
and a Justice of the Peace. He Is also a
member of the Eduocation Board and a
governor of the High schools,

FROST, HAROLD WILLIAM, Surgeon-
Pentist, Emerson Street, Napler, Telephone

2689, Mr. Frost's surgery is situated In Mr,
Hoadley's large bullding, the walting and
operating rooms and others, which are very
spacions, being furnished. in luxurious style
with all the newest applinnces of the dental
profession. Mr. Frost is a native of Liver-
pool; Hiz favourite pastlmes are bowls,
ericket, and zolf. He s 4 member of the
Masonie body.

WILSBON AND DAVIES (H. €. Wilson and

H. Davies), Dentists, Tennyson Street,
Napler. Telephone 53, Private address,
Rinff Hill. DBrapch establishment, Eecles'

Mr. H. C. WiLsox.

chemist shop, Heretaunga Road, Hastings.
This flrm was founded by Mr., Wilson In 1847,
Mr. H. €. Wilson, the sendor partner, is a
niative of Derkshire, England, and studied
for his profession under Sir Edward Saun-
fders, dentist to Her Majesty the Queen. In
15862 he came to Auckland by the ship “*“War
Sprite’ at the time of the Walkato war, He
immediately joined Captain  Kreptner's
German Company, Sridl Walkato Regiment,
commanided by Col. Lyon and recelved an
ensign’s commission. He served all through
the campalgn and holds the New Zealand
medal, On the disbandment of the troops,
he came to Napler and  established his
present large practice and In 1803 took Mr.
Davies into partnership. Mr. Wilzon in an
enfthusinstic bowler, tennis and golf player.
Tle was connected with the Masonie Rody
for n number of years. His eldest son is
nt present studying medicine In London

where he has had a -distingulshed ecollege
career,

Dr. NEIL'S BOTANIC DISPENSARY
iJ. R. Gillespie, manager), Emerson Street,
Napier. Bankers, Bank of Australasia.
This is a branch of Dr. Neil's well-known
Donedin  business and was opened ten or
twelve yvears ago. The shop Is larse and
very attractive, evidence of the manager's
care and attention being noticeable in the
well-dressed window and many other divee-

tions. Like his principal, Mr. Gillespie is
a pharmacentical chemist as well as a
herbalist. Homaeopathie and allopathie

medicinesarelargely stocked and physicians’
prescriptions of all kinds carefully dispensed,
The preparation of Dr. Neil's numerous
proprietary articles is partly carried on at
the Napler establishment.

Mr. JAMES ROBERT GILLESPIE, the
Manager of Dr. Neil's Napler business, Is
gon of Mr. John Gillespie, contractor of
I'almerston, Otago, where the subject of
thiz notice was born in 1873, Edueated at
the George Street school, Dunedin, Mr. Gil-
lesple entered the wholesale drug store of
Messrs, Bainsbury, Hllesden and Co., of Rat-
tray Street. PFrom there he went to the
retall establishment of Mr. 1B, 8. Ellesden
in Princes Street, where he remained some
five years, and gnined a thorough knowledge
of the trade. When Mr. Ellesden sold out
to Mr. J. A. Corrighan, Mr. Gillesple con-
tinued as assistant and on the death of his
principal he carried on the business for the
executors for about a year. After a short
engagement with Mr. Dutton, chemist of
Dunedin, he took a trip round the Colony
and finally accepted his present position in
1896, Mr. Gillesple Is very popular both In
business and soclal clreles. As a ericketer,
he is o member of the Scinde Club and is
included in the senior team.

ECCLIES, ALEXANDER, Chemist and
Druggist, Hastings Street, Napier. Branches,
Emerson Street, and at Hastings. P.0. Box
143, Telephones: Head establishment,
Hastings Street, 93: Branch, Bmerson Stroeg,
9; Branch, Hastings, 24; Private residence,
108, Dankers, National Bank of New Zea-
land. Mr. Eceles' Masonle Pharmaey oceu-
ples the ground floor of the new brick part
of the Mnsonic Hotel, and Is without gques-
tion one of the finest chemists' shops of
which the Colony can boast., Its frontage to
Hastings Street is forty-five feet, the whole
of which Is covered by a double plate-glass
window, artistieally decorated and beauti-
fully dressed, the whole making a striking
show. The entrance is through a palr of
massive cedar doors, panelled with embossod
Mlate zlass and the visitor is strock with the
spacions appearance and elegant design of
the main shop, which has a depth of forty-
five feet, On the left hand side Is a hand-
some cedar counter of full length, protected
by a massive silver plated rail and adorned
with a variety of ornamental glass ecases for
the display of the stock. At the end stands
a chastely designed cedar and plate-glass
case filled with every varlety of perfumery.
On the right of the entrance are the consult-
Ing-room and surgery divided by elaborately



ornamented partitions, which are used also
for the display of Mr. Eccles' own leading
gpecialties,. The manufacturing department
Is In the rear of the shop, and underneath is

Mnr. A. EocLis.

a concrete eellar, where the Imlk stock is
storedd, Omn all sldes there Is an abundant
evidenee that an exceptionally large busi-
ness is earrled on.  As may reasonably be

MEDICAL.

aupposed of any establishment condaected on
such an elaborate scale every recognized
medicine of note Is kept In stock, and the
variety of surgleal instrumentsis probably not
excelled anywhere In the Colony. Among Mr,
Eecles” own proprietary articles, which meet
with the readiest sale, may he mentioned
his **Cherry and Arvecanut Tooth IPaste.”
“Tonle Hypophosphates™ and “Glyeerine
and Spirits of Roses.” In all there are
twenty employees. For the accommodation
of the stock of |:r|in1ql;;l':|l'[!].l].l‘ :1|I|l||;1|l#'1~1-i

which Is the wmost complete In Hawke's
Bay—a speecial room I8 set apart. The
Hastings shop, which is also very haund-

somely fitted up, ig described o the section
devoted to that town., The Emerson Street
branch is ably managed by AMr. J. W. Reld.
Mr, Alexander Eceles, the proprietor of this
lnree and flonrishing buslness, is a native
of Londonderry, Ireland, and studied his
profession under Messrs, James and George
MeCaul, wholesale and retall manufacturing
chemists and draggists of that -eity. Comling
to this Colony in 1882, he in the following
vear established the principal business. The
rreatest eredit is doe to Mr. Eecles for the
very excellent style which he has introdueed
in the ornamentation of a first-class phar-
inaey.

Mr. JOHN WILLIAM RETD, Manager of
Mre Becles' braneh business In Bmerson Street,
Napier, has had considerable experience
ns consulting and dispensing chemist. He
was eduecated In Dunedin, where he was horn
in 1865 and is the son of the late Mr, George
Iteid, builder of that eity. After serving an
apprenticeship with Messrs, B, Bagley and
Son, well-known chemists in George Street,

IxTERIOR OF MR. Eccrnes' PrEMiseEs, HASTINGS STREET.
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Mr. RNeld went In 1883 as assistant to Mr.
J. W. Bridge, a chemist at Riverton, but
nown well-known dentist in Wellington. Two
yvears later Mr. Reld returned to Dunedin
and was for some three or four years with
Messrs. Marshall and Sons. He néxt went
to Adelaide, where he was with the late Mr.
Jozeph Parker of King William Street South,
teturning to the Colony he acted as loeum
tenens for varions ebemists and in 1810
eutered the +~I1|]1|.1r,.\.' of Mr. Eceles, as above.
Mr. Iteld has probably the best homoopathic
connection in  the town, having aeqguired
mueh knowledge in that branch of medicine
while with Messrs. Marshall and Sons. e
was marrvied in 1552 to the daughter of the
late Mr. Lanrie, of Castle Rtreet,
Dhinedin, and Las twa sons.

Jannes

HAWEKE'S BAY UNITED FRIENDLY
SOCIETIES' DISPENSARY (Peter Drum
mond, manager), Hasilngs Street, Napier.

Mnr. P, DREUMMOXD.

Telephone 167. Bankers, Bank of New Zea-
land. This dispensgary, which Is the only
one of its kind In the North Island, wns es-
tablished In 1802 and has been managed by
Mr., Drummond since 1806, Iis business is
by no weans confined to those on the bhooks
of the societies, nor to those medicines
which are supplied free to the members, Al
kimlzg of sundries are kept in stock, and by
their patronage for general re
quirements on their own dispensary the
members, of conrse, add greatly to  the
utility and beneflt acceraing from the enter-
prise. DProgs are imported dirvect, and as
the result of ecareful manngement, the dls-
pensary is now paying good dividends.

Deestoow Ing

Mr, PETER DRUMMOXND, Manager of
the Hawke's Ray United FPriendly Socleties'
Dispensary, though but a young man, has
the reputation of being a careful and pains-
taking chemist and holds testhmonials of a
very high character. He was born at Ross
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on the West Coast of the South Island in
1871, is a son of My, Peter Drommond, the
well-known contractor, Wellington, and was
educated in the Empire City, where he was
apprenticed to Messrs. Turner and Co,,
chemists,. Mr. Dronmmond completed his
apprenticeship In 1852, but remalned with
the firm until the following year. In 1803
Mr. Drommond passed his examination with
such credit that when Mr. Ridd, chemist
of Pahiatua, needed a loenm tenens during
hiz absence on o trip to England, he secured
Mr. Drummond for that responsible posi-
tion., Sabsequently, Mr. Drummond acted
in a similar capacity for Mr. A. A. Lissaman,
of Palmerston North, and more recent’y f.r
Mr. J. A. H. Nash, at Wooadville. Returning
to Wellington, Mr. Drummond found -
plovment as assistant to Mr. W. E. Woods,
and In Auvgust, 1896, was offered and ae-
cepted his present position. On the retum
of Mr. Ridd, being then at liberty to take a
holiday, Mr. Druommomnd toured New Zea-
land and visited Sydney, Melbourne, Laon-
ceston, and Hobart, gaining some [nsgight
into the methods of the profession gener-
ally. In the “*Chemist and Druggist of Aus-
tralasia,” he has more than once received
special complimentary mention, and in the
“*Fahiatun Herald” and *“*Woodville Fx:
aminer’” excellent press notices of him have
appeared. He has been twice thanked by
his present board for careful and excellent
management, and It i worthy of remark
that since Mr Drommond’s advent not a
complaint has been heard from any of the
T00 members on the books of the associa-
tion

WILLIAMS, ALEXANDER JAMES,
Chemist and Optician, Hastings Strest, Na
pler. Telephone T9; I'rivate 219, Bankervs,
wank of New South Wales. Private resl-
dence, Sealy Road, Napler. Mr. Willlam=z 15
a son of the late Mpr, Nathaniel Willlams,

M=m. A. J. WiLLIANS,
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one of Napier's most respected townsmen,
wig born in Napler and educated at the
Boys® High School. After studying his pro-
fession in MNapier, he went to Wellington o
gain experience, aod spent some time with
Mr. Barrawd, the well-known chemist. A
yvear after soecessfully passing his pharma-
centieal examination he returned to Napler
and purchased the old established business
of Mr. Owen. He has furnished a specilal
room for sight testing, which is complete
with all the newest appliances, a large stock
of optical goods is kept on hand, and speeial
attention is paid to this department. Mr.
Willlams takes great interest in all sports
and is chief consul for the New Zealand
Cyelist Touring Club for Hawke's Bay, and
= a member of different sporting commit-
Lees,
BANKING.

THE BANK OF NEW S0UTH WALRS,
Napier, oecupies n most central position in
Hastings Street, and is one of the hand-
somest bulldings in the provinee. The man-
ager, Mr. Oscar Lines, has a stall of niue.
A short history of this corporation iz glven
at lengih-in the Wellington volume of the
“Cyclopedia,”™ to which readers are e
ferred.

Mr. OBCAR LINES, Manager of the Bank
of New South Wales, Napler, was born in
Adelaide in 1861, and is the son of the late
Mr. Ozecar Lines, an English gentleman well-
known at Iio and in Australin, Edueated
in Adelalde, Mr. Lines In 1878 joined the
staff of the Bank of New South Wales in
that city, where he remained some teén vears
and rese to the position of saccountant.
After two or three years a8 manager ot
LBiroken Hill he was transferred to the In-
gpectors’ stafl in Sydney, but for some four
or five years prior to hizs coming to Napier
in 1807 he was mananger of the branch of
the bank at South Bydney. A few years
ngo Mr. Lines made the most of a twelve
monthg' holiday, during which he visited the
prineipal places of interest in the United
States, Great DBritain, Franee, Germany,
Switzgerland, DBelglum, and other countries,
returning vii the Suez Canal. Though
but recently settled in Napler, Mr.
Lines takes an active interest In the wel-
fare of the distriet, and is a memhber of the
Napier Chamber of Commerce. In 1887 he
wias married to the daughter of the late
Capt. Ferguson, of Willinmstown, near Mel-
bourne, anid has a son and danghter.

THE BANK OF AUSTRALASIA at Na-
pier which occuples a site In Hastings
Street, near the eorner of Emerson Street,
was opened in 1874, The manager, Mr. R. B.
Smith, is assisted by a staff of five. The
Walpawa agency which is under Mr. Smith’s
dirvection, Is in charge of Mr. D, M. Grahaw.

Mr. ROBERT BIFIELD SMITH, Manager
of the Napler branch of the Bank of Aus-
tralasia, has been connected with the nsti-
tution for a qunarter of a century. He was
born at Milton, Otago, in 1857, I8 a1 son of
the late Mr. Edmund Smnith, of Dunedin,
and was edoeated at the Dunedin High
School. Joining his bank in Dunedin In
1873, Mr. Smith's first move was to Christ-
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church, and his second to Waipawa, as
manager, He was then accountant at the
Wellington branch aond afterwards mansger
at Palmerston North, which position he
held until April, 1804, when he took up his
present position in Napier. He was mar.
riedd In 1891 to a daughter of Mr, A, 3,
Aldrich, Consul for Japan, and hag an only
daughter.

THE BANK OF XEW ZEALAXND, Napier,
ocenpies a prominent corner In Hastings
Sitreet, belng separated from the Post Ofice
by Browning Street. The building presents
a good appearance, [ts interior being par-
ticularly handszome. The bank has an ex-
cellent connection, the amalgamation with
the Colonial Dank having brought a very
valuable addition to the volume of business,
The manager, Mr. Fenwick, Is assisted by a
staff of fifteen,

Mr. FAIRFAX FREDERICKE FENWICE,
Manager of the Bank of New Zealand at
Napier, is a popular banker, and Is one of
the few who were conneeted with the
Colonial Bank throughout its entire exist-
ence, He [z 0 son of the Iate Mr, C, L. (.
Fenwlek, sheepfarmer of Ofago, was born
at Elsinore, Denmark, In 1852, and eduaeated
at Clifton College, Gloucestershire, England,
and Christ College, Canterbury, having
arrived in the Colony with his pareoats in
1868 by the ship “Celoeno.” Joining the
Bank of New Zealand at Oamarn In 1873,
Alr. Fenwick remained in that Institution
nuntll the opening of the Colonial Bank in
which he obtalned an appointment., During
hiz twenty-one years' connectlon with the
latter, Mr. Fenwlek was prinelpally at Dun-
edin, Oamarn, Christechurch, and Napier, at
which last mentioned place he held the post
of manager from the year 1885 until the in-
corporation by the Bank of New Zealand,
when he was retained in his present position.
Mr, Fenwlek I8 a member of the Chamber

Mg. F. F. FESWICK,



interest In all
town and distriet.
lelsure he was a
and was o repre-

of Commeree, and takes an
matters concerning the
In his dayvs of greater
cricketer of no mean order,
sentative of Ofago, In 1887 he was married
to o danghter of Dr. Wilking, a well-known
Anckland ill'.‘.li'lil"luhttl‘.

THE TUNION BANK OF ATUSTRALIA,
Napler, occupies a corner site In Hastings

Strect at the intersection of Emerson Street.
The manager, Mre. H. W. Antlll, is assisted
by a staff of nine. The Tnlon Bank is fully
deseribed in the Wellington volume of the
“Cyclopedia.”™ the head office for New Zea-
land being at the eapital.

Mr. HENRY WILLITAM ANTILIL, Man-
nger of the Unlon Bank of Australia, is
the son of a former manager of the same

bank In Nelson and was born at Crow's
Nest, North Shore, Syidney, In 1855, edu-
entedd at Geelong and matricalated at AMel
bourne [niversity at the age of sixtecon.
In 1572 he entered the service of the Bank
and was at Geelong, Deniliguin, and Hay.

He was secrefary to the inspector in Meal-
bunrne for some two years when he was
appointed manager of the bank’s Lranch af
Mackay In Queensland, where he stayed
four or five years, then remaoyed

s01e Wils
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to Daylesforid in Victoria. In 1801 afler
a twelve months trip to the O1d Country.
Mr. Antill was appointed manager of the
bank at Timaru and In 1895 {ook uap nis
prezent position. He was married in Queens-
land in 1885 to Nita, danghter of the late
Mr. Robert Campbell Macrae, of England,
and has three danghters and a son.,

THE NATIONAL BAXNEK OF NEW ZEA-
LAND, Napler, Is sltuated at the corner of
Hastings and DBEmerson Streets, It was
opened in 1874 by Mr. Glegg and for the past
ten years has been managed by Mr. James
MeLean, who is assisted by a staff of four.

Mr. JAMES McLEAXN, Manager of the
Napier branch of the National Bank of New
Zoaland, wias born in Boston, Massachosetts,
United States of Amerien, In 1855, and was
edueated in Scotland. After a0 short
perience in a legal office, Mr.
to this Colony In 1873 by the ship “Jessle
Readman'® and joined the National Bank at
Dunedin, A few years later he was pro-
moted to be neceountant at Invercargill, and
prior to his appointment in 1888 as manager
at Napier, he had been five or six vears at
the Wanganul branch, and before that at
Tapanui for two or three years. Mr. MeLean
is popular and takes an interest in the soclal
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fupctions of the town in which his lot is
cast. For several yvears he has been treas-
urer of the Caledonian Soelety, and he is
an ex-presldent of the Napler Athensum.
In 1884 he marrlied Miss Excell, a Melbourne
lady, and bhas two daughters.

INSURANCE,

THE ALLIANCE ASBSURANCE COM-
PANY, Napler, occupylng officeg in the Auns-
tralian Mutual DProvident Society's Build-
ings in Browning Street. In 1802 the Alliance
purchased the Napier business of the Union
Insurance Company, The head office for
New Zealanpd Iz in Christehureh, aod is
deseribed in the Canterbury volume of this
work.

Ar. GEORGE MARSHALL, Manager at
Napier of the Alliance Assurance Company,
was born in Greenock, Scotland, in 1863,
and was eduecated partly in Beotland and
partly in Germany. He came to the Colony
by the *“Bt. Leonard’s' in 18581 and joined
theé head office stall of the Union Fire and
Marine Insurance Company. In 18092 he was
appointed to his present position. Mr.
Marshall is a cricketer and footballer. In
1804, he was married to the daunghter of Mr.
John Coles, of Christchurch, and has a son.

THE CITIZENS' LIFE ASSURANCE
COMPANY, LTD., Tennyson Street, Napler.
Mr. John Couper, District Agent.

Mr, JOHN COUPER, District Agent of the
Citizens' Life Assurance Company, Ltd., is
also a prosperous land and estate agent. He
iz the second son of the late Mr. Willlam
Couper, sheepfarmer, of Kahuranaki and
Havelock North, was born at IMorirua, near
Wellington, in 1854, and eduecated at Have-

Mr. J. CouPrER.

lock North and Napier. On leaving school
he remained two years on his father's Have-
lock farm of 200 acres and Kahuranaki sheep
run of 13,000 acres and entered enthusiasti-
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cally into every detail of farming and sheep
graxing. He then proceeded to Wellington
and was over a year in the office of Mr. W.
Waring Taylor.. After this he wias managing
the Glengarry Statlon for his father till
December, 1874, when he went to Fraser-
town, Wailrea, and engaged in sheepfarming
on his own account, which he continued with
success until 1805, when unfortunately he
entered into a trading speculation, running
Lis own steamer betwen Napler and Walroa,
The venture not proving remunerative, to-
gether with the unproductiveness in sheep-
farming owing to great mortality amongst
his fock, obliged My, Couper to relingulsh
the whole of these connections and make a
fresh start In the business he now carries on
g0 successfully. Belng so well and favour-
ably known thronghout the disiriet, My,
Couper is rapidly aecquiring a good connee-
tion. He has numerous valuable sheep runs
for sale and is open to undertake all kinds
of financial and commiszion business, and
may be called npon to give his best attention
to all matters placed in his hands.

Dpeax.

ME J. He

THE GOVERNMENT LIFE ASSURANCE
BRANCH OFFICE, Napier, was opened in
1846 in Hastings Street, In a bullding stand-
ing between the Union Steamship Company’s
office and the Clarendon Hotel. Mr. J. H.
Dean is arent for the distriet, which extends
from East Cape to Woodville, with fourteen
sub-branches,

AMr. JOHN HOLMES DEAN, Resldent
Agent at Napier for the New Zéaland
Government Life Insurance Department,

was born In Brompton, Canada, In 1856, and
iz the eldest son of the Rev. W. J. Dean, then
a missionary amongst the pioneer settlers,
North Ameriean Indians, but now of Welling-
ton, and whose portrait appears In  the
ecclesiasticnl section of the Wellington vol-
nme of the *Cyelopedia.” He was educated
In Auckland at the Wesley College, Mr.

Fargqular Macrae's High School, and later at
the Wellington College, passing the junior
and senior civil service examinations and
entered the Government Stores Department
in Wellington. A féew months later, having
In the meantime exhibited special mathe-
matical ability, he was offered by Mr., God-
frey Knlght, then actuary, a sltuation in the
Life Assurance Department, entering the
head office in Joanunary, 1574, when the stall
numbered but haif-a-dozen all told. Mr.
Dean s now the longest service officer in
the department. HRemaining in Wellington
until 1802, having risen to the position of
assistant accountant, he was: promoted to
his present responsible position and has had
the satisfactlon of seeing the business of his
dizstrict Increase very largely. In social and
especlally In musleal matters, Mr. Dean has
taken an active interest for many years.
Prior to leaving Wellington he acted as
organist at one of the churches for over
twelyve years, and since coming to Napier,
has occasionally played at St. 'aal’s. He |s
one of the managers of the Presbyierian
chureh and established the Napier branch of
the 8t. John Ambulance Association, of
which he ig the local secrefary, As 4 mem-
ber of the Napler Bowling Club he ranks
among the champion fours and has repre-
sented the club at various tournaments in
the Colony. In 1851 he marrled the danghter
of the late Bev. J. D. Whittaker, of Welling-
ton, and has two danghters.

THE MUTUAL LIFE ASSOCIATION OF
AUSTRALASIA, LTD., Tennyson Street,
Mapler. This branch, which was opened In
1802, is under the manargement of Mr. A, I
Gilison. Prior to that date the company
was represented by agents and sinee the
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opening of the branch there has been a
steady inerease in the district business, The
association is fully deseribed in the Welling-
ton volume of thiz work and It need only be
ginld here that the reserve funds amount to



29 8s. for every £100 assured and that the
rate of Interest earned, £5 Ts. 3d., is =aid to
pe the record rate. These fuets are ascer-
tainad from the Insurance Blue Book for
1807-8,

Mr. ARTHUR BROCKETT GIBSON,
Manager at Napier of the Mutual Life Asso-
ciation for the Hawke's Bay and Gisborne
districts, was born at Darlington, arham,
England, in 1867 and iz a son of the late Mr.
J. 0 Glbson of Messrs, Gibson Bros,, mer-
chants, of Leadenhall Street, Darlington.
Educated at the Darlington Grammar School,
Mr., Gibson came to this Colony In 1880 in
the ship *Wairoa,”" finished his eduention at
the Port Alburiri distriet school and even-
tnally joined the Government Life Insurancee
office at Napier. Nine yenrs after, having in
the meantime gained a good Insight Into the
Lusiness of life insuranee, Mr. Gibzon
gccepted an appolntment as agent for the
Colonial Mutoal Life office. Two years later
le was appointed resident agent at almer-
ston North for the Mutual Life Association
of Australasia, and in October, 1805, received
his present appointment. He is a member
of the Masonie Lodge Secinde in which he
holds the position of V.G, is a past chief
ranger of Court 8lir Charles Napler,
AOLOLP., and 12 agaln oecupying the chalr.
He is a delegate to the Friendly Socleties
Dispen=ary Committee, senlor elrealt stewar:d
of the Wesley Chureh and secretary to the
trustees, and was a delegiate to the Wesleyan
Conference at DDunedin in 1808, Among na
number of other offices held by him may
be mentioned the treasurerszhip of the
Athenmenm Club. e is an ardent eycelist
und was the winneér of n second prize at
Masterton in 1895, i= a member of the loeal
howling green and honorary gecretary of the
Relinnee Oricket Club, Mr. wias
married In 1896 to the eldest danghter of
the Inte Mr. James Robinscon, contractor, of
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Dunedin and Port Chalmers, and hnas one
danughter and one son.

THE XNEW ZEALAND INSURANCHE
COMPANY'S Napler business Is earrled on
in a substantinl brick ballding in Tennyson
Street, opposgite the Masonie Hotel, and is
nnder the management of Mr. G. N. Plerce.
An extended notice of the company appenrs
in the Auckland volume of the Cyelopedia,
the hend office Deing in the northern
capltal,

Mr. GEORGE NELSON PIERCE, Manager
of the New Zealand Insurance Company's
Napier branch, is the eldest son of the late
Mr. George Patrick Plerce, the first general
manager of the company, whose life was
mainly spent in the =ervice anid whose
career s given in the Auncklind volume of
thiz work. DBorn in Auckland in 18359 and
cdueated malnly at the Parnell Grammanr
School, Mr. G. N, PMerce entered the service
of the New Zealand Imsurance Company in

1873 at the head office, Auckland. After
being in Wellington he was appointed
1

.= -".':-' -

Mr. G. N. PiErcE.

manager at Oamaru, and subsequently at
Perth,. Western Australla. In 1800, Mr.
Pierce wns appointed to his present position.

THE SOUTH BRITISH INSURANCE
COMPANY, NAPIER BRANOCH, is situated
in a hand=some brick bnilding at the corner
of Byron amd Browning Streets. Though
only about thirteen years have elapsed sinee
this branch was opened, it Iz clalmed that
it controls the largest fire and marine in-
surance connection in Hawke's Bay. The
district management s in the hands of Mr.
Thomas Whitelnw, who is assisted by an
ellicient staff.

Mr. THOMAS WHITELAW, Manager for
the Hawke's Bay Distriet of the South
British Insurance Company, was born in
(ilasgow, Bcotland, is a son of Mr. George

“jolned the South British in 1501,
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Whitelaw, late inspector’'s acconntant of the
Bank of New Zealand, and was educated at
Glasgow, Edinburgh, Perth, and, latterly, at
the Aunckland College and Grammar School,
Mr. Whitelaw entered the service of the
New Zealand Loan and Mercantile Agency
Company, and afier a few years' experience
He alsa
conduets an extensive mercantile business
in Dannevirke, which I8 referred to in con-
nection with that town. As a Mason, he is
the fmmediate past master of Seinde Lodge.
He was married in 1892 to a daughter of
Mr., Thomas Peacock, ex-member of the
House of Representatives for Auckland, and
has o son and a daughter.

Proressionan, COMMERCIAL AND
INDUSTRIAL.

BALFOUR, THOMAS WAITT, Land and
Commission Agent, Shakespeare Road, Napier.
Agent for the Royal Insurance Company, and
for the Chinan Traders’ Marine Insurance Com-
pany; auditor for the Hawke's Bay Farmers'
Association, Napier Gas Company, and other
lirge private institutions in Napier. Mr. Bal-
four was born in 1842 in Roxburghshire, Scot-
land, where he was educated. He began his
career in the Banking Corporation of the
British Linen Company and at the age of nine-
toen came to this Celony in the ship “‘Chryso-
lite.”” Landing in Lyttelton, he obtained a
situation on a station at Lyndon in Canter-
bury. In 1868 Mr. Balfour entered the service
of the Bank of New Zealand in Christchurch,
became accountant at Lyttelton, and after ful-
filling the duties of relieving officer, he was
sent north to open the bank's branclies in the
Wairarapa, making Greytown his head-guarters.
In 1877 he was appointed manager at Napier,
which position he held until the amalgamation
with the Colonial Bank, when he retired on
a pension. In his younger days, Mr. Balfour

Mer, T. W. Bavrous.
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took an active interest in athletics; he was
in the representative football teams at Lyttel-
ton and Christchurch, and at both cricket and
golf was a good average player. DBowling is
now better suited to his taste, and he is a
popular member of the Napier Bowling Club.
He was married in 1876 to tho second daughter
of the late Mr. C. R. Bidwill, of Pihautea,
Wairarapa, mear Featherston, and has two
daughters and four sons.

COHEN, HYMAN PHINEAS, Auctloneer
and Fuorniture Warehouseman, Hastings
Street, Napier. InO. Box 191; Telephone
88, Bankers, Bank of New Zealand. Mr.

Cohen beinzg a member of the Napier
Borough Council, particulars concerning

hig eareer will be found elsewhere in that
connection.

CROWLEY, EDWALD, General Com-
mission and Insurance Apgent, Teunyson

Street, Napler. Telephones: oftice, 125; private
nddress, 273. Private address, Thompson
Street. Mr. Crowley is the son of the
late Mr. F. Crowley, one of Napier's oldest

colonists, and was born and edoceated at
Christelineeh,  He Jolned the SBonth DBritish
Insurance Company and after six years

severed his connection for an appointment
In the Union Insurance Company as chief
clerk. Two vears later he left the Union
Company 1o enter into business on his own
acecount, Mr, Crowley Is loeal agent for the
Phoenlx and United Insurance Companies,
gperetary of the Napier Land Buoilding and
Investiment Soclety and agent for Mr. John
Griflin, contractor. He iz an Oddfellow of
gome years standing.,

GRINDELI:;, JAMES STEPHEN, Native
Interpreter, Napier. Mpr. Grindell is the =son
of the late Sergt. Robert Grindell, of the

Mu. J. 8. GrRISDELL
(At 48 Years of Age).

O9th Lancers, who served through the
Teninsula War, and was born at Kittering,
Northamptonshire, England, in 1823 where
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he was educated. He went to sea as an
apprentice in the ship “St. Vincent'” and
siailed to Bydney where he deserted and after
g nnmber of adventures, made his way to
Neweastle and joined the brig “Look In''
In 1840 he came to Wellington fnd there
joined a whaling expedition, on which
oeeasion he nearly lost his life by a whale
gmashing the boat of which he was one of
the erew. After this e went to the West
Coast and lived amongst the natives for n
congiderable thme and this acqgulired a
thorough knowledge of the Maorl language
and costoms, Some time afterwards he
received employment on the roads under
construction in  Canterbury and took 100
natives with him. Mpr. Grindell’s next move
wias to Hawke's Bay where he was employed
in a store by Messrs, Alexander and Gollan.
He then received the appointments of clerk
to the resident magistrate courf, adminis-
trator of intestate estates, clerk of the
district court, and registrar of the Supreme
Court. Some years later Mr. (afterwards
Sir Donald) MeLean asked Mr., Grindell {o
gtart the *“*Waka Maorl,” a newspaper
printed solely in Maorl for the natives and
which was earried on by him for some time,
Later, when the paper was published both
in Fnglish and Maorl under the auspices of
the Native Department, he filled the position
of pditor. He also aeted as native land
purchase agent and in recognition of his
sorvices Rir Willlam Fitzherbert, the Super-
intepdent of Wellington, presented him with
a cheque for 100 guineas. With a change of
Ministry, his services were dispensed with
and he returned to Napier. He started a
Maori newspaper at Gisborne which was dis-
continued after two vears' existence, and
he entered into practice as a native inter-
preter. In many ways Mr. Grindell was nf
great service to the Government in dealing
with the natives, especially in the construc-
tion of the overland telegraph lines. M.
Grindell marvied a daughter of Mr. Willlnm
Villers, a well-known old colonist, and has
two sons and two daughiers.

HOADLEY, (. B., AND CD,, Auctioneers,
Stock and Station Agents, Wool and Land
Brokers, Emerson Street, Napler, This well-
known firm was established In 1874 but in
gmaller gquarters than those now occupied.
The present premises are large and com-
modions, consgisting of a handsome two-
storey  Dbuilding built in 1887 of Oamaru
stone, the upper storey is let as offices, efe.,
and the lower portion Is devoted to the
buginess, There is a very handsome suite of
offices in additlon to a large and well-lighted
anction-room, which is nsed exclusively for
all the loeal wool sales and the firm's land
operations, the latter being among the most
important held in New Zealand. Mr. Hoadley
originated the wool galeg in Hawke's Bay in
1880, which have since developed into colonial
importance. He Iz a son of Mr. Joseph
Sawyer Hoadley, a descendant of the dis-
tinguished divine Dr., Benjamin Hoadley,
Bishop of Salisbury and afterwards of Win-
chester in the reign of George l.. and was
born at his father's estate in Kent in 1847.
He was educated at private schools and
entercd the serviee of the London sand
County Bank in 1864, with which institution
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he remained until 1872 when owlng to ill-
Lhealth he came to New Zealand by the ship
“Merope,” land ng in Lyttelion. He became

Mr. C.

L. Hoapnry.

figsociated in the same year with the railway
contractors, Messrs, Brogden and Sons;, who
had extensive works in the Colony, on com-
pletion of which he was engagod to go to
Germany for the same firm, but decided to
remain in Napier where he established his
present suceessful business.  He was the
first secretary of the Napier Harbour Board
for five years, when he resigned that he
might devote the whele of his attention fo
his firm's undertakings., Mr. Hoadley has
been a prominent member of the Scinde
Masonic Lodge, of which he is a past master,
and was one of the early promoters of the
local Chamber of Commenrce.

KELLY, GEORGE, Native Interpreter,
Napier. Mr. Kelly, who holds the positions of

Native Interpreter to the Supreme and Stipen-
diary Magistrate’s Courts and Native Land
Purchase Officer, is the son of the late Captain
Kelly, 83rd Regiment, and Registrar of Deeds,
Auckland. He was born in Halifax, North
America, and arrived in Wellington with his
parents in 1845 in the ship “Indian,” was
educated at St. John's College, Auckland, and
in 1859 received an appointment at Mongonui
in the Native Department, remaining there for
over twenty-two years. Mr. Kelly has acted as
clerk of the court and licensing bench, regis-
trar of births, deaths and marringes, meteoro-
logical observer, officer-in-charge of the Cus-
toms, superintendent inspector of Native
schools, native interprefer and judge of Assess-
ment Courts. In 18382 he was removed to
Napier to take up his present position and in
1893 was also appointed Native land purchase
officer. Mr. Kelly has always taken a keen
interest in athletic sports and is vice-president
of the Caledonian Football Club and president
of the Napier Sailing Club. He was chairman
of the Mongonui School Committee for a num-
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ber of years. Mr. Kelly is married and has
gseven children. Mrs, Kelly was born in 1854
on Sunday Island, the largest of the Kermadec
Group, where her father, Mr. Daniel Baker,

Mzr G. KBLLY.

and his wife had gone to reside in 1835, and
where he remained until 1847, when he became
alarmed at the severity of earthquakes which
ocourred there about that time. He, therefore,
left with hiz wife and four children (all born
on the island) in a whaler for the Bay of
Islands, and subsequently settled in Mongonui.
Mrs. EKelly died in 1897,

KEXNEDY RS, (Charles Dugald
Kennedy and  Arthur  Angns  EKennedy),
Civil Epgineers and Surveyors, Hersehell
Street, Napler. DO, Tox 104, Bankers,
Itnnk of New Zealaod. The  business
of the firm, whieh Iz the Iargest of

the Kind in Hawke's Bay, was estabiished
by the senlor partner in 1878. In 1800 Mr.
A, A Kennedy jolned his brother, swhen the
firm assumed the present style. He ander-
takes the field work, and Mr, &, 1), Kennedy,
who Is also senlor pariner in the firm of
Rennedy and Lusk, barristers and solicitors,
acts as the consulting member of both firms.
Messrs. Kennedy DBros. are engineers for
many of the local bodies. Particulars of the
career of Mr. €. 1), Kennedy are given in
connection with the Hawke's Bay County
Counecil. Mr. A. A. Kennedy is the second
gon of the late Capt. Alexander Kennedy,
wias born in Napier in 1865, educatbéd at the
Napier Grammar School, and in 1881 was
articled to his brother. He is an amateur
photographer, footballer, and golfer. In
1804 he married the daughter of the Iate
Mr. J. P. Hamlyn, of Napier, and has two
BOMNE,

ROBJOHNS AND SON, Brewers, Wellesley
Road, Napier. Messrs. Robjohns' hbrewery,
which is considered one of the best in the

Colony, occupies nearly two scres of ground,
and was established about a quarter of a cen-
tury ago by the late Mr. H. C. Hobjohns, in
company with Mr. Ellis, now of Hastings. The
capucity of the brewery is upwards of eighty
hogsheads per week. About a dozen hands are
employed, as well as two delivery carts. The
cellars are large and the malthouse is said
to be one of the very finest in New Zealand.
Mr. Stevens, the head brewer, keeps everything
in first-class order. For the past three yeurs,
Messrs. Robjohns and Son have been the prin-
cipal prize-winners of the district.

Mr. JOHN ASCOT STEVENS, the Head
Brewer for Messrs. Robjohns and Son, Napier,
has had over twenty vears' experience in his
special line. He was born in Invercargill, in
1861, and is the son of Mr. C. T. Stevens,
draughtsman in the Land Transfer Department,
Wellington. Mr. Stevens was educated at
Invercargill and at Christ College, Christ-
church, and learned his trade as a brewor with
Mr. Surman of Invercargill. Mr. Stevens
obtained the situnation of assistant brewer with
Messrs. Robjohng and Son in 1884, and about
nine years later Dbeécame chief brewer. Mr.
Stevens is a violince!loist and a baritone singer,
and was for some time 2 member of the choir
of 8. Augustine’s Church. He is a successful
breeder of prize poultry, which he has exhibited
at Auckland, Gisborne, Napier, Wellington,
Christchurch, and Dunedin. Mr. Stevens was
married in 1886 to the daughter of Mr. Robert

Skipage, of Kent, England, and has four sons
and a daughter.

GRIFFIN, JOHN, Contractor, Brick and
Tile Manufacturer, Napier. Bankers, Bank
of New Zealand. Private residence, Have-
lock Road. The works are situated on North

Mg. J. GRIFFIN.

Street, off Hyderabad Road, and contain n
Hoffman's kiln of the latest design, capable
of an output of 20,000 bricks daily. These
bricks, which are of a bright cherry colour,
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are of a uniform guality and held in the
highest estimation by builders. 500,000 were
used in the erection of the Masonic Hotel,
Mapler. Adjoining the brick-vards, Mr.
Grithin owns g frechold property of eight
acres with anilimited beds of clay. He pro-
duees a lme of a superior quality
which took the second prize in the London
Exhibition against all comers, and was
planced next to the Blue Lids, which are the
finest in Great Britain. The qualities of
both the brick and lime are well Known in
the North Island and the principal buildings

very

in Hawke's Day are erected of these
mafterials. Mr. Griffim  was born at
Maybole, Ayrshire, Scotland, where he

learned the trade and was engaged In con-
tracting previous to his departure for the
Colony o the “Staad Haarlem' In 1878. He
obtained employment oo the Wellington
corporation works In the manufacture of
concrete blocks and attending to the drain-
age. On his arrival at Napier he soon be-
came one of the leading contractors of the
place. The conerete wall outside the Marine
Esplapade for one and a half miles in length
was bullt by Mr., Grifin. In road work he
has been very successfol and has lately com-
pleted a road of eleven and a half miles from
Kuripapongo Bridge to the Rangitikel, a
very important and soccessful nndertaking,
In connection with the Napier harbour works
he did a large amount of gquarrying; one of
iz Blasts took two tous of powder and
brought down 100,000 cubic yards of debris.
The eylinder bridge across the Rangitiked
river which lie constructed will always
remain a eredit to him. It has two spans of
127 feet each and two of geventy-five feet
and well constructed in every detail. At the
present time he is engaged In building the
Omaha bridge, and in connection with his
varions works he employs about seventy
men, Mr, Griffin has been a member of the
Napier School Committee for five years, and
of the Scinde Lodge of Masons for a con-
siderable period. He is also a director of
the Napier Starr-Powkett Company.
SELLAR, JAMES, Contractor, Napler.
Mr, Sellar, who is the son of the lnte Captain
Sellar of Peterhend, Scotland, was born in
1839 and learned his trade of a ship earpenter
with Mes=zrs. Hall amd Co., the well-known
shipbuilders of Aberdeen. After serving his
apprenticeship he went to sea and made
several voyages to this Colony, and finally
sottled in Hawke's Bay in 1873, After his
arrival he was engaged in 1 number of sub-
confracts and in 18382 took the contract to
build the Karamun Bridge between Napier
and Haszstings. Hiz knowledge of bridge
building became recogni=ed and seme of the
largest contracts in Hawke's Bay have been
carried out by him, amongst them being the
Kaiteratahl and Motun bridges at Gishorne.
The Whairoa bridge, one of the finest in the
provinee and which cost about £12A8M), re-
flects the greatest eredit on Mr. Sellar, the
contractor. He also built the Rissington and
Matapiro bridges. Mr. Sellar has In addition
to bridge-building undertaken large wharf
contracts. He econstrueted the Glasgow
wharf at Napier and completed several other
large econtracts in connectlon with the Gis-
borne harbour works. He also superintended
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the building of, and afterwards commanided
for twe and a  half years, the
stenmer, “Vietorla' owned by Messrs. Watt
Bros., of Napier, which ran on Lake Taupo.
Mr. Bellar is married and has five sons and
four danghters.

CROWTHER AND McCAULEY, Coach
Proprietors, Napier. This firm run a line
of mail coaches between Napler, Lake Taupo,
and Tokaanu, via Tarawera, leaving Napier
every Monday morning at 6.30 a.m. and
reaching Taupo on the following day. The
return coach leaves Taupo every Thursday
at 7.30 and arrives at Napler on Friday at
3 p.m. The eoach for Tokaanu leaves Taupo
during the summer months every Sanday
anid Wednesday, arrlving at its destination
the same day and returns on Mondays and
Fridays, The Pipiriki coach runs twice a
week doring the summer, leaving Wednes-
days and Saturdays for Tokaanu, returns to
Pipiriki on Tuesdays and Fridays and con-
nects with the Wanganui river boat service,
F'or the winter months a weekly coach ser-
vice is run leaving Pipiriki every Wednes-
day and arriving at Tokaanu every Thurs-
day, returning from Tokasznu on Monday
and arriving at Pipiriki on Tuesday, con-
necting with the Wanganudi river boat on
Wednesday, AMr, Crowther has an lhotel at
Raungitikei on the Napler Taupo Road, where
the coach stops for about two hours. It is
a1 fine comfortable hostelry where tourlsts
can break thelr journey and eunjoy a few
days shooting and fishing in the district.
The rivers and streams in the nelghbour-
hood abound In fish, and game iz plentiful.
The hotel is admirably Kept and visitors
receive every attentior.

Mr. SAMUEL CROWTHER, one of the
partners, was born in  Wellington, his
father, the late Mr. SBamuel Crowther,
belng one of the earliest settlers In that
provinee, Mr. Crowther left Welling-

TaHE rATE M=r, N. WILLIANMS.

ton in 1868, joined the colonial forces, and
went through the campalegn of 1868, He left
the force in 1878 and started an hotel and
gtore at Taupo, wlhich he personally carried
on for five years, since which time he has
resided in Napier, managing the line of
conches.

WILLIAMS BROS. (George and Fred.
Willlams), Ol and Colour Merehants., Emer-
gon Street, Napier.
residence of

Roads.

Telephone 56; private
putrtners, Millar and Sealy
This firm's extensive business was
estiblished in 1560 by the late Mr. Nathaniel
Willlams, who was succesded by his sons
the present proprietors in 1804, The pre-
mizes oceupy a good block of bulldines and
are lighted by fine plate-glags windows. A
large stock s kept of the newest styles in
paperhangings, oilen's stores, anil paints.
Painting and lettering is a speclalty and a
large staff is constantly employed in the
varions branches, The present proprietors
were born and edueated in Napier.

Mr. NATHANIEL WILLIAMS, tlie
Founder of the business, came to the Colony
with his brother, the well-known Mr. Henry
Williams, He was an exceedingly popular
citlzen and up to his death in 1884 had a
Prosperous. career,. He is still well and
alfectionately remewmbered by a very large
circie of friends:

PARKER, T.. AND CO. (Thomas Parker).
General Outfitters, Hat and Cap Manufac-
turers and  Government Contractors, Ma-
sonic  Corner, Hastings Street, Napier.
Dankers, Bank of New Zealand, The pre-
mises consist of a handsome two-storey
woorlden building, the lower portion of which
is used for a shop and the upper floor as n
hat manufactory and tailoring establish-
ment. The portion measures sonie
40 feet by 50 feet, and is fitted up with a
splendid =tock of gentlemen's mercery, ete.

shap
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Most of the stoek is imported from Home,
Mr. Parker being agent for the London mer.
cery firm of Messrs, Lloyd, Attree, amd
smith, J. E. Mill’s hats, and Messrs, Arthur
and Co., Stuart and McDonald’s and Eadie,
Iteland and Co's tweeds, contings, ete., also
Hobson and Sons and 8. Hess and Son for
hatters" material. The business was orlgin-
ally established about ten ¥years ago by
Messrs, W, Burnett and Ce.. In Emerson
Street, and was taken over by Mr. Parker
two and a half years ago, and shortly after
rewoved to the present commodious pre-
mises; where he has made considerable alter-
ations. The flrm bold contracts for the
supply of caps for railway officlals throush-
ont the Colony, and a dozen hands are kept
congtantly employved. AMr., Thomns Parker,
the proprietor, Is from Ayvrshirve, where he
was born in 1867, was educated In the local
school ot Belth and joined the serviee of
the Clydesdale Bank. Flve vears later he
wiag transferred to the head office at Glas-
gow, where he remained seven years. The
close continement of the bank proving in-
jurious to his health, he left for New Zea-
land in 1804 and eventually established him
gelf #8 above in Napier. Mr. Parker is a
stnunch supporter of the Hizhland Society
of Hawke's Bay. of which he is the secre-
tary. He iz aiso secretary of the kennel
club and a prominent member of the local
gun and rifle elubs,

THOMSON, JAMES PORTEOUS, Draper.
Clothier, Fancy Goods Importer, etc., Emerson
Street, Napier. P.O. Box 39; Telephone 220.
Bankers, Union Bank of Australin. Branch at
Hastings. Private residence, Cameron Road,
Napier. Mr. Thomson's thriving business was
established in 1888 and grew so rapidly that
it becanme necessary to take a second shop in
Hastings Street and open a branch at Hastings.
Tha latter is under the manarement of Mr.
Thomson's brother; but since the erection
recently of the brick premises in Emerson

"

Muissrs., T. Parker & Co.'s PREMISES.
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| JP.THOMSON DRAPER

M=, J. P. THoMs0OR's PREMISES.

Street, the Hastings Stireet shop
closed.

has been
Mr. 1nomson’s new premises are very
creditfable, both the drapery and clothing de-
partments being exceedingly well lighted and
attractive. The fine stock is displayed ad-
vantageously in the windows, and throughout
there 1s a go-ahead aspect of active business.
Particulars of the proprietor's career are given
in connection with the Napier Rifles, of which
he is the popular captain.

ODDs, WILLIAM, Tallor, Emerson
Street, Napler: Branch, Hastings (J. Kean,
manager). Mr. Dodds' well-known business
was established by him in 1802, the Hast-

Mr. W. Dopps’ PREMISES

ings branch being opened in 1806, A larze
stock of the latest tweeds is kept at both
establishments, most of which Is Imported
fdirect from the manufacturers. Mr. Dodds

Mr. W. Dobpns.

caters chiefly for the working-classes, turns

out frst-class work at
reach of all, and has a
tomers throunghout the
Whitehaven in the North of England, he
was brought up to his trade there. and
came to Napier in 18886, He has worked in
severnl of the leading establishments of
Wellington, Napier, Wanganui, ete., event-
ually starting on his own account as above.

prices within the
wide circle of cus-
district. Born In
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As a Mason he has held office as junior
wariden In Lodge Vietoria, Napler, and takes
a great interest in all athletic matters.

MARTIN, JOHN, Merchant Tallor, Ten-
nyson Street, Napier. Established 1873,
Private address, Lucy Road. Mr. Martin,
who eclaims to be the oldest established
tailor in Napier, was born in Kent, England,
and in 1838 came with his parents to Tas-
mania, where he learned his trade with Mr.

Mg. J. MARTIN.

H. Cook, at that time a leading tailor in
Hobart, He came to New Zealand In 1882,
landing at Auckland, where he remained a
short time, then continued his journey fto
Napier, where he obtained employment as
entter with Messrs. Newton and Irvine,
In 1872 he started his present business and
goon established for himself a deservedly
good name for the cut and finish of his
work. A specialty of his establishment is
that no machine work or girl labour is
employed, none but good workmen who have
learned their trade being engaged. His
business connection includes all the prin-
cipal people about Hawke's Bay. Mr. Mar-
tin is married and his sons assist him in
carrying on a legitimate talloring trade,

LAND AND LOAN COMPANY OF NEW
ZEALAND, Ltd. This company's head-
quarters are in 'l'ennyson Street, Napier. The
company was inaugurated about sixteen years
ago in England, which was specially visited
for the purpose by Mr. F. C. Fulton, who has
been from the first the company's managing
director.

Mr. FRANCIS CROSSLEY FULTON,
Managing Director of the Land and Loan Com-
pany of New Zealand, Lid., is a well-known
colonist who has been prominent in colonial
commercial circles for nearly half a century.
He was born in 1836 at Fatehgar, Bengal, India,
is a son of the late Major Robert Bell Fulton,
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wis educated

Mr.

and
School.

at Blackheath Proprietary
Fulton then entered the service

Mz. F. C. Forros.

of Messrs. Bryan, Donkin and Co., enginoers
of Bermondsey, London, and a vear later sailed
for Port Chalmers in the ship *‘Slains Castle.”
He arnived in Dunedin in 1852, his brothers
Mr. (afterwards the Hon.) James Fulton and
Mr Robert Fulton having settled there in 1849.
Shortly after his arrival he took up a small
farm at COutram, near Dunedin, but relin-
quished this to take a run at Waitaki, as one
of three partners. In 1856 he went to Sydney
and for two years received a good commercial
training. Before his return toe New Zealand
he married the youngest daughter of Mr.
ldmund Smith Hall (whose portrait appears
in the Wellington volume of this work). Mr.
Fulton again entered into inrming pursuits
in Otago, but three or four years later estab-
lished a shipping and general agency businsas
in Dunedin, which developed into a large con-
cern. Going Home in 1872, he purchased a
steamer for the Sydney and New Zealand trade,
but unfortunately this vessel was lost on her
way out. Undeterred by this misfortune, he
in the following year went Home again, pur-
chased and brought out the “Easby,” a steamer
of about 1800 tons, which he successfully ran
until 1879, when the wvessel was bought by a
Melbourne firm. In May, 1878, Mr. Fulton
suffered a very severs accident, frem which he
has never thoroughly recovered. He was a
passenger by the coach from Dunedin to
Oamaru on the last trip prior to the opening
of the railwany. The coach capsized as it was
descending the north side of the *“Horse
Range," between Palmerston South and Hamp-
den. Two of the passengers were killed, and
others, including Mr. Fulton, were severely
injured. He continued his agency business in
Dunedin until 1883, when he went to England
for a third wisit, this time with the object of
starting the Land and Loan Company of New
Zealand, with the head office for the Colony
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at Napier. In this he was successful, and ue
has held the position of managing director
from the date of the incorporation of the com-
pany. He still has s pastoral property 1o
Otago, which is in charge of a ftrustworthy
manager. Mr. Fulton is highly esteemed, and
hig long career in these has been
marked by ability, great energy and integrity.
His family consists of and four
daughters.

ALLEN,
miaker and

islands

one =01

CHARLES RICHARD,

Upholsterer, Bmerson Stroet,
Napler. Telephone 89, Buankers, DBank of
Australasia, AMr. Allen’s fine premises have
a fronthge of about sixty feet, with two
lnrge  plate-glass  windows containing  a
gplendid assortment of high ciass furniburse,
carpetings and linolenms. A Iarge business
is alsoe done in wire-woven mattresses,
which are manufactured on the premises,
and in the upholstering department about
nine men are actively employed. Mr, Allen
was born in London and came with his
parents to Napier in 1874, learned his trade

Calinet-

with Mr. Newman and pfter acting as his
foreman for over six vears, established his

own present businessin 15885, He is an expert

Mz. C. B. ALLEN.
musician, is leader of the Napler Orchestra,
and sole tenor in the cholr of 8t. Patrick’s
Cathedral., He is also an Oddfellow.
ALLEN, EDWARD THOMAS,
Gilder, Picture Dealer and Framer, ele.,
Tennyson Street, Napier. jankers, DBank
of New Zealand. I’rivate residence, Carlyle
Street. Mr. Allen has been in Napier since
1882, but prior to that time he was in busi-
ness in Wellington, where he establisiied
himgelf in 1874, Belng the only man in the
district who was brought up to the pieture
trade in the Old Country, Mr. Allen had the
patronage of all the principal residents of
Napler and surrounding distriets. He im-
ports his pictures and mouldings from the

Carver,

ZBEALAND,

best markets and always has a large assort
ment of the finest obtainable plates. He

Mg, E. T. ALLEN.

the son

Allen, of

born in London and is
of the late Mr. William
that city, where he was educated and ap-
prenticed to Messrs. Lloyd Bros, and Co.,
of Gracechurch Street. Remaining with
that firm for a period of twelve years, he left
London for this Colony in 1874 by the ship
“Douglas.” Soon after his arrival in Wel-
lington, Mr. Allen went into business in
Cuba Street and subseguently took a shop
in Lambton Quay. Leaving Wellington for
Napier, as above mentioned, in 1882, he has
had every reason to be satisfied with the
change. He was married in London in
1874 to a daughter of the late Mr. James
Cross, of Cambenswell, and has a daughter
nd two s0ns.

Wils

ASHTON, SAMUTEL EDWARD, Cabinet-
maker, Upholsterer and Undertaker, Hast-
ings Street, Napler. Bankers, Bank of New
Zealand, Mr. Ashton occeuples fine premises
in the principal business street in Napler.
The bullding consists of two stories and the
main shop has a frontage of 338 feet by a
depth of 60 feet. The windows are hand-
gome and the display of stock is attractive,
Mr. Ashton was born in Manchester, Eng
land, In 1836, and was educated there and
at Liverpool. In both of those towns he
had considerable 1*$]I|'rilvl:ll'1' of the bnsiness
to which he was apprenticed and in 1882
came to the Colony under engagement to
Mr. J. 8. Large, the well-known cabinet
maker of Napler, with whom he remained
until that gentleman retired Inm 1887,  Mr.
Ashton then entered into business on his
own account,

ROSS., J. R., AND CO.,
Tobacconists, and Importers of Sporling
Requisites, Hastings Street, Napler. Mnr,
J. R. Ross, the popular proprietor of the

Hairdressers,
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Messirs. Ross & Co.'s PREMISES.

extensive business, is evidently determined
t¢ Keep in the front rank in his own line,
and few saloons In the Colony are more
attractive than his, which is situated in a
portion of the Masonic Block., Large plate-
glass windows with ornamental marcins of
beautifnl tints, contain a great display of
golf, tennis, cricket, football, boxing, and
Giher  sporting requisites, and massive
double glass doors open into the artistically
fitted and dressed shop. At night especially,
when the whole Is brillinntly lighted with
incandescent lamps of great power, it pre-
sents a very striklng appearance. The walls
of the shop are ornamented with large and
very handsome glass ecases filled with goods
arranged with business-like taste. From the
shop, aceess to the gentlemen's saloon is
gained through a pair of fine plate-glass
doors. This room is 32 feet by 14 feet,
elaborately appolnted with all the most re-
cent mprovements of the tonsorlal art, com-
bined with comfort and ease. Four of the
latest Archer patent chairs, handsome sham-
pooing basins and large and numerous mir-
rors, are among the many features of the
saloon. An adjacent room, beautifully fur-
nished, Is mnsed as a ladies’ hairdressinge
saloon, and behind that again is a place for
storing the surplus stock and the tobaeco-
cutting machinery., Mr. Ro=ze is a son of the
late Mr. W. F. Ross, who will be remen
hered by all old “West Coasters” and “*Wel-
lingtonlans,” and who died a few years ago
while on a visit with his wife to the Chicago
Exhibition. Mr. Ross takes a keen interest
in all loeal sport=; he i= one of the executive
of the Napier Rowing Club, and one of the
committee of the Seinde Cricket Club, vice-
president of the Allianee Cricket Club and
Tradesmen's Football Cluab, a prominent
niember of the Wanderers' Bleyele and Na-
pier Swinuning Clubs and member of the
IHawke's Bay Acclimatisation Soclety.

ALBION HOTEL (Mrs. MeCartney, pro-
prietress), Hastings Street, Napier.  This
comfortable hotel, which is situated on the
main thoroughfare within an easy distance
of the principal public buildings, is a fine
substantial structure containing abount
twenty-fonur rooms, Ineluding sitting, com-
mercial, and dining rooms. The front has a
handsome baleony and the back entrance
leads to the Marine T"arade.

Mrs.,. MeCARTNEY, I'roprietress, is the

widow of the late Captain MeCartney, who
was drowned in the Napier floods of 1807

THE rLATE CAPrTAIN MCCARTNEY.
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with other brave men In their endeavonrs
to save the lives of their fellow-croatares.

Captain MecCARTXNEY wns boro in Man-
chester in 18458 and came to the Colony by
the ship “"Moptmorency."” He was one of
the plonesvs of the country and took an
active part In the Maorl wars as o member
of the No. 1 division of the Mounted Armed
Constabulary In which e was i non-con-
misgioned oflicer and orderly to the late Sie
Dopald Moliean, Defence Minister., Mr.,
MoCartney was stationed at the Spit as
sergeant-in-charge. He joined the ' DBat-
tery of YVolunteers in 1885 with the rapk of
lientenant, wns elected captain in 1857 and
plaved on the district reserve list in 1806
Capt. MeCartney first took the Groen-
Hotel, then the **Caledonian,'’
and finally the “Alblon™ in 186, He lefl
a widow and four children to mourn thele

lass.

niogilows

THE CLARENDON CLUR HOTEL
(Thomas DPeddie, proprietor), Napler. Es-

tablished 1800 qand rebullt in 1882, Tele-
phone f0; 1%0, Box 118, The hotel, which
2 a fine commodions bullding, stands oppo-
site the post office and within a short dis
tnuce of the ehief business places and bunks
It contiains thirty-five well-furnished rooms,
includling dining, commercial and JIadies
dining-rooms, besldes n number of private
parlonrs, hot, ecold, and shower barhs, and
every other convenlence and comfost,

Mr. THOMAS PEDDIE, the popuar Pro-
prietor, was born in North Leith, Scot-
land, in 1838, and at the age of szeventeen
welt to sena which he followed for a number
of years ns steward., Hig last ship was the
“Blue Jacket," which he left in 1867 to
settle in Napier., He received employment ns
storeman with Messrs. Kinross and Co.,
with whom he remnined three years. Tn
1570 he purchased the Taradale Hotel and
afler doing very well for about six years he

Mg. T. PEDDIE.
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so0ld the

property. A year later he pur-
chaged the leage of the Clarvendon Clul
Hotel and acquoired the freehold in 1881,

I"art of the present bullding has been leased
by the Napier Club, During his long career
as hotelieeper Mr, Peddie has made a host
of friends by his sterling qualities and the
“Clarendon Is much frequented by squat-
ters, tourists, and the general travelling
public. In 1870 he married Miss . Dunbar,
of IForres, Morayshire, and has two sons
amd three daughters.

THE CRITERION HOTEL (Samuel Charl
ton, proprietor), ¥Fmerson and Hastings

MR, S. CHARLTON;

streets, Napler, Telephone 57; P.O. Box 29,
Bankers, Bank of New South Wales. This
iz one of the finest hotels in Hawke's Bay
awd contains about fifty-three rooms. The
building has a handsome front with a
spacious baleony. On the ground floor are
the commercial-room where all the New Zea-
land, Australian, and Home papers are filed,
a number of sitting and club rooms, and a
billiard-room furnished In excellent style
with two fine tables, and also a social hall,
Hoor are comfortably fur-
nished dining and double bedrooms and four
large drawlng-rooms, opening on to the
baleony, from which a fine view of the sea
is obtained, The dining-room, ecapable of
accommaoidating about eighty gunests, is also
upstairs. The hotel has been newly decor-
ated and furnished throughout by the present
proprietor, and offers every inducement to
gquatters, travellers, and tourlsts. XNotlce
boards of the Hawke's Bay Jockey Club,
Xapier Park Racing Club, and Hawke's Bay
Union are fixed in a conspieuouns position in
the entrance halls.

(in the second

Mr. BAMUEL CHARLTON, the popular
'ropivietor, is a native of Omagh, County
Tyrone, Ireland, and came to the Colony In
1872, landing with his parents in Hawke's
Bay. He first learned the saddlery business
with Mr. John MeVay, of Napler, with whom
he remained fourteen years. In 1886 he left
Mr. MeVay aund started business at Kalkora
North where he remained four years, after
which he purchased the Te Aunte Hotel,
remaining In it two years, when he took over
the Railway Hotel, Hastings, and re-
mained in possession five years, making a
handsome competence during that time. It
was In May, 1898, that Mr. Charlton teck
over the * Criterion,” where by his courtesy
and attention he has added not a little to the
established reputation of that popular
hostelry., Mr. Charlton owns a small farm

ZEALAND.

at Hastings from which he obtains supplies
of poultry, fruit, and wvegetables for the
hotel. Mr, Charlton is a member of the
Hawke's Bay Jockey Club, Napier Park
Club, and other local ¢lubs,

THE MARINE PARADE HOTEL (John
Charles Mason, proprietor), Marine IParade,
Napier. Telephone 2583, ‘This hotel is built
on one of the most charming sites in Napier,
within a short distancee of the Coort House,
Post Office, Unlon Steamship Company’s
offices, and banks. It overlooks the sea,
which iz only a few vards from the hotel,
and from its spaciouns balcony a most un-
equalled view is to be had, embracing the
Kidnappers on the one hand and the Mahia
Peninsula on the other. The hotel is a fine
two-storey building, with a broad balcony
running round the whole front and into which
a unmber of sitting-rooms open. On the
eround Hoor sare the social hall, a large
Inxuriously-furnished room, a dining-room,
capable of sixty guests,
commercial, rveading, and. other parlours,
O the first floor are about eighteen well-
furnished rooms, also a number of sitting-
rooms overlooking the sea. A few yards
from the hotel, sea-hathing can be indulged
in. This hotel is strongly recommended to
vigitors desirous of recruiting their health.

accommodating

afr. J. C.
native of South
Colony in 1875. His first hotel experience
was at the Club Hotel, Masterton, where
he remained for nine yvears, being manager
for a considerable part of that time. He
next went to Wellington  and was for
cirhtesn months in the Empire Hotel. In
1508 he came to Napler anid took possession
of the Marine I'arade Hotel Mr. Mason
is asslsted by Mrs., Mason who looks after all

MASON, the Proprietor, is a
Wales and

came to the

the domestic
great experience in hotel management,

arrangements and has had

Mg, J. C. Magox,
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MASONICU HOTEL (Frank Moeller, pro-
prietor), Marine Parade and Tenny=on and

Hastings Sireefs, Napier. PO, Box 89
Bankers, National Bank of New Zealand.
“Phe Masonic' of Napler may be shortly

desceribed as an hotel without a rival. Other
good hotels there are in the town and pro-
vinee but none can vie with the *“Masonie™”
In the matter of site it Is absolutely unigue
in this Colony, if not in the Southern Hemi-
sphere.  With its noble double balecony front-
Ing the finest marine promenade south of
the Line, and entranee on the busicst part
of the principal thoroughfare of the town,
it would be very hard to beat it for position.
But this is by no means the only excellent
advantage by which the hotel gains general
favonr. The honse s very large, and the
reneral style of the establishment needs bhut
to be seen (o call forth the admiration of
even the most fastidious. In all there are
over g hundred rooms, the bedrooms alone
numbering eighty., In the basement are ex-
tensive wine-cellars, a1 splendid  billiard-
room and a “Dive.” On the ground floor is
the main entrance from Tennyson Street,

the manager's office, a delightful commercial
room, library and musie room, splendid
writing-room with about a dozen writing
desks, card-rooms, elaborately-fitted private
bar, and the magnificent public dining-room
in which two hundred guests can find ample
accommodation. The kitehen, also on this
floor, is one of which any proprietor may be
prowd, and it is not too muoeh to say that a
visit to thiz admirably condocted depart-
ment inereases the edge of one's appetite,
The main feature of the frst fdoor is the
ladies' drawing-room, where perfect com-
fort is accompanied by taste In decoration.
Here, nlse, are music and writing rooms and
pleasantly-furnished  private apartments,
The second floor is composed of bedrooms
with fine bath-rooms and lavatories. The
flight of steps to the principal entrance is
constrocted of marble. “The Masoniec"” is, as
it degerves to be, patronised by distinguished
vigitors to the distriet. The view from the
bhaleonles embraces the whole coast of the
Ray from Cape Kidnappers on the south to
Mahia Peninsula on the north, and the sight
of the restless sea s a perennial source of

interest to all beholders. The ornamental
band rotunda presented by Measrs. Mee and
Clarke to the ecitizens of Napler, is situated
in the Marine PParade in front of the
YAlasondie,” amd on warm summer evenings
the town bands frequently perform
Tao all classes of visitors the “*Masonic'
certainly offers superlative attractions. Com-
mercial travellers meet thelr best enstomers
at the “Masonic' and the twelve fine sample-
rooms provided by the thoughtfal proprietor
prove an  additional advantage to them.
Tourists are attracted in large numbers,
every care being taken to meet their special
wants, the Rotorua, Taupo,
and Kuripapanga sanatoriums leave the
“‘Masonic'’ corner. Convalescents in search
of health obtain the benefit of the invigor-
ating sea-breeze from the balconies or on the
adjacent 'arade, while the Blufll overlooking
the shore is only a few minutes® walk from
the hotel. The heuse iz nearly fire-proof,
even the beautifully panelled ceilings being
of iron.

Mr. . MOELLER, the Proprietor of the
Masonic Hotel, though still a yoong man,

thiere,
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has had an extended experience in his

present  line, His father, the late Mr.
Philip Moeller, of Wellington, was for a

constderable period proprietor of the Empire
Hotel and at the time of his death was pro-
prietor of the Oeceidenial Hotel, which Is
still earrvied on by his widow. Mr. Frank
Movller gained his experience during his
manngement of the “Occidental” for his
mother. In 1882 he left Welllngton for
Napier and slnee then has been host of the
“Masonie,” which during his occupation has
been renovated and refornished throughout.
Mr., Moeller was specially complimented on
the excellent management of his fine hotel
by His IDxcellency the Harl of Ranfuarly.
Mrs. Moeller, the popular hostess, personally
snperintends the domestie arrangements and
iz palnstaking In her attention to invallds,

THE NAPIER HOTEL (Willlam Parnell,
proprietor), Hastings and BEdwards Streets,
Telephone 251; PO, Box 142, Bankers,
Bank of New South Wales. This is a fine
two-storey building containing about fifteen
bedrooms, ladies’ drawing-room, sitting-
rooms, confmercial-room, and also a fine well
appointed dining-room, capable of accommo-
dating fifty guests. ‘I'bhere are also hot, cold,
and =shower baths, and salt-water baths
adjocent, The whole house is very comfor-
tably furnished, and guests receive every
care and attention combined with guietness,

Mr. W. PARNELL, the Proprietor, is the
son of Mr. William Parnell, superintendent
of the Botaniecal Gardens, Dublin, and was
born in Dulilin in 1855, where he was edu-
cated and afterwards brought up to the
grain trade. He came to Gisborne in 1884
and was with his unele, My, Arthur Parnell,

ty
i

| i

Mnr. W. PARKELL.

of Glsborne, trading as Parnell and Baylan,
general merchants. He remained In that
firmm six vears, then started business for
himsgelf as stationer and bookseller, whieh

THE CYCLOPEDIA OF NEW

he carried on sucecesafully for a considerable
time. In 1895, he came to Napler and pur-
chased the present hotel. Mr., Parnell, who
las a fine barltone volee, was leader of the
principal concerts at Gisborne for a number
of years. He was also master for two years
of Liodge Turanganui, Gisborne. In 1891 he
married Miss Dinan,

GILLESPIE, PETER, Registered Plumber,
Tinsmith, Gasfitter. Sheet Zine and Galvan-
Iron Worker, Hmerson Street, Napler.
bankers, Bank of New Zealand. Established
In 18G5, The business, which s one of the
principial ones in Napier, employs eight men;
the workshops oceupy n space of half an
noere and are fitted np with the latest machi-
nery. A large number of water-tanks and
baths are turned out from this shop. Elee-
tric bell fitting is a great feature in the
business. Mr. Gillespie s a native of Ayr-
shire, Scotland, where he was born in 15871,
and learned his trade and afterwards found
ecmployment with Messrz, Walloee  and

ised

Mzr. P.

GiLLEsPIE.

Connell, plumbers of Glasgow, with
he remained three years and
thorongh experience. In 1553 he came out
to New Zenland to tnke up the present
business which had been started originally
Ly his late unele, and which he has grently
Increased since taklng possession. Mr. GI-
lesple 12 a2 member of the Masonice DBody
attached to Vietoria Lodge, Napler, and al85
a member of the Napier Park Racing Clul.

whon
goined a

FRYER, JAMES ATKINBON, Ironmonger,
Hastings Street, Napler. Teleplione b,
Bankers, Bank of New Zealand. Mr. Fryer's
business, which is one of the Inrgest in
Napler and was# established in 18668, occuples
one of the best sites in Napler. The build-
ing is a handsome two-gtorey one with front
of Oamaru stone, and has a width of forty
feet with a depth of 110 feet. The shop Is

ZEALAND,

entered by heavy cedar and plate-glass doors,
and presents a very fine appearance with a
splendid stock of hardware, cutlery, and
electro-plated wares in  beautiful show-

Mz. J. A. FryER.

cnses. At the back of the premises and
approached from Tennyson Street, are the
workshops for gsupnsmithing, plombing, and
gasfitting, in whichnine bands are employed,
The first floor immediately over the shop is
used as a showroom where a large portion
of the fine stock Is exhibifed. Store-rooms
at the back of the main building contain the
principal part of the bulk goods., Mr. Fryer
iz a native of Bradford, Yorkshire, and wns
brought up to the wool trade. He ecame to
New Zealand in 1864 by the ship *“Annie
Wilson,® landing at Auckland, He settled
at the Thames goldfields some fime after-
wards as a wholesale wine and spirit mer-
chant, and general dealer, He came to
Napier In the latter part of 1876 and In
conjunction with Mr. Ruddock, the well-
known sharebroker of Aunckland, bought the
old-established lronmongery business of Mr.
Mike Boylan, a business he earried on very
suceessfully for years. Mr. Ruddock retired
in 1895, leaving Mr. Fryer sole proprietor.
Mr. Fryver is a Mason of some years stand-
Ing.

HANNAH AND 0. (Willinm Hannah),
ool and Shoe Importers, corner of Brown-
Inz and Hastings Streets, Napler. Branches,
Heretaunga Road, Hastings, Mre. J. Haodd
(manager). Telephone 248. Bankers, Bank
of New Zealand. Private address, Brewster
Street. This firm's businezs, which is one
of the larzest in Hawke's Bay, was estal
lished by Mr. Hannah in 1883, The premises
are large and commodiouns and situated in
the centre of the town. The shop has two
large plate-glass windows filled with hoots
and shoes of the best European and Colonial
manufactures. Besides keeping a large and
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varied assortment from the best known and
fashionable makers a considerable stock of

New Fealand manafactured goods 2 also
kept. Inside the shop are ladies' and gentle-

men's fitting rooms, where attention s pald
to Lhe vequirements of cnstomers,

Mr. WILLIAM HANNAH, one of the pro-
prietors, Is 4 native of Belfast, and brother
of Mr. Robert Hannah, of Wellington; he
came to the BEmpire Clty in 1877 by the ship
“Wairoa,” joining his brother's business on
arrival, Four years later he left for Wan-
ranul and took charge of the branch there
in 1881, In 1853 Mr. Hannah came to Napler
anid opened the present business, but rve-
mained there some time, then went to Aunck-
lund and opened premises in Queen Street,
reniined year, then
returned to Napler to agaln take ¢harge of
the business. My, Hannah s married and
has two children.

where he abont n

RING, ARCHIBALID, Saddler
Maker, Agent for the Humber and
Masz=sey Harriz Bicycles, Emerson Street,
Napler, Branch, Taradale. Private resi-
dence, Edward Street. The shop occupies a
frontage of twenty feet with fine plate-glass
afil-
dery and harness, A good stock of bicyeles
Is kept and a complete plant for the repairs
of machines is also on the premises. Mr,
King s a native of Yorkshire, and came
with his parents In 1884 to Napier. He
learned his trade in the well-known estab-
lishment of Mr. John MeVay, in whose ein-
ployment he remained about eight years,
then started business om his own aceount in
1503, He takes n great Interest in sports,
+':-']wl'i:1|]_\‘ -':'1'1'||I|‘.f and ericket. Mr. I{In;.': i=

and Har-

ness

windows, displaving an assortment of

married and has one child,
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NORTH BRITISH AND HAWEE'S pAY
FREEZING COMPANY, Lid. (Mr. W. Kinross
White, general manager). Head Office, Glas-
gow, Scotland; London Office, 22 Basinghall
Street; Colonial Office, Napier; Works, Wes-
tern Spit, Hawke's Bay. The London managers
are Mesars Bryee, Junor and White, and the
Colonial Board, with head-quarters at Napioer,
congists of Meassra . W. Knowlesa (chairman),
Sydney Johnston, H. H. DBridge, Arthur
Harding, J. B. A'Deans, and T. H. Lowry.

Warnau Moana.

and
every department.
at a time in the slaughter-house; the electric
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Mr. W, Kinross White is, ex officio, a member
of the Colrnial Board. The Home Board con-
gista of Messrs John Galloway, chairman
(director of Shaw, SBavill and Albion Company);
Edward Nelson (James Nolson and Sons);
T. R. Johnston, and R. B. Bryce. This com-
pany was established in March, 1858, and suc-
cveeded so well that in three years it was found
necessary to extend the buildings and domble
the plant. The average output has increased
from 500 to 1200 sheep per day, and the works
can also deal with fifty bullocks per day. The
works include a boiling-down establishment,
a cooperage and a fellmongery, and in all five
acres of gpround are coverad by the plant. The
machinery includes a Hall's earbonic anhydride
frigerator and a Haslam cold-air machine with
a capacity of 110,000 cubic feet. The company's
capital is £80,000 and the plant and buildings
£68 000, Owver a hundred hands are
employed at the works, and the greatest care
ingenuity are called

o

have cost

into requisition in
Twenty butchers can work
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light iz installed at the works, which are kept
clean and fresh throughout by means of excel-
lent savitary arrangements and efficient drain-
age. There are four freezing-rooms with a
capacity for 28,000 carcases, and there are two
large roomsa for the cold-nir machines. Steam
is supplied by two large boilers, manufactured
by W. Cable and Co., Wellington, and by &n
auxilinry small tubular boiler by Messrs Niven
and Co., of Napier.
the Lancashire type, and are each of filty horse-
power. Mr, T. J. Wilson, the chief engineer,
has all this department under his supervision.
The company ships to London and other ports,
and its shipments are handled chiefly by Messara
James Nelson and Sons. In with
the work of shipping ecarcases a contrivance
known as a “revolving traveller” is used, and
the company also has an insulated steam tender

The large boilers are of

connection
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and refrigerator for use in transhipping from  ton. On the expiration of his indentures, he and rapidly advanced in his line, and at the
the works to outgoing steamers, joined the Government steamer “*Stelln™ as age of twenty-one was secomwd buyver for a
gsecond englneer, then entered the Unlon frm of merchants In his town, doing a lorge
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Mr. W. LLILI{DSE' “}flllj".dt};e gm_;erh‘ Steinuship Company’s service as third engi- wool export trade. Mr. Highley came to
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manager lor “_"-' _‘“Du;]i"‘“:]"; 4 “‘B”““ 'E'lr‘ forﬂ:.m;lt neer of the s.8. “Penguin" and was after- Napier in 1876 in the ship “Waitara,” and
“m_ﬂm_ﬂ S 1|n_ ik lnb-'\: I:} 11-]1'-} ];F wiards on the =8 “Ruranul."” Mr. Wilson entered inte business with his father in the
““? 1:&“““;'“1“’ Iml 1orming “:;:‘ oria r]”‘l“l Y then entered the service of the North British leather trade, but after a year or so took

I ¥ i TR 77 P r
“?E L‘.D;"' h‘ﬁ; - “1'0:}““:."1‘ .;:-mlmn}, KAk Freeging Company as third engineer. His to his old line, classing some of the best
- . ] 2 (4
[1]1: Wi ’} B ;HH T_“"”mﬁ:" :_ir'“ ’J‘“‘“] nlllllfl,t;j, thorough knowledge soon raised him to the clips of wool in Hawke's Bay and also
) 1] F T : ] i ry . - n
Hr':::ﬁ -,:]L:I “I-Iu:;.vli“'w El" l'::”f:"_ nlE‘n S _1 position of second engineer and in 1806 he managing various fellmongeries from time

5 e A L e EEEIRE ALY was appointed chief engineer. AMr. Wilson to time, till receiving his present appoint-
which he has managed since its establishment, it s ) A\ . Flotol : s :

T . t i : . il married a daunghter of Mr. Henry Fletcher, ment in 1896. Mr. Highley has taken
llﬂ(- o 5 Ul.l:"l.'l.f.'ll(.b’-.l'.l- IET_ L pot Ant commercis i well-known resident of Hawke's nﬂ", anil an active ”"'-t in social and iili“l.l [llliliiﬂ"'ll
positions. Mr. White is referred to elsewhere has Ewvo ohtldcan ’ T holds Rl tf | 4 lities
as a member of the Napier Harbour Board. i : E alfairs, holding many useful positions, and

Mr. WILLIAM FREDERICK HIGHLEY, has also during his Colonial career contri-
Mr. THOMAS JAMES WILSON, Chief Fellmonger-in-charge and wool expert of buted his quota to transforming our forests

Engineer of the North Rritish Freezing the North British and Hawke's Bay Freeoz. into the proverbial “waving cornfield."

Company, Napler, was born in 1861, and s ing Company, Napler, Is the son of Mr, TOMOANA STATION AND FREEZING
the son of Mr. Alexander Wilson, one of Henry Highley, a retired tanner and leather WORKS (Nelson Bros., Ltd., proprietors) are
Wellingtonu's oldest and most respected manufacturer, who was one of the ecarliest situated on the line of railway about ten
colonists. He was educated at Government to Introduce that industry Into Hawke's miles from Napier. These are extensive works,
schools and showing an early aptitude for Bay. Mr. Highley was born In 1556 at Hali- and include the dwellings of the managers and
mechanies, his father apprenticed him to fax, Yorkshire, and was educated and cottages of the emplovees. It would be diffi-
Messrs, Cable and Co., the well-known firm tralned to the wool trade at Bradford. He  cult to imagine a more suitable situation, with
of engineers and [ronfounders, of Welling- had an early start in life in the factories ita perfectly level and fertile land for the
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receiving paddocks, of which tliere are ten of
varions sizes. The paddocks are plentifully
supplied with water from a dozen or more
artezsian wells, the deepest of which is about
180 feet and gives over 130,000,000 gallons per
annum ; and with space enough for still greater
and almost unlimited extension, the Tomeana
Works are assuredly amongst the most ad-
vantageously constructed industries in the
Colony. To fully describe this important con-
cern would fill many pages of the Cyclopedia,
and more than can be spared. The reader is
therefore referred to the English periodical
“Commerce,  of August 25th, 1897, and t{o the
“Journul of the Society of Arts,”” London, of
March 15th, 1835, in both of which a mass af
imtereating information is given concerning the
frozen meat industry in general and the
Tomoane Works in particular. However, in
order to give some idea of the gigantic propor-
tions which the frozen meat trade has assumed
in this Colony, a few facts and
necessary and must prove interesting. To
describe even cursorily the whole process,
which begins with live sheep and cattle in the
paddocks at Tomoana and ends with deliciously
prepared joints on the tables of the wealthy
in England, might be wearizome to readers,
and it must suffice to say that time and labour
saving innovations have been
introduced to minimise human
rigidly ensure cleanliness,

hgures are

exhaustivaly
contact and
In the slaughter-
house, a long narrow building with constantly-
flushed concrete floors, there are thirty-six
butchers, who, in the course ol oue day, kill
and dress fifty head of cattle and 2500 sheep,
the carcases of which are despatched by over-
head rails to the dressing, cooling, weighing,
ficketing and grading-room. Thé greatest care
is exercised in grading, no old ewes and no
sheep weighing over seventy pounds being
The examining expert,
in penally of losing his position, is charged
with the duty of rejecting all carcases showing
blemishes, bad colour, poor condition, or ex-
cessive fattiness. The freezing-rooms, of which

passed for shipment.

there are six, are capable of holding 12,000
carcases, and are situated in the upper storey
of the building, the cooled carcases being ele-
vated for freezing by wvery ingenious contri-
vances on the endless chain principle. When
[rozen, each carcase is put into a separate bag
and passed through shoots in the floors into the
store-rooms below, whose capacity is equal to
the safe storage of 100,000 carcases, Electric
lizht is fitted throughout the entire establish-
ment, and every precaution is taken against
fire: water mains extend te every part, a night
watchman is on duty, and the men are trained
for any emergency. The engine and boiler-
rooms are most interesting to the ordinary
observer. Steam is supplied by six Babeock

AND INDUSTRIAL.

and Wilson's boilers, producing 800 horse
power. The engine-room contains two cof
Haslam's largest cold-air refrigerators, each
capable of delivering 170,000 cubic feet of cold
air per hour at a temperature of seventy degrees
below zero. There iz also a 120,000 cubic feet
Haslam refrigerator, which has been converted
by Mesara. J. J. Niven and Co. to the Linde
British Ammonia system, and now easily
accomphishes all the refrigerating for the estab-
lishment at a greatly reduced cost of working
and consumption of fuel. The other two
machines, therefore, are mere stand-byes in
case of emergency. Firewood is largely used
for fuel, and this is split in the slack season
by the company’'s men. Besides beef and
mution freezing and exporting, Messrs. Nelson
Bros. do a very large trade in tinned meats,
and also in freezing and storing fish, fowls,
game, ete., for local consumption. The boxes
and tins required are made on the premises,
and everything from start to finish is on =
splendid scale. The “Tomoana” brand of root
and crop manure is favourably known and is
in great demand all over the Colony. In every
way the Tomoana Freezing Works reflect the
greatest credit on all concerned in their manage-
ment, as well as on the Colony at large. Mr.
William Nelson, of Tomoana, is the general
manager for New Zealand; Mr. G, L. Sunder-
land, the works manager; Mr. H. G. Warren,
socretary; and Mr. J,"P. Elwood is engineer.
By these gentlemen the utmost courtesy was
extended to the writer on the occasion of his
visit to the works, and their kinduness included
a very enjoyable luncheon, at which the pre-
vious season's frozen mutton was practically
tested, and so much enjoyed that it became a
gquestion whether it had not really been greatly
mmproved by freezing.

Mr. WILLIAM NELSON, General Manager
for New Zealand of Nelson Bros., Ltd., was
born in Warwick, England, in 1843, and is a
gon of Mr. George Nelson, now deceased, but
formerly very well known as the founder of the

UCarcass BToracE Roowm, Tovmoawa FrREEzZIxG YWoORKS.
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still celebrated firm of Nelson, Dale and Co.,
gelatine manufacturers. Edueated at Warwick
College, Mr. whon twenty vears of
age, came to New Zealand, and landed in Auck-
lard in 1863, per ship “Devonshire.” He im-
mediately joined the militia, but before the
ond of the year he began sheeplarming with
hiz elder brother, Mr. Frederick Nelson, men-
tioned in another article as one of the
directors of the Colonial Consignment and
Their first station

Nelson,

Distributing Company, Litd.

]'-IIII.. II'|7"lr xl-'.]..l-lu};,
wis at Kereru. Then they lhad one at Wai-
pukurau, and latterly one on the Herelaunga
plains, which is still in full swing, and contri-
butes during the season an average of 600D
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sheep to the works, which were started by
Messrs. Nelson Bros. privately, and afterwards

gold to the company. TFew of Hawke's Bay's

pioneers and leading men are more highiy
esteemed than Mr. Willinm Nelson, either as
a colonist or as an employer. Mr. Nelson

lives on the Tomoana estate, about half a mile
from the works, and is the popular chairman
of the Clive River Board. Married in 1865 to
Miss Bicknell, daunghter of the late Mr. Henry
]:_li-'kuvH, ul' Bu:';__::]]', }:ul'!h "'nl".l!l'-.h, ?'-1I‘. :"':L"l.vuh
has five daughters and six sons. All the sons
are either farming or connected with the works.

Mr. HENRY GEORGE WARREN, the New
Zoaland Fu{'l'x'i:lr}' of Meszra, Nelzon 151‘!."«!-‘!-., IJ.(] 5
was born at Hampstead, Middlesex, England,

Excme

Rooxm, ToMoaRA FREEZING

WORKS.

THE ToMoixA YWORES.

in 1862, He is the sen of the late Mr, H. 15
Warren, gentleman, and was educated at the
Palace School, Enfield, and at King's Collego.
In 1879 he joined the staff of the Royal Bank
of Scotland, and g vear later came out with

Al

- ®

Mr. H. (. Wainnex.

Mr. Nelson as a eadet [or the New Zealand
counting-house, per Orient liner “Sorata,” on
her fateful voyage when she ran ashore near
Adelaide, South Auatralin. Mr, hns
therefore seen the growth of the establishment

Warren

from its embryo stage and has been intimately
connected with it ever since. It is hard to
believe that well within his lifetime the splen-
did buildings at the Tomoana Works have becn
erected, yet in 1880 only a whare stood on the
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site of the present magnificent estate. When
the office of New Zealand secretary was created
Mr. Warren was appointed to it. Mr. Warren
is 8 cricketer and a lover of golf, and is the
honorary secretary and tressurer of the Here-
taunga Clay Pigeon Shooting Club. In 1887
he murried a daughter of the late Mr. Leslie
Thomson, of Canterbury, but had the mis-
fortune to lose his wife in 1892, and was left
with one daughter.

Mr. GEORGE LANGDALE SUNDER-
LAND, Manager of ''omoana Freezing Works,
wis born in Ulverstone, Lancashire, England,
in 1852. He is the son of the late Captain
G. H. C. Sunderland, R.N., and was educaszed
at Greenwich Royal Naval College. Joining
the Navy in 1864, Mr. Sunderland served on
the Mediterranean, Pacific and West Indian
stations, but retired in 1878 with the rank of
sub-lieutenant., Two years later he came to
this Colony, per ship “Earl of Zetland,” and
on his arrival at Dunedin he went on to Poverty
Bay, where some of his friends resided, and
there he engaged in sheepfarming on his own
gecount at “Lavenham,” a station in the Patu-
tahi block, about ten miles from CGisberne.
Mr. Sunderland, in 1888, undertook the manage-
ment of Messra. Nelson Bros'. Poverty Bay
branch works, and five years later was pro-
moted to his present position. Since then the
works have been very greatly extended. While
resident in Poverty Bay, Mr. Sunderland held
a seat on the Cook County Council for fourteen
or fifteen years; he was chairman for five years,
and was the Government nominee on the
Licensing Bench. He 13 a good cricketer, and
on many occasions he was a representative of
the district in interprovincial and other
matches. At the present time he is Master
of the Hounds in the Hawke's Bay Hunt Club.
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He was married in 1875 to the daughter of Mr.
Wordsworth Harrison, of “The Lund,” Ulver-
stone, and has three daughters. In 1893 Mr.
Sunderland took a trip to the Old Land, during
& well-earned leave of absence.

Mr. JOHN PATRICK ELWOOD, the
Engineer for Mesars. Nelson Bros., Lid., served
his apprenticeship with Messra, May and
Mountain, civil and mechanical engineers, of
Birmingham, and came to this Colony in 1880,
per ship “Waikato,” under engagement to
Messrs. Nelson Bros. and Willinms (afterwards
Nelson Bros.). Mr. Elwood has, since his
arrival, lived at Tomoana, and has drawn the
plans for, and superintended the erection of,
all the buildings at the head establishment
and the branches. These, and the condition
of the machinery under his charge, reflect the
greatest credit upon Mr. Elwood.

THE COLONIAL CONSIGNMENT AND
DISTRIBUTING COMPANY, LTD., London.
This company was formed in 1895 to take over
the English branch of the business of Messrs.
Nelson Bros, Lid., and therefore no notice
of the latter could be complete without refer-
ence to the Distributing Company. The capital
consists of £225 000 in ordinary shares, £75,000
in cumulative six per cent. preference shares,
and £100,000 in four and a half per cent. first
mortgage debentures. Sir Montague Nelson,
K.C.M.G., is chairman of directors, and his
co-directors are Sir Westby Percival, K.C.M.G.,
and Messrs. . H. Byas, W. 8. Davidson,
Harrison Davis, W. T. Holmes, Fredoerick
Nelson, and M. €. Thomson. The Colonial
Consignment and Distributing Company does
not confine its operations to frozen meat, but
transacts a large and increasing import trade
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in colonial fruit and dairy produce. The head
offices are at 15 Dowgate Hill, London, E.C.,
and the refrigerating stores are at Nelson's
Wharf, Lambeth, S.E. The dairy produce
stores are at 64 and 66 Tooley Street, the meat
stalls are in Smithfield Market, and the pro-
vineial branches are at Birmingham, Liverpool,
Manchester, Newcastle-on-Tyne, and Sheffield.
The company's refrigerated store at Mode
Wheel, on the Manchester Ship Canal, erected
to meet a desire expressed by Colonial shippers,
has been completed, and the company is now
in & position to deal in the most advantageous
manner with direct shipments of frozen meat
and other produce. 'L'he building is believed
to be the most complete of its kind in the
world, and has every facility for meeting all
requiremonts of the ftrade, having storage
capacity for 100,000 sheep, Vessels drawing 26
feet of water can lie alongside the wharves and
discharge their cargo into the store, which is
directly connected with the principal railway
systems of the Midlands, North of England and
Scotland. Within a radius of forty miles from
this store, the population exceeds very con-
siderably that of the same area around London,
and can be supplied from this centre with a
minimum amount of handling and exposure.
Special arrangements have been made for de-
frosting meat, the eight chambers fitted for
this purpose being capable of dealing with
4000 sheep, or an equivalent in beef, per week.
Fruit, butter, and other articles of similar
character can be stored at any required tem-
perature. The store will work in connection
with the existing agencies of the company at
the Manchester Central Ment Market, Liver-
pool, Birmingham, Newcastle-on-Tyne, and
Sheffield, stc., besides distributing direct to
retailers, and will be under the management of
Mr. M.C. Thomson, a director of the company.
The capacity of the principal store at Nelson's
wharf, Lambeth, is equal to the asccommodation
of 250,000 carcases, and most complete arrange-
ments exist for the rapid and economical dis-
tribution of the cargoes as they arrive. The
chief difficulty with which the meat industry
had to contend for many years after its success
in all other important respects had been well
proved, was thawing in such a manner as to
render the meat thoroughly presentable for
sale. This has been overcome now by a process
invented by Sir Montague Nelson. The im-
portance of this invention—the “defrosting”
procesa, it is called—ean hardly be over-
estimated, for it completely removes the signs
of the freezing, and re-imparts the dry, well-set
appearance of fresh-killed meat. The forma-
tion of the Colonial Consignment and Distri-
buting Company, Lid., marked an epoch in the
Colonial trade with the Mother Country, the
importance of which it is even yet impossible
to accurately gauge. Some idea may, however,
be gained from the fact that an average day's
operations of the company in April, 1898, in-
cluded the distribution of over 8000 sheep and
lamba, over 3000 legs, shoulders, ete., and over
100 quarters and pieces of beef, among 087
consignees, retailers and private consumers, in
625 separate centres of population in England.
Mr. J. B. REID is Manager for the Colonial
Consignment and Distributing Company, Ltd.,
in New Zealand, with offices in Christchurch.
Mr. Reid is referred to at page 156 of the
Christchurch section of this work.
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NEW ZEALAND LOAN AND MERCAN

TILE AGENCY COMPANY, LTD., Hast
Ings Street, Napier. Telephone 8. Bankers,

Union Bank of Australin, Litd. The offices
of this company occupy an excellent site in
the principal street of Napler and adjoin
those of the Bank of New Zealand. The
bulidings are of brick, and handsome and
extensive. The manager, Mr. Cralg, is ns-
gigted by a staff of twelve, including two
warehousemen at the Spit. The head office
of the company for the Colony being at the
capital, the extended notiee is given in the
Wellington volume of this work.

Mr. JOHN OCRAIG, the Manager of the
Napler branch of the New Zealand FLoan
and Mercantlle Agenecy Company, Ltd., was
appointed to the position in 1886,

ROSS AND GLENDINING, Wholesale
Warchousemen, Emerson Street, Napler.

Mer. B. A. WiLsoN.

Telephone 238: 1.0, Box 116, Bankers,
Bank of New Sonth Wales, This Is a branch
of the well-known firm whose headguarters
are it Dunedin and which Is fully deseribed
in the Dunedin volume, Though the firin
have been represented in Napler ever since
the business was established, yet it was
only on the elosing of Messrs. McArthur
and Co.'s Napler braneh that they opened
a branch there, securing the latter firm's
premises and manager. Messrs, Ross and
Glendining practically secured the business
of the departing firm, aud this they hava
greatly Inereased. They have just comn-
pleted the erection of a fine three-storey
brick building, having a frontage to Emer-
gon Strect of 40 feet by a depth of 100 fesof,
It i=s fitted with all convenlences, Including
an hyvdraulic lift, which I8 =sald to be the
first one In Napler. The branch Is under the
management of Mr. R. A, Wilson.

Mr. MOBERT AIKENHEAD WILSON,
Manager at Napler for Messrs. Ross and

Glendining, was born In Kirkealdy, Fife.
shire, Scotland, in 1857, and is a son of

Capt. A. Wilson, of that town. He was
edueated in London, and entered the ware.
hounse of Messrs. Weleh, Margetson, and Co.,
and after a short experience there, trans-
ferred to Cook, Son and Co., of 8t. Paul's
Churchyvard., In 1876 Mr. Wilson decided
to come to New Zealand and left London in
the ill-fated ship “Strathmore,”” which so
many readers will remember, was wrecked
on the Crozet Islands. Between forty and
fifty were drowned In endeavouring to get
asbore, but about Afty eMected a landing on
one of those desolate islands. One passen-
ger managed to save his mother—the ouly
lady who survived. After seven months of
terrible privations, with nothing but sea
birds and a grassy weed for sustenance,
forty-four survivors were picked up by an
Ameriean whaler and taken to Ceyxlon. Five
of those who escaped drowning died on the
Istand. The weather for the first part of
the thme was very severe, and there Is no
doubt that Mr. Wilson and his fellow sur-
vivors have every reason to remember their
existence on the inhospitable Crozets. They
were hronght to Melbourne by a P. and .
steamer. Arriving in Dunedin, Mr. Wilson
after o Tew months with the New Zealand
Hardware Company, secured a position with
Messrs, Ross and Glendining, with whom he
remalned for some four or five years, He
then went Home to England, and on his
return started In business for himself in
Hawke's DBay. About five years later he
took the manpgement of Messrs. MeArthuar
and Co.'s Napier branch, and after credit-
ably holding that post for eight years was
appointed to his present position, as before
stated. Mr. Wilson is one of the managing
commitiee of §St. Paul's I'resbyterian
church, and takes an interest in social affairs
generally. He was married in 1880 to the

M=n. R. Bisnop.
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daughter of Mr. Willlnm Green, of London,
and has a daunghter and four sons.

SARGOOD, SOXN AND HWEN, Ware-
hounsemen, Herschell Street, Napler. Mr.

Robert Bishop (manager). The prewmises of
this firm oceupy part of the large brick and
concrete  building  opposite the Masonle
Hotel.

Mr. ROBERT BISHOP, the Manager, was
born in London, and was brounght up to
commercial pursuits, having been employed
in one of the large London warchouses for
a number of years. He came to Welllngton
in 1874 by the “Halcione,” and was with
Messprs, A, I Stuart, Harcourt and Co.,
then Sargeod. Son and Ewen, the orlginal
business of A. P. Stuart having changed
successively to the latter firm, Mr. Bishop
wias n well-known traveller for over eighteen
vears, representing these firms in various
parts:-of New Zealand, and In 1893 received
his present appointment. His relations are
well known In Wellington, several of his
people  belng among the earlest setllers
there. He Is marrled and has eight
children. His eldest daughter is married
to Mr. Holt, a son of the well-known Napler
timber merchant and sawmiller. Mr. Bishop
iz an old member of the Craft.

WILLTAMS AND KETTLE, LTD., Gene-
rial Merchants and Importers, Stock and
Btation Agents, ete., Browning Street, Na-

pler. Branches, Port Abhurirl (8Spit), Hast-
ings, and Gisborne. Telephones, Head

Office 100; Port Ahuriri 24, and (goods de-
partment) 142; Hastings 212; Private tele
phones of managing director, Mr. F. W,
Willilams, 116; and Mr. N. Kettle, 117.
Bankers, Bank of New Zealand, Directors:
Captain Russell (M.H.R.), Messrs, J. H.
Coleman, A. McHardy, Willlam Nelson,
A. 8 G. Carlyon, J. B. Chambers; F. W.
Willinms and N. EKettle (managing diree-
tors). A glance at the directorate of this
company s sufficient evidence that Messrs.
Williams and Kettle, Ltd., is one of the
mest Important mercantile corporations in
the Colony. The nature of the business is
varied and the fleld of operations world-
wide. Whilst fulfilling all the esentinls of
the “‘middleman,” the profits arising from
export and import transnctions are very
largely distriboted amongst the producers,
who also play an important part in the con-
trol of the business. 8o popular is the com-
pany that Its operationz have extended into
the domain of finance, and many” of the
large runholders of the province use It as
a banking institution. Advances are made
on stock, wool on the sheep's back, and
other produce, absentee and other estates
are supervised and managed. Messrs. Wil-
liams and EKettle, Ltd., are export agents
for Messra, Nelson Bros., Ltd. The business
was established In 1880 by Mr. . W. Wil-
llams, who some three or four vears later,
wns joined by Mr. N. Keéttle, and when the
company was formed in 1801 these gentle-
men were jointly appointed managing di-
rectors.

Mr. FREDERICK WAMELYN WIL-
LIAMS, one of the Managing Directors of
Messrs,. Willlams and Kettle; Litd., 8 re-
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forred to at length In connection with the
Napier Harbour Board, of which body he
has.been a member for many years.

Mr. NATHANIEL EKETTLE, a Managing
IMrector of Messrs. Williams and Kettle,
Litd., Is a son of the late Mr, Charles Henry
Kettle, who was chlef surveyor for the New
Zealand Company, surveyed the site of Dun-
edin and discovered the Walrarapa Plains
In 1839, Mr. Kettle was born in Dunedin
in 1854, educated at the High School and
other local schools, and in 1869 entersd the
affice of Messrs, G, G. Russell and Co., wool
and general merchants. BEight years later he
removed to Napier to fill the position of
manager of the Hawke's Bay business of
Messrs. Murray, Common and Co. (now
Murray, Roberts and o), general mer-
chants, stock and station agents. Mr.
Kettle resigned this position In 1884 to join
Mr. Willinms in the businesa which has ginee
attained such large proportions. Though
Mr. Kettle hag clogely applied himself to the
firm's business, he has found time to devote
to publie duties. He bhas been ¢hairman of
the Napier Chamber of Commeree, with
which he has been connected since its
inception, and he was one of the promoters
of the Free Association of Employees and
Workmen of Hawke's Bay. In 1880 he was
marrled to the daughter of Major Von
Tempsky and has two sons and two
daughters,

HOLT, ROBERT, Sawing. Planing, and
Moulding Mills, Sash and Door Factory,
Thackeray and Carlyle Streets, Napler.
Telephone 84; P.O, Box 23. Bankers, Bank
of New South Whales. Private residence,

Cameron Toad, Branch at Hastlngs, and
sawmills also at Piripiri. These are among
the largest and best-equipped mills in the
Colony. There is a ten-ton steam travelling
crane, supplemented by tramways in every
direction, with splendid storks of seasoned
kauri, rimu, c¢edar, totara, and other kinds
of timber. The proprictor has a lease of
12,000 acres of fine forest country at Pirvipirl
Labour-saving machinery of évery descrip-
tion abounds for planing, turnery, mortis-
Ing, paling pointing, boring, shaping, tenon-
ing, gulleting, and other work. Power is
derived from a forty horse-power steam
engine and three fine boilers. Every variety
of timber work is executed at the millg, such
ag doors, windows, mouldings, architraves,
skirtings, verandah and eave brackets,
finials, balusters, chair and table legs, gates,
shop fronts, mantelpieces, celling eentres,
ete., ete. A very neat fifty-page quarto cata-
logue, printed and lithographed by the
“Hawke's Bay Herald,” shows the great
variety of plain and faney timber work
turned out by Mr, Holt, A very large num-
ber of hands are employed and Mr. Holt and
hiz sons are assisted by competent and well-
tried foremen. Mr. Holt, the proprietor,
was born in Oldham, Lancashire, in 1833,
and educated in his native town. He was
apprenticed to a joiner and pattern-maker,
and at the age of twenty-six vears landed in
Auckland. Removing to Napler In 1866 he
engaged in contract wf:‘rl.'.. and In 1862
started a small mill in Hastings Street. Mr.
Holt did five years' active service as a volun-
teer and was engaged in the Omaranul and
Petane fights. For many years he was a
member of the old Napier Philharmonic
Society. He was married in 1861 to a

Tae Warkare-Moasa ExpepitioN (OLp Mitrrary Pierune),
Standing—Major Richardson, Capt, Handley (deceased), insign Davis, Major (now Judge) Gudgeon
Lieut.-Col. Herrick (deceased), Lieut. Spiller, Lieut. Milner (18th Royal Irish).

Sitting—Lient. Witty, Lieut. Ferguson, Capt. Northeroft, Major {(now Judge) Scannell,
Capt. Bower (ddjutant), Capt. Corfield, Major Withers (Paymaster),
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daughter of the late Mr. John Marshall,
farmer of Paisley, Scotland, and has two
daughters and three sons.

SHIPPING.

NEW ZEALAND SHIPPING COMPANY.
The Napier branch of this important com-
pany Is under the management of Mr. G. B.
Bullock.

Mr. GEORGE BARKENTIN BULLOCK,

Manager of the New Zealand Shipping Com-
pany at Napler, Is well known In many parts

Mg. G. B. BuLLock,

of the Colony, having held many responsible
pogitions under the company in both islands.
He was boern at Great Barr, Staffordshire,
England, in 1863, and {8 the son of Mr,
Alfred Bulloek, a  retired gentleman re-
glding In Christehureh, Mr. Bullock was
educated at Framlingham, In Saffolk, and In
1882 came to this Colony on a visit by the
ship “Crusader.” He, however, accepted a
position with the New Zealand Shipping
Company in 1852 In the Christchurch office,
and was soon after transferred to Lyttelton.
He was next for a term at Invereargill, then
returned to the head office and was sent to
the Napler branch In time to load the
“Walpa' at Glsborne, the first of the com-
pany's ships to leave that port direct for
Home. Mr. Buallock was afterwards re-
leving agent at Oamaro and accountant at
Auckland, and in 1887 was appointed agent
for the company at Timarn where he re-
mained until July, 1806, when he was ap-
pointed managerat Napler. While in Timarun,
he was a member of the Harbour Board and
took a general interest In loeal affairs. Mr.
Bullock was a prominent footballer whilst
in the Sonth Island. He possesses musicnl
tastes and is president of the Napler
American Banjo Cloh.

THE TYSER LINE. LTD., Australasian
Head Office, Hmerson Street, Napier. Capt.
Richard Todd, Colonial Superintendent,
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Head office, 16 Fenchurch Avenue, London.
New York representatives, Messrs, Finch,
Edye and Co., Produce Exchange. The
Tyzer Line, which was established in 1887
by Messrs. Tyser and Co., for many years
owners In the HEast India trade, s one of
the most important shipplug corporations
engaged o the New Zealand trade. The fine
viessels at present running between  this
Colony and London are “Star of England,”
“Sriar of New Zealand,” “Star of Vietoria,™
“Hawke's Bay," “Indramayo,'” and “*Indragg-
hirl,” and two other fine large steamers are
In conrse of congtroction, All these steamers
are insulated for the carriage of frozen meat
and produce, they each make two trips per
yvear and they eall at all the prineipal New
Zealand ports from Auckland in the north
to the Bluff in the sonth. Capt. East, the
company’s  marine superintendent, goes
round the const with the steamers to superin-

tend  thelr loading. The New Zealand
agencies arve:—Auackland, Messrs. Heather,

Robertson and Co., and Mr. A, H, Nathan;
Gisborne, Messrs, Wiliams and Kettle, Lid.;
Wellington, Messrs, W. M. Bannatyne and
C'o.; Wanganui, Messrs. Johnston and Co.;
Lyttelton, Messrs, Kinsey, Barnes and Co.;
Dunedin, Messrs. Hick, Martin and Drys-
dale; Biafl, Messrs. Henderson and Batger;
and the Australasian agents are:—Mel-
bourne, The McCulloeh Carrying Company;
Bvdney, Megars, Tyger and Co.; Neweastle,
Messra, Earp, Gillam and Co. The steamers
are all very fast, the record trip for insulated
ciarzo vessels being made by the “Star of
New Zealand™ in forty-two days from New
Yealand to London, The company also
claims  to hold the record for carrying
cargoes of meat in the best condition, A
new departure has recently been made,
which entitles It to the heartiest support of
all New Zealanders. Arrangements have
been completed for a service of first-class
carga steamers from New York at regular

CarraiN Topp.
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Intervals, taking eargo for Melbourne,
Eydney, Auckland, Wellington, Canterbury,
and Otago. The value of this service to
New Zealand can ‘hardly be over-estimated,
and the Tyser Line Is to be complimented
on having the enterprise of pioneers in this
maost important trade. That the Colony will
reap immense advantages from the connece-
tlon with the United States being thus
formed there can be no two opinions, and It
is clearly the duty of all concerned to re-
member practically the company which has
been the means of securing these advantages,
The steamers engaged In the Tnited States
trade are all of modern type c¢lassed 100 Al
at Lloyds, and thoroughly equipped to satis-
factorily deliver their eargoes,

CAI'TAIN TODI), the Colonlal Superin-
tendent of the Tyser Line, Ltd., is a well-
Enown and very popular commander, who
took to the sea wnearly forty years ago,
serving his apprenticeship on the Hast Indlg
trade. For twenly years ending 1887, Capt.
Todd commanded ships of the Shaw SBavill
Company In the New Zealand trade. In
that year Capi. Todd was appointed marine
superintendent to the Tyser Line and to his
present position on the death of Mr. Robert
Dobson in 1803, 1If, therefore, the captain
looks with some measure of pride upon the
great expansion of trade which has taken
place under his able management, It must
be admitted that he is justly entitled so to
do. Capt. Todd Is highly esteemed and ex-
ceedingly popular.  His private resldence
Is In Thompson Rbad, Napler.

UNION STEAMSHIP COMPANY OF
NEW ZEALAND. Napier offices, Colonial
Bank Building, Hastings Street. Mr. R,

Puflett (manager).
office at the Spit. A staff of clerks is kept
at both places under Mr. Puflett, who
divides his time between the two. Hae is
also agent for the Orient line, British India
Company, and Australian Steam Navigation
Company's steamers.

Mr. ROBERT TPUFLETT, the popular
manager at Napier for the Unfon Steamship
Company, hag been In the service since its
inauguration and is therefore widely known
in shipping circles. Born In Geelong, Vie-
torin, Iin 1846, the eldest son of the late Mr.
Thomas IMuflett, the subject of this sketeh
wias  educated at the Geelong Grammar
School and Natlonal Grammar School, and
came to this Colony in 1865. Early in the
following year Mr. Puflett was appointed
assistant wharfinger at Dunedin where he
was for some four or five years, and became
shipping-clerk In the Harbour Steamship
Company, under the management of Mr.
James Mills, the present general manager of
the Union Steamship Company. In 1875 the
Harbonr Stenmship Company was merged
into the latter and Mr. Puflett, three years
later was entrusted with the doty of opening
the Napler branch. He was transferred in
the following year to the Christechurceh office
where he stayed some nine or ten years,
and on leaving that city was presented with
a purse of 220 sovereigns and an Hluminated
address. He was next appointed manager
of the Wellington office, after which he was
in the head office, Dunedin, for a few months

There = also a branch -

ZEALAND.

prior to hils appointment as manager at
Napler, which position he has oceupied for
the past nine or ten years. Mr. Puflett s
chalrman of the Napler Chamber of Com-

M=r. R. PursLeTT.

merce, president of the Port Ahurirvi Swim-
ming Clnb and of the Port Ahuriri Bowling
and Tennis Clabs, a Master Mason and a
member of the Seinde Lodge. In 1872 he
was married to a danghter of Mr. Andrew
Merecer, of Dunedin, and has filve zons and
five daughters.

OLp CoLoNisTs.

Mr. JOHN BEGG, of Thompson Road,
Napier, is an old and respected Colonist with
nearly halfi a century's experience in the
southern hemisphere. He was born in 1815
at North Esk, Forfarshire, and is the son of
Mr. William Begg, sheepfarmer, and brother
of the late Mr. Charles Begeg, the well-known
music importer of Dunedin, whose portrait
appears in the Dunedin volume of the Cyclo-
pedia. Educated in Aberdeenshire and brought
up to farming, Mr Begg for six or seven years
before leaving his native land, was manager
of a co-operative store, but the store having
been profitably sold he emigrated to Vietoria
in 1852 and engaged in mining at Ballarat and
Forest Creek. In 1855 he came to New
Zealand, landing in Wellington soon after the
great earthgquake. A few weeks later he moved
to Napier, where he took up some town and
country sections. Losing his only son some
few years later, Mr. Begg gave up farming and
confined his attention to his town properties,
At the time of the Maori war he took part with
the volunteers under Captain Buchanan and
also served in the Militia. He married in 1850
the daughter of Mr, John Herd, of Cults, Aber-
deenshire, and has two daughters living.

Mr. JOHN BURDEN, J.P., an old resident
of Hawke's Bay, was born in the City of
Bristol in the vear 1840, where he was edu-
cated and lenrned the trade of wood turnlng.
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He cawme to the Colony at the age of eighteen
in the barque “"Willinm Watson.,” Shortly
fifter his arrvival the Waikato war broke out;
he, therefore, joined the Auckland Rifle
Volunteers, commanded by Capt. Stewart,
anid served throngh the whole campaign,
during whiech he rose to the rank of
gorgeant amd eventually received the New
Zealand war medal. Mr. Burden arrived in
Napier in 1867, where he joined the militia
and in which he remained until their dis-
handment. For several years he ecarried on
his business of wood turner with consider-
able success, but has now practieally retived
from business. Mr. Burden's political views

Mgr. J. BURDEN.
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are most pronounced, being strongly demao-
cratic and liberal. *The greatest good to
the greatest number' is the motto he has
adhered to in a most practical manner, but
with no inclination to attain either place or
positlon -whieh would bring him into promi-
nence. Mr. Burden |8 married and has three
daughters and one gon. His eldest daughter
is head-mistress of the Kumerog school,
under the auspices of the Hawke's Bay Edu-
eatlon Board; the second daunghter 1s married
to Mr. Robert Davies, sheepfarmer, and his
son is at present studying for law.

Mr. JOHN DAVIS CANNING, 1.1, who
was one of Hawke's Bay successful sheep-
farmers, was born at *“Ogbourne,’”" 8t.
Andrew, Marlborongh, Wilishire, England,
in 1822, his father, Mr. Davis Canning
having In his day been a prominent land-
owner of parts. The Cannings. of
Oghourne, in England, and of Oakburne, in

those

Tae Late M=r. J.
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Hawke's Bay, are a branch of the well-
known old English family of which Lo
Canming, Viceroy of India, was an illustrions
member. Hdueated in his native place, the
subject of this sketch came to thizs Colony
in 15851 in the ship “"Cornwall,’” landing in
Lyttelton, and began his Colonial career
with Mr. John Harding, of **Mt. Vernon,"
Walpukuran., He afterwards purchased land
and sheep on his own account, selecting n
fine property of upwards of 2000 acres at
Porangahan, swhich he increased to 40,000
acres by leasing from the Maoris a tract of
country adjoining the freehold, He intro-
duced the €otswold varlety of sheep and in
all classes of stock kept only the best hreeds,
In 1868 he married Elspeth. danghter of Mr.
John MeQueen, of Strathspey, Inverness,
anid hand two sons. In 1883 accompanied by
his eldest son he took a trip Home to see
his wife who had then been an invalid in the
Old Land some five years. The effects of
the voyage, however, resulted In his death,
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immediately on landing and without meeting
his wife. Right years later, Mrs. Canning
g0 far recovered her health as to be able to
return to New Zealand and she now lives in
quiet retlirement at *Ellerslie,” Thompson
Road, Napier. The Iate AMpr. Canning took
an active part In pubdic affairs, for which
liis liberal edueation eminently fitted him,

The LRev. WILLIAM COLENS0O, who re-
cently passed away at a ripe old age, was
i distinguished New Zealander, and deserves
a much more detailed biography than it is
pozsible to give In these pages, but which
it is hoped some future historian of the
Colony may undertake in justice to the
memory of this fine ald colonist who zave
upwards of sixty years of ugeful life to his
adopted country. Mr. Colenso was born In
1511 at Mengance, and < a member of an old
Cornish family, being a son of Mr, Samuel
May Colenso, and first consin of the Inte
Bishop Colenso of Natal, the celebrated
mathematician and theologien. Educated
privately at Penzance, Mr. Colenso learned
printing and bookbinding in his native town,
and subsegquently worked as a compositor
in the book-printing office of Messra, Watts
and Son of Crown Court, Temple DBar,

Liondon. In the yenr 1833 the Chuareh
Misgionary Society, feeling the need,
throueh thelr missionaries in New Hen-
land, of a printing press In this

country, where all
rected on the spot

errors might be cor-
by those familinr with
the Maorl language, appealed to thelr sup-
porters with a view to securlng the serviess
of a missionary printer; and Mr. Colenso,
on the recommendation of Messrs. Walts,
and after the unsual preliminary examin-
ation, offered for this very trying position.
That he ever regretted the step is not re-
corded: but small wonder be it If he did
“many a time and oft.” On the 3rd

W. CoLeExso0.

Tor LiatE REV.
(In 1861).
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of January, 1835, he
Bay of Islands. On opening his boxes,
however, New Zealand's pioneer found
that he had mno cases, leads, rules,
ink-table, roller stocks, nor frames, .lye-
brush, nor potash, and, worst of all, no
paper! Fortunately he had provided Hiin-
self with a composing-stick, the. resident
misslonaries had a lttle writing paper
among thelr stores, the expert's Ingenulty
enabled him to supply other requirements
nfter a fashion, and on 17th of February,
1835, waos worked off in the presence of

landed at thke

admiring spectators the first copy of the
tirst Dook printed in New Zealand—the

Eplstles to the Ephesians and IPhilippians
in the Maorl language. In December, 1837,
Mr. Colenso printed, amldst many ditHeul-
ties, the New Testament In Maorl., 1f the
printer of to-day were asked to produce
a volume of the New Testament in the Maorl
language single handed and with even the
best applinnees that were available in the
Old World seventy yedars ago, he would
sicken at the thought. DBut the father and
hero of the New Zealand press had to sor-
mount difficulties tenfold greater than those
indicated by the above supposition. Some
of these diticulties are graphically deseribed
in an Amerlecan Art journal—the *“‘Inland
Printer,” for March, 1800; but as any nar-
ration of them could be appreclated by prac-
tieal printers only, It must suffice here to
gay that the wmost provoking of them re-
sulted from the determination on the parct
of the society’s officials not to allow
sufficient weight to attach to the sug-
gestions of either Mr. Colenso or any other
practical printer, in the selection of the
necessarily lmited plant, Time seems to

Targ vare Rev. W. CoLexso
(A recont portrait).

have been the only thing to zo slowly in
those days;: eighteen months counld slip by
comfortably while an order despatehed fromn
New Zealand was being fulfilled In London
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and sent to its destination. Yet all this
time, Mr. Colenso was turning out printed
work which under the cireumstances re
fected npon him unlimited eredit. At the
game time he was learning the Maorl lang
uage and pérforming the arduous dutles
of an ordinary missionary. But of this part
of Mr. Colenso’s interesting career an ex-
cellent outline is glven in n 50 pp. pamphler,
entitled “Fifty Years Ago in New Zealand,™
being a Jubilee paper read by the reverend
gentleman himself before the Hawke's Bay
Philosophical Institute in 1887, For many
yvears past Mr. Colenso lhind Dbeen the only
gurviving European who was present anad
took part in the signing of the Treaty of
Waitangl. Fortunately he was Indefatig-
able in keeping up his diary and from these
notes he was able to write for the Chuareh
Missionary Society a full and true account
of Governor Hobson's arrival and the Iin-
teresting proceedings consequent therenpon,
and the account was afterwards attested
ag correct by the late British Resident, Mr.
James Busby, who was present officially
on that great oceasion. This “History' of the
signilng of the Treaty of Waltangi was
copied by Mr. Colenso in 1850 and printed
by the Government for general cirenlation.
The pamphlet consgists of some forty octaveo
pages, and the Information It containsg s
most interestingly told; for it he recelved
the speeial thanks of 8ir George Grey, who
also sald he was not aware of any such
authentie account having been written, Mr,
Colenso had been in New Zealand about sixs
vears, when the advent of Captain Hobson,
the first Governor, marked a new departure
in the history of the country, and during
the whole of that timme he had been workine
at his occupation of ehurch printer, pro-
duecing several other books both small and
large, In thousands, the principal ones belug
the *Common Prayver of the Church of Eng-
land,” 372 pp., 12mo., and the “Gospel of
8t. Luke,” 68 pp., 12mo. Among many im-
portant acts of assistance rendered by the
missionaries to the new Governor, the work
done by Mr. Colenso was by no means the
least, With his own hands—unlike the
Government printer of today—the typo-
graphiceal misslonary printed the Proclamn-
tlon and the Treaty liself, besldes much
other Government work, inelnding the first
“Government Gazette' issued In the Colony,
Though Mr. Colenso recelved no additional
pay for all this labour, he was more than
rewnrded by the very handsome letter of
thanks sent to him and wholly written by
the generous Governor, whose sagancions
efforts on behalf of the infant Colony have
never vet been fittingly appreciated. Prior
to this the Maorl Testament of 356 pp., 8vo.,
had been entirely “‘set up’ by Mr. Colenso,
and with such assistance as he could get,
no fewer than 5000 copies had been printed,
and a large number of them bound by him-
gelf. How all this was accompllshed in
considerably less time than two vears Is
indicated in Mr. Colenso’s Jabilee paper;
but yet for the most part it remains =2
mystery to every printerin theland. It was
the first edition of the New Testament
printed south of the line In any langnage,
and only one copy of it 1s now known to

exist, and was in Mr, Colenso’s own posses-
slon. Tt was an accomplishment of which
any man might be proud, and even the
printers of today may be pardoned If they

FroxT oF Mr., Conexso's REsIDENCE.

feel that some of the eredit almost attached
[tself to them, inasmuch as they are now
members of a4 noble eraft g0 nobly intro-
iluced to this DBritain of the South. Buf,
though Mr. Colenso was always proud to
call himself a printer, he was destined soon
to find wet more Important work., Truly
has It been sang:—"'Legislators, Great de-
baters, Scientific men have arisen from the
prison of the printers’ den.” As a “legis-
lator,” Mr. Colenso’s abilities werp recog-
nised by his election to the General As-
sembly as a reprezentative of Haowke's Bay,
his appearance as a member of that body
dating from 1861; in Parliament he remained
five years. As a ‘‘great debater" his weight
was felt also in the Hawke's Bay Provincial
Council, where he held the office of provineial
treasurer, and as a ‘“‘sclentific'" man he
towered high on the list of celebrities. A3
a botanist he was in the front rank with a
world-wide reputation. Speaking of Mr.
Colenso's sclentifie achievements, the ““In-
land Printer,” above wmentioned, says:—
“He Is a Fellow of the Linnean Soclety.
and a few.years ago was elected a Fellow
of the Royal Boclety in recosnition of his
distinguished services in the eause of botan-
fcal selence. He was the first to identify
the fos=il bones of the long extinet moa as
those of a gigantic bird, and very aceurately
indicated its place in the animal kingdom,
On the subject of ferns, lichen, and the
hunmble but bheautiful hepatice, he is one
of the greatest anthorities. On the subjeet
of Maorl history and tradition there Is only
one other man—8ir George Greyv—who will
bear comparison with him as an authority.
He has in manuscript a voluminous lexicon
of the Polynesian Ianguoage, which he was



comuissioned by the Government many
The work was approacn
ing completion when a change of adminis-
tration reversed the order, and sueceeding
Governments have declined either to carry
out the work officially or to permit the authoy
to find a private publisher. Mr. Colenso was
one of the founders of the Hawke's Bay
branch of the New Zealand Institute, and
has always been the largest and most valued
confributor to the ‘Transactions’ of that
auxiliary branch. For precise, exact, and
well-anthenticated information his *Con-
tributions towards the Better Knowledge of
the Maorl People,” excel all that has been
written or collected by any other writer.'
Mr. Colenso removed from the DBay of
Islands to Hawke's Bay In 1844, which place
he had alse visited in the preceding year.
having been stationed at Port Ahbhuriri as
the resident clergyman of the distriet
by Bishop Selwyn. Among many positions
filled by him since that time was that of
inspector of schools for Hawke's Bay. He
has published many valoable books which
will live to his memory while the language
lagts. Durlng his misslonary days, Mr.
Colenso became thoroughly acquainted with
the North Island, for he traversed the whole
of it on foot from Cape Terawiti, in Cook's
Straits, to Cape Maria Van Diemen, bhesiides
frequently  travelling over both the BEast
and West eonsts, and more than onee crossed
the great dividing range, the Ruahine Monn-
tainsg. The reverend gentleman continued
to enjoy good and hearty health almost up
to the time of his death, which took place
on 10th February, 1809, in his elghty-eighth
year. If the great work in which the late
Mr. Colenso spent his valuable time
and Drillinnt talents be lost to the world
through the quarrelling and jealousy which
gpem  to be necessary concomitants o party
government, then, Indeed, that system Iis
responsible for one of the greatest blunders

years ago to write.
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ever committed in  this

Zealand.

Mr. DAVID GLENDINNING, of Napier, the
late well-known contractor, was born in Port
Patrick, Scotland, in 1832, where he was
educated and followed the calling of a
builder. In 1858 he went to Cape Colony
and carried on business as & builder
and contractor until 1865, when he sailed
for New Zealand per brig “Reichstag.
Whilst at Capetown, Mr. Glendinning
murried the daughter of Mr. John Norkett,
of Sussex, a Cape settler. After spending two
or three years in Auckland, Mr. Glendinning
went to the Thames, and until 1872 was vari-
ously engaged in building, contracting and
speculating. Securing large contracts in
various parts of the North Island, he moved
with his family from place to place, and finally
settled in Napier to carry out the contract for
the extensive bridge at the Western Spit. He
also built the Redclif and Mohaka bridges,
and many handsome buildings in Napier were
wholly or partly erected by Mr. Glendinning.
While building for others he secured for him-

Colony of New

THE LATE Mr. J. P. HAMpIN.

self a good deal of house property, which is
now in the possession of Mrs. Glendinning
and family. For many years Mr. Glendinning
was in partnership with Mr. John Griffin, the
well-known builder and contractor, of Napier.
He died on the 23rd of January, 1896, from
paralysis, and left a widow, five sons, and three
daughters.

Mr, J. P. HAMLIN, for many years a
native Interpreter at Napler, was a son of
the late Rev. James Haimlin, and was born
at Wainku, Auckland; he was educated at Mr.
Gorrie's seminary, Auckland eity, and after
leaving school was employed in farming puar-
gunits. During the Maori froubles in 1863
he joined the 3rd Waikato Regiment under
Colonel Lyon and served for five yvears, first
as ensign and afterwards was promoted to
the rank of lieutenant. At the termination
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of the war, Mr. Hamlin went to the Thames
golidfields where fortunes were being rapidly
made and lost, but his speculations not prov-
ing successful he came to Napler in 1871 and
entered into practice as a native interpreter,
his Enowledge of the Maori language and
customs bejing extensive. In 1877 he acquired
possession of the Te Thl Station, near
Wairoa, a splendid property of 5000 acres
which is now managed by his sons. He was
a Mazon of old standing and senior warden.
Mr. Hamlin became suddenly ill at Wairoa
and died before his wife, who rode night and

day from Napler, could reach him, He left
two sons and two daughters.

CAPTAIN EKEENRICK HILL, of Poraite,
near Napier, is a very old Colonist. He was

born in the North of Ireland and is a son of
Mr. John Hill, of Bellaghy Castle, for over
fifty years magistrate for the counties of Derry
and Antrim. Captain Hill was educated at
the Grace Hill Academy and joined Lord
Idonegal's Regiment in 1854. In 1855 he was
gazeited to the 31st Regiment and served in the
Crimea for six months and afterwards accom-
panied his regiment to Malta, Gibraltar and
other posts; exchanged to the 14th Regiment
in 1857 and came to the Colony in 1860, where
he went through a five years' campaign in the
Maori wars. He then sold out of the Army and
settled down as a sheep-farmer in Hawke's
Bay. For twenty years Captain Hill, in part-
nership with Captain Gordan, had a run on
the Heretaunga Plains. In 1863 Captain Hill
purchased his partner’s interest in the latter
property and afterwards leased it to his son,
Mr. Dudley Hill, and purchased the charming
property of fifty acres on which he now resides.
It is situated on a point jutting out into the
Inner Harbour of Napier, opposite Scinde
Island, and the water frontage includes a very
beautiful bay. Close to the shore is a delight-
ful and valuable piece of bush, while at the
back of the house is quite a forest of eucalyp-
tus of immense size. Captain Hill has greatly

Ciarram K, Hou,
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enlarged and improved the house, which
occupies one of the most beautiful spots in
the province. He married a daughter of the
late Mr. Charles French, of Dublin, and has
a son and a daughter.

Mr. JOHN HINDMARSH, for the last
twenty vears s retired resident of Napler, was
born in 1820 in France, where his parents were
temporarily residing. He was educated at the
Royal Naval College, Portsmouth, where he
won the gold medal with right to a lieutenant’s
commission ; but his father, Rear-Admiral Sir
John Hindmarsh, did not consider him strong
enough for the Navy., Iu 1836, when his father
wis appointed Governor of South Australia,
Mr. Hindmarsh accompanied him to that
Colony and for some time followed the calling
of a surveyor, in partnership with Mr. A. .
Lindsay, M.P., and laid out the towns of Hind-
marsh and Walkerville. Going to England in
1841, Mr. Hindmarsh was called to the Bar of
the Middle Temple, but after practising the
legal profession for a few months, he returned
to South Australia, where he settled on a large
property on the shores of Victor Harbour, at
the same time practising in the courts and fill-
ing the appointment of HRevising Barrister
under the Electoral Act for nearly all the
Colony. In 1878 the fine climate of Napier
tempted Mr. Hindmarsh te leave Awustralia,
where he had apent the best part of his life,
and which from old associations was dear to
him. On arrival in the Colony he purchased
i large run in the neighbourhood of Napier.
He also acted as trustee for Mr. J. Ellis, the
owner of some large estates in Otfago, until
recently, when he transferred the charge to
his eldest son. He married a daughter of the
late Captain Leworthy, R.N., and has three
sons and two daughters. The eldest son is
very well known in Napier as a partner in the
firm of Messrs. Robjohns, Hindmarsh and Co.,
merchanta; the second son iz a barrister in
Wellington, referred to in Volume I. of the
Cyclopedia; and the third is a runholder at

Rear-ApMIran Sir JoEN HINDMARSH.
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Tokomsaru, on the East Coast. Mr. and Mrs.
Hindmarsh live in a beautifully situated resi-
dence on Scinde Island, overlooking the Bay
and town,

REAR-ADMIRAT, SIRE JOHN HIND.
MARSH, EKnight of the Hoyal Hanoverian
Guelphie Order, first Governor and Com-
mander-in-Chief of South Aunstralia, is suffi-
ciently prominent in coloninl history io render
any account of hiz life superfluous here. He
was 10e wnther of Mr. John Hindmarsh, referred
to above. Amongst the number of beautiful
and interesting heirlooms handed down by Sir
John to his only son, are the letters
patent constituting the Colony of South Aus-
tralia, the letter from Sir Herbert Taylor,
Private Secretary to King William VI., naming
the capital of the Colony Adelaide, and a letter
from Admiral Lord Nelson appointing Rear-
Admiral Hindmuarsh—then a midshipman—to
the “Victory” shortly before Trafalgar, the
Imperial war medal and seven clasps, a gold
and jewelled cup presented by King Frederick
VII., of Denmark, and a gold cup, the gift of
Prince Esterhazy, who was one of the Ambas-
sadors to England on the occasion of the
Queen's coronation.

Mg. J. LAWRENCE.

Mr. JAMES LAWREXNCE, who lives in
quiet retirement in his Dbeautiful home on
the Thompsen Road, Napler, is a prominent
colonlst of over forty years' standing. He
was born In 1826, at Hythe, Kent, and I8
the son of Mr. Job Lawrence, of Canterbury,
England, was educated In his native town,
and jolned the Customs at TFolkestone. On
the occasion of the late Mr. H. S. Tiffen’s
second visit to this Colony, Mr. Lawrenece
accompinled that gentlemian and became
his manager at “Homewood,"” Kalkora, in
1856, He arrived in Wellington In the ship
“Westminster” and came on to Napler In
the little schooner *“*Salopia.” About a
nquarter of a century ago, Mr. Lawrence
purchased a part of the “Homewood" estate
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from Mr. Tiffen, and carried it on as a sheep
run until 1886, when he sold it to the present
owner, Mr. James Colllns. Mr. and Mrs.
Lawrence then took a two years' trip to
Europe, visiting Rome, Venice, Milan, and
many other cities of interest. Mr. Lawrence
has taken an active part in public matters.
He represented Waipawa in the Hawke's
Bay Provinleal Coonell for a term, but de-
clined re-election. He was a warm supporter
of 8lr Donald McLean., Mr. Lawrence was
chalrman of the Kaikora Road Board, School
Committee, and Licensing Committee, and
president of the Waipawa Racing Club. For
many years he was a Justice of the Peace,
In 1866 he married a dauvghter of Captain
Brown, R.N., of Sligo, Ireland.

Mr. CHARLES JAMES NAIRN, who was
# well-known and very highly esteemed Colonist
of Hawke's Bay, was born in Carshalton,
Surrey, England, and came to this Colony in
1849, per ship “London,” landing in Welling-
ton in December of that year, with many other
prominent settlers. Early in the fifties Mr.
Nairn settled at Pariri, Hawke's Bay, and
entered into the work of a pioneer sheepfarmer
with such zest that many yesrs hefore his
death he bequeathed to the Church of England
in Hawke's Bay, land valued at £10,000, from
which a rental of £300 a year is derived. Mr.
Nairn was a member of the Patangata County
Council and chairman of the Patangata Road
Board. During a visit to England he was
martied to a danghter of Mr. Thomas Wright,
of Boston, Lincolnshire. His last visit o the
Old Country was in 1891, when he was accom-
panied by his wife and family. There he died
on the 21st of July, 1894, and Mrs. Nairn, with
three sons and two daughters, returned to the
Colony.

Mr. FREDERICK JOHN TIFIFEN, one of
Hawke's Bay's earliest and most respected
settlers, was born at Hythe, Kent, In 1828,
and Is the third son of Mr. Willlam Tiffen,
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stationer and printer, of Hythe and Folke-
stone. Mr. Tilfen left for Wellington, New
Zealand, In the barque *“Louisa Campbell"
on his seventeenth birthday, arriving at his
destination vii Nelson after a voyage of 130
days. Here he awaited the arrival from New
South Wales of a shipment of 758 Merino
ewes to the order of Messrs, J. H. North-
wood and H. 8 Tiffen (an elder brother)
who had entered into partnership as slicep
farmers on the Ahiarohi ron of 9000 acres In
the Wairarapn valley., Some ilea of the
difficulties of travelling with sheep in those
tlays may be galned from tlie fact that the
journey of seventy miles occupied no less
than eighteen days. This was early in Sep-
tember, 1845. In the following year the
adjoining Tauvanul and Taratahi rons were
similarly leased, and in the management of
those properties Mr, Tiffen found congenial,
If rough employment. But the distance
from eivilization was oceasionally keenly
felt. Mr. Tiffen has still a vivid recollection
of a Journey on foot to Wellington, a dis-
tanee of seventy-five miles, with a dislocated
shoulder. A road over the Rimutaka ranges
afterwards reduced the distance by some
fifteen willeg and when Mr. Tiffen had to
visit Wellington again on foot he was able
to accomplish the journey in two days each
way. In 1849 with the assistance of Mr.
Northwood and others, Including half a
dozen Maoris, he drove 3000 sheep by way of
the East Coast to PPourerere, a run of 25,000
acres which Mr. Northwood, assisted by Mr,
Charles Nairn, had geenred from the natve
owners. This journey of 140 miles occupied
four weeks and only two runs, the PPahan
and Castle Point stations, were passed on
the way. It belng decided to take 2000 of
the sheep some miles inland to the Omakari
portion of the run, Mr. Tiffen took up his
residence at that point, and for nearly three
years lived there almost alone, his nearest
European mneighbour northward being the
Itev. W. Colenso, of the Waitangl mission
station, twenty-five miles distant. Five
miles still further on, at the Western Spit,
lHved Messrs. Alexander and Anketel,
traders, but to the southward the nearest
Europeans were at Castle IPoint, seventy
miles away. When Mr. Tiffen was called to
Wellington to give evidence at the trial for
mnrider of one William Good, he had to walk
0 miles and earry both food and blankets
with him. Yet this hardship he eagerly
nndertook as a welcome change, having seen
but few European men and no women for
nearly two years., In 1852, having been over
five years in the employ of Messrs. North-
wood and Tiffen, he again walked to Welllng-
ton to take passage for Sydney, this time
secompanied by a Maorl, by an almost un-
known ferack through the so-called Forty
Mile bush. Hawke's Bay was at that time
part of the Wellington provinee, and Dr.
Featherston, the superintendent, being de-
sirous of turning this track into a road, Mr.
Tiffen was asked to make a report on the
route, through Mr. A, Ludlaw, mem-
bher of the PProvinelal Council for Ahuriri,
by which name the northern portion of the
provinee was known. In this report it was
estimated that the bush was seventy miles
inextent. In Australia he found the gold-fever
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raging, and by way of a decided change from
his former employment, he Joined the
monnted patrol and did gold escort duty
between Bathurst and the Turon fields.
Within a year, bhowever, he was back in
Wellington, and thenece he walked to Home-
wood Station in Hawke's Bay, a run of
10,000 acres which had fallen to his brother
through the dissolution of the partnership
with Mr. Novthwood. He was placed in
charge of the stock and successfully set to
work to eradicate that most destructive
disease among sheep, the scab, from which
the flocks had not been entirely free for
seven years. Later on Mr. Tiffen was ap-
pointed inspector of sheep and registrar of
brands under the I'rovinelal Government of
Wellington, and held the positions for twelve
Years, duaring which perlod the sheep in the
district increased from 55,007 to 464,312,
At the same time Mr. TiNen was manager
of the Gwavas and Milbourne sheep sta-
tions. In 1859 he acquired his present “Elms-
hill”" estate in Hawke's Bay and married the
second daughter of Dr. Montelth, coroner
and provinelal surgeon, who with his wife
and family had resided In Welllngton since

15536, Mr. and Mrs, Tiffen have three
tdanghters and four sons; the latter own

17,000 aeres of land in Poverty Bay which
Mr. Tiffen had purchased from the natives.

Mr. HENRY BTOKES TIFFEN, whose
nseful life closed on the 21st of Feburary,
150G, was a prominent New Zealand colonist
for over half a century. On the 9th Feb-
ruary, 1842, in company with several other
surveyors of whom but one—Mr. A.J. Allom—
now remains, Mr. Tiffen landed at Welling-
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ton under engangement to the New Fealand
Company. He was one of the first to cross
the Rimutaka Ranges to the Wairarapa.
Leaving his cattle run in the Walirarapa,
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he jounrneyed overland into Hawke's Bay,
taking with him a mob of sheep—the first
Introduced to the distriet—and leased a very
large tract of country from the Maoris, on
which he suceessfully carried on sheep farm-
ing. He subsequently parchased his Green-
meadows Estate. On  the separation of
Hawke's Bay from Woellington, Mr. Tiffen
accepted the position of chief surveyor and
commissioner of ecrown lands, and on his
resignation some years later, he was elected
to the I'rovinelal Councll of Hawke's Bay.
On the abolition of the provinees and the
introduction of the county system, he was
chosen first chalrman of the Hawke's Bay
County Council, and did much to put the
affairs of the county on a firm footing. In
every walk of life, Mr. Tiffen set a good
exainple to his fellow Colonists. As chair-
vian of the Hawke's Bay Hospital and
Charltable Ald Board, and of the Children's
Home, and as a liberal supporter of the
High School, he exerted a beneficial
influence that will be long felt. To the
Home particularly Mr. Tilfen was a tower
of strength and it is regarded as a monu-
ment to his energy and liberality. Speaking
of the deceased gentleman, the “*Hawke's
Bay Herald™ in its obituary notice, said
“Even to the last he was actively engagoed
in trying to show by practical example how
the rich lands of the Ahuriri Plains could
e profitably worked as froit farms and vine-
yvards, while for several years he wnas en-
gaged in experiments in growing beet-root
sugar. Kindliness and sympathy with all
who were struggling or In distress were ever
hiz most prominent characteristies, Many
a successfual settler owes his start in life to
the ready aid of Mr. Tiffen. and no case of
genuine distress ever appealed to him and
was sent empty away., Wealth came to him
a8 the reward of his early years of hard,
uphill work, but he truly held it as if in trust
for others. To all religious denominations,
Presbyterian, Baptist, or Roman Catholle,
he was a generous friend, and his o yn beloved
Church of England owes much to him. The
fine cathedral, of which Napier is so Justly
proud, was made possible largely by his
munificent libernlity. Few knew so well
how to use fortune and none grudged him
the sunceess he achleved.,” Mr. Tiffen left two
brothers, a sister (Mrs, C. J. A. Haselden, of
Wellington), and a number of nephews and
nieces. One of the latter, Mrs. A. M., Ran-
dall, occuplies the home in Tennyson Street,
where Mr. Tiffen was so well known.

Mr. HUTTON TROUTBECK, who died in
1893 In his fifty-eighth yvear, was a prominent
colonist of Hawke's Bay for more than a
quirter of a century. He was In partnership
with Messrs, Thomas and Willinm Richard-
gon in large undertakings connected with
gheep farming, but for some twelve years
prior to his death, he conducted the business
on his own account. His principal estate
was “Blencowe," at Petane, where he died,
but he had propertyall along the line to Gala-
tea. Mr. Troutbeck has been greatly missed,
for he was an enterprising. thorough-going
colonist. He was born in Blencowe, in Cum-
berland, and eame to this Colony In 1860,
Mrs, Troutbeck and her only son live In
Napler,
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Seg page 1
SHEEF Farumers, Erc.
BROTGHTON, WILLIAM, Runholder,
Ngupuke (The Hills), Omahu. Mr. Brough-
ton's run contains 2600 acres of good pas-
toral land and carrles G000 erossbred sheep
and about 100 head of cattle. The sporting
public Enow Mr. Broughton best as a sues
cessiul breeder of good riacing stock, among

Mr, W. Brouvgurox.

which may be mentioned “‘Forest Rose.”
“Rangipuinbm,” “Titike,” “Pirst Rlood,”
“Rakahoe,"" and others. Mr. Broughton

afterwards disposed of
Richardson, of Napier.

hiz stud to Mr,
He is a native of

Wanganul, where he was born in 1857, edu-
cated In the native school at Pakohal and at
Mr. Reardon’s school in Napler, and brought
up to agricultunral pursults. He has resided
on the station for the past twenty years.
He is viee-president of the Town and Subur-
ban Jockey Club and member of numerous
other clubs. He is married to a daughter
of the well-known Bay of Plenty chief,
Tuhoe, and has four sons and three daugh-
ters.

CRISSOGE STATION (George Prior Don-
nally, proprietor) iz about eleven miles from
Napier, and alzo includes the Ngatarawa pro-
perty a few miles further on. The area of
“Crissoge’ is about 9000 acres, and 20,000 sheen
of the Lincoln type are depastured. There are
also 500 head of shorthorn cattle (Bate's blood)
and sixty horses, inecluding the famous sire
“Gold Heef.”

WAIMARAMA, another station on the coast
south of the Kidnappers, twenty-four miles
by water from Napier and sbout three hours'
drive from Hastings, contains 17,000 acres, all
limestone downs, and carries 30,000 sheep of
the Lincoln type. There are also 1800 short-
horn cattle and about seventy horses.

Mr. G:. P. DosNELLY.

THE MANGAOHANE RUN comprises
ghout 17,000 acres of frechold and a few
thousand acres of leasehold, and is stocked
with 23,000 first cross Lincoln and merino
shaeep.

OHURUEKURA, about thirty miles from
Napier on the Taupo Hoad, is another of Mr.
Donuelly’'s runs. 1t consists of 26,000 acres
of freshold and leasehold country, and carries
16,000 Lincoln-merino sheep, 300 head of cattle,
and twenty-five horses.

RAUKAWA is a amall property which also
belongs to Mr. Donnelly, and contains 2000
acres of superior totara and matai forest. On
this there are 500 shorthorn steers. DBesides
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Mr. H. WARREN.

the foregoing runs, Mr. Donnelly has numerous
smaller properties, some of them as far away
as the Rangitikei and Manawatu districts.
Mr. GEORGE PRIOR DONNELLY, the
enterprising proprietor of the above estates,
manages them personally, he being possessed

of an inexhaustible store of activity and
strength. He is the breeder and owner of a
very large number of valuable animals, and

has alwavs been an ardent sportsman, having
ridden and owned some of the most noted
cross-country horses in the Colony, and won
many races both on the flat and over country.
In passing judgment on the imported sire
“Gold Reef,” the property of Mr. Donnelly,
the “Hawke's Bay Herald" said: “As he stood
for inspection, covering a lot of ground without
the slightest bit of lnmber showing, with per-
fect feet, he presented himself as the beau ideal
of & racehorse and sire. Handsome he should
be too, for no horse in the world possesses a
better pedigree, and certainly no horse with
a more fashionable pedigree, or one more likely
to make a successful sire, has ever left Eng-
land.” *“Following up the Turf,” as his fore-
fathers, is a hobby with Mr. Donnelly, and
he spares meither trouble nor expense to keep
himself in the front rank as a breeder. As
early as 1864 he was a member of the Auckland
Cavalry and rode his first race at Tamaki in
the Garrison Hunt Steeplechase. A son of Mr.
Patrick Donnelly, a landed proprietor of County
Tipperary, Mr. Donnelly was born at “Brittus,”
an old family residence, which had belonged
to the Langleys, his mother's side of the family,
she being the daughter of Mr. John Prior, a
large landed proprietor of County Waterford,
and brother of the well-knewn Dr. Prior, of
Dublin University. Educated in County
Limerick, Mr. Donnelly left for this Colony in
1863 with his mother and family. His father
having died in 1861, this step was recommended
by an uncle, Captain Hamilton, who had visited
the Colony in command of the “Esk,” and who
was subsequently killed at the Gate Pah.



Landing in Auckland, Mr. Doanelly lived for
a time at Wairoa South, and went to Hawke's
Bay in 1867, where he became manager of Major
Carlyon’s run. Mr. Donnelly, however, soon
after took up land on his own account, and
in thirty years he has achieved a wonderfnl
success, On account of having so much of
his own business to attend to, he has always
declined publie office. Mr, Donnelly married
in 1877 the daughter of the late great Chief
Karauria, and niece of Tareha, the celebrated
Hawke's Bay Chief, and has an only surviving
danghter.

DOLBEL. PHILIT, Sheepfarmer, Tara-
dale, Napier. Mr. Dolbel was born In Jersey,
Channel Islands, In 1827, followeid @ Seqn-
faring life from an early age and owned a
vessel ealled the “Hearty," trading on the
English coast. He came to New Zealand
from Melbonrne in 1855, landing at Welling-
ton from the briz “Hokoporinga® and for
about twelve months was employed at bridew
building, ete. He came to Hawke's Bay in
1856 and resided for a considerable time at
Clive, engaged In various pursunits in that
distriet until 18689, Ie was more than once
burnt out by the Maoris and suffered great
losses.  Some thirty-five years ago he pur-
chased about 900 aecres, part of his present
beautiful estate at Springfield, on which lhe
runs over 300 sheep. To this property he
has added to the large station at Petane, con-
sisting of 24,000 acres and which Iz now one
of the suceessful sheepfarms of Hawke's
Bay. Since Mr, Dolbel's arrival in Hawke's
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iny, he has worked very bard for the
district and gained econsiderable reputation
in politicg, having been member of the Pro-
vincinl Connell for over sixteen vears. Ho
Wis member of the Hawke's DBay
Connty Connell, many of the most important
works being carried out during his term of
office. Ie has alwavs taken a keen interest
in harbour works, having been member of

filgn
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the Napler Farbour Board for years, his
experience In varlons parts of the world
Lbeing extensive, many of his valuable sugges.
tiong have borne good results. His well-
known figure is often seen in Napier, though
Intterly his wvisits into town are becoming
less frequent, but his Kindly smile, friendly
counsel and Lhelp will long live In the
memory of his host of friends.

OKAWA STATION (Thomas Henry Lowry,
proprietor) is one of the finest stations in the
neighbourhood of Napier, and includes a small
property named “Dartmoor" on the opposite
gside of the Tutaekuri River. The total area
is 20,000 acres. The handsome homestead is

M=z, T. H. Lowny

surrounded by beautiful grounds. Thirty-five
thousand Lincoln sheep and lambs are shorn
annually, and the herd of shorthorn cattle
numbers 550, many of them being exceptionally

s

Mir. T. H. Lowry's INFANT SON AT
Five MosTHS.

valuable animals. Of the eighty horses at
“Okawa,” many are pure bred from blood sires
and mares. Of these there are the favourite
sires “5t. Conon” and “Dotterel,” and “Lady
Helen" and “Woodthorpe,” besides the mare
“Bijou.’ Mr. Lowry breeas pedigree shorthorn
bulls for sale, and has some of the finest ani-
mals in the Colony. There is a large demand
for his Lincoln rams, and his stock of breeding
ewes numbers over 300. In sheep and eattle
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Mr. T. H. Lowry's HOMESTEAD AT OEAWA.



172

particularly Mr. Lowry has been a successful
prizestaker for many years, as was his father,
who is generally credited with being the first
in the district to introduce good breeds of
cattle, horses and sheep.

Mr,. THOMAS LOWRY arrived i
the early fifties, and scquired the Okawa Estate
and other properfies in the district. He was
gifted with the fuculty of inspiring confidence
in the natives, and his son is now reaping the
reward of his father's enterprise and foresight.

Mr. T. H. LOWRY, present proprietor, was
born on the estate in 1865, and, being the only
son, he inherited th: property. He was edu-
cated at Christ's College, Canterbury, and was
afterwards at the Royal Agricultural College
of Encland, whither he went 1n 1883, and, later,
al Jesus College, Cambridge. He distinguished
himself on the football fields of both colleges,
and continued to sustain his reputation in this
respect after his return to New Zealand. Mr.
Lowry is a member of the committee of the
Acclimatisation Socitty, & steward of the
Hawke's Bay Jockey Club, a member of the
Hawke's Bay Agricultural Society, and a direc-
tor of the North British and Hawke's Bay
Freezing Company, Ltd. He was married
in 1897 to the daughter of the late Mr. James
Watt, of Napier. A portrait of Mr. Lowry's
son, at the age of five months, accompanies
this notice, and it will be seen that the little
fellow is a fine specimen of “Young New
Zealand.”’

TANNER, THOMAS, Sheepfarmer, “'Bal-
qubldder,” Napier. Mr. Tanner was born
in Wiltshirve, England, In 1830, his father,
Mr: Joseph Tanner, being a landed pro-
prietor in that county. He began the study
of medicine, but not liking the profession

Mzr. T. TANNER.

came to Wellington In 1850 and went fo
Wangannl to learn sheep farming with Mr.
John Cameron, a large stock-owner in that
district. In the beginning of 1853 Mr, Tanner
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came to Hawke's Bay and took up a large
run on the upataniwha Plains., Some years
afterwards he took up lands on the Ahuriri
Plains, and later on acguired the Endsleigh
and Patene runs. The Endsleigh run, which
comprizses some of the finest land in the
Havelock district, containg about 3000 acres
of freehold and the Patene run 14,000 acres
ol leasehold, both properties being sown in
Epglish grasses. Mr. Tanner has always
identifed himself with the fortunes of the
provinee ; during the native troubles he took
part in raising the Waipawa and Hawke's
Bay Cavalry Volunteers and proceeded with
iz troop to the rellef of the settlers and
friendly natives at the time of the Mohaka
and IPoverty DBay maszsacres, Mr. Tanner
Lisis been always a keen politiclan and repre-
sented Walpawa from 15887 till 1800 as a
aupporter of the Atkinson Government. He
was for many years 4 member of the various
laeal bodies. In 1593 he visited HEngland,
when he resigned all his public offices except
his seat on the Education Board. During
hig long residence in the district Mr. Tanner
has taken a prominent part In all matters
for the advancement of the district. He
married an Mnoglish lady and has elght
children, several of whom are marrled and
gettled in Hawke's Bay.

SPIT.

THE SPIT is the landing place of Napler
with which it is connected by rail and tele-
craph and is distant two miles. There Is a
breakwater and other harbour works. Malls
are exchanged with the chief office three
times daily and there are all the usual
posial facllities.

THE SPIT POST OFFICE oecupies a
central position and iz an old building which

might very fittingly be replaced by one
better sulted to the requirements of the
times. The postmaster, Mr. Willlam Wilkie,
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is assisted by a staff of three. The tele-
graph, money order, and Government Life
Insurance branches are algso under the con-
trol of the postmaster. Malls arrive and
depart three times dally, in addition to sea-
borue mails.

Me. W. WiLkiE

AMr. WILLIAM WILKITR,
the 8Spit, Is a woll-known and extremely
popular official. He born in Inver-
gowrie, near Dundee, In 1840, is the son of
the late Mr. Willlam Wilkie, builder and
stone quarry owner, edueated at the
National schools and at Grigg's Academy,
Perth, and was apprenticed to the sea. In

Postmaster at
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1862 he was on the coasting schooner “Gee.
lone," trading between Lyttelfon and Dun
edin. He joined the Survey Department of
the Otago Provinelal Government, and was
one of the first party to traverse the almost
impassable country between Queenstown
and Martin’s Bay in 1865. He next joined
the Post and Telegraph Department, was at
RRoxburgh and Naseby, and lastly appointed
to hig preseut position in 1871, He is a past
master of the Masonie Lodge Vietoria and
a past grand of the Manchester Unity of
Oddfellows. He was married In 15873 to a
dinghter of Mr. T. B. Harding, of Napler,
and has a daunghter and seven sons,

PORT AHURIRI DISTRICT SCHOOL
occuples a prominent position between the
wharves of the Inner Harbour and Seinde
Island. I iz under the control of Mr. John
Waolstenholme, who lhas three assistant
teachers and six pupil-teachers. The school
consists of five large, lofty, and well-lighted
class-rooms. The number of puplls on the
roll is about 400, A good average number
of scholarships is gained every year by the
school. There iz a gymnasinm and the boys
and girls arve exercised In drill and ecalis-
thenics.

Mr. JOHN WOLSTENHOLME, Head-
magter of the Port Ahurirl Distriet School,
haz an extensive Englizsh and Colonial schol-
astle experlence. He was born In Rishton,
Lancashire, In 1857, and ig the son of Mr.
J. Wolstenholme of that town, where he was
eillncated. He was assistant master at the
lelgrave schools, Darwen, and three years
later was appointed headmaster of the
Bolton Moad school in the same loeality,
Here he remained eight years with much
credit to himself, but failing health com-
pelled him to seek a milder ellmate. On the
oceasion of his leaving for the Colony, Mr.
Waolstenholme was presented by the mana-
gor and teachers of the Bolton Road school
with an Huminated address, handsomely
hound and framed. On his arrival in Napler
in 188G he was appointed to the headmaster-
ship of the Norsewood school, Imt two years
later resigned and retarned to his native
and. His health not permitting him to live
in England, however, he returned to Mapier
in 1800 and was appointed to his present
position. Mr. Waolstenholme iz a Mason un-
attached, bhut is an active member of Napler
Lodge of the Manchester Unity Oddfellows.
He was married in 1881 to Miss M. A. Leech,
of Darwen, and has two sons and three
danghters.

ST. ANDREW'S (HURCH, Spit. Rey.
Oliver Dean  (Inenmbent).
The Rey. OLIVER DEAN, Viear of

Bt. Androw's Episcopal Church at the Spit,
iz well known throughout Hawke's Bay and
the Poverty Bay districts. The reverend
gentleman was born in London in 1856, Is a
son of Mr. H. L. Dean, of Manchester, was
educated in London and eame to the Colony
In 1870, Iteciding to enter the mipnlstry, Mr.
Dean prosecuted his studies with that view,
and was ordained deacon in 1886 and priest
some throe years later. His first charge was
the enracy of Gisborne, under Canon Fox.

SPIT,

Prior to his appointment as
=t. Andrews, Mr. Dean had charge of the
Woodville church, which, however, he re-
linguished in favour of his present appoint-
ment In 1800, Mr. Dean is the diocesan
correspondent for the “Church News,"" and 1s
Courch of England chaplain to the Napler
Hospitnl and Old Men's Hefuge. The viear
takes a deep interest In all religlons and
gocial questions. He was married in 1880
to a daughter of Mr. R. Holt, sawmiller, and
has a son and two daughters, Mrs. Dean
is indefatigable in Church work and is
one of the organists of 8t. Andrew’s,

viear of

GIFFORD, PLOWMAN AND CO. (Willlam
Gifford, Willlam Plowman, and F. W, Rob-

johns), Aerated Water and Cordial Manm-
facturers, Battery Road, The Spit. Tele-
phone 121, Bankers, Bank of New South

Wales. Private residences: Mr, Gifford,
Buller Road; Mr. Plowman, Chaucer Road;
Mr. Robjohns, Franee Road, The business of
this firm, which is nndoubtedly the largest
of its kind in Hawke's Bay, was established
many years ago and was purchased in 1894
by the present proprietors, It was formerly
carried on under the styvle of Thomson,
Gifford and Co., Mr. Thomson being also
the senlor partner of Messrs, Thomson,
Lewis and Co., of Wellington and Wanganul,
and My, Gifford, the late brother of the
present partner of that name. The estab-
lishment of Messrs., Gifford, Plowman and
(‘0. is thoroughly up-to-date, all the ma-
chinery being of the best deseription, a four

and a half horse-power Otto =silent gas
eneine supplylng the motive power, and

throughout the factory are evidences of first-
rate management A very large business is
done and delivery carts are In
constant use. Special rooms are set apart
for vinegar-brewing, culinary essence-
making, splee-grinding, bottling, packing,
ete.

several

Mgr. W. GIFFORD.

Mr. WILLIAM GIFFORD was born in
Otahubn, near Aucklond, n 1864, and 1s the
gson of Mr. George Gifford, brewer and
malteter of Napier. Edueated in Napier, he
learned his frade with his late brother, Mr.
T. H. Gifford, whose manager he was for
several years. Mr. Gifford was married in
1807 to thedanghter of Mr. Balwin Franklyn,
of Germany,

Mr. F. W. ROBJOHNS, the sleeping part-
ner, Is the well-known brewer, amd 8 re-
ferred to elsewhere under a separate head-
Ingz.

DENHOLM, WILLIAM, General Store-
keeper, (Glasgow House, Waghorne and Church-
hill Streets, The Spit. Telephone 136,
Bankers, National Bank of New Zealand. Mr

Mzr. W. Dexmnonm.

Denholm, who is an old resident of the Spit,
hails from Charlestown, s Fifeshire seaport on
the Firth of Forth, where he was born in 1837,
is the son of Mr Thomas Denholm, a boat-
builder of those parts, and was educated in
his native town. Going to Glasgow he was
emploved for a few years in Mr. John Read's
wine and tea warehouse in Exchange Square.
:.+ the age of eighteen, he obtained an engage-
ment with the firm of Stuart and Kinross in
(Hasgow, and came out in 1855 with those
gentlemen, per ship “Maori"” to Wellington,
where they immediately set up in business.
Three years later, the firm opened a branch
in Napier, under the management of Mr. Alex.
Kennedy, late father of Mr C. D. Kennedy,
the well-known solicitor of Napier, and Mr.
Denholm came to Napier. On the dissolution
of the firm he remained with Mr Kinress for
g few vears, then afterwards entered the ser-
vice of Mr. Stuart, continuing with him until
about 1878, when he started his own businessa.
The Spit was a small place when Mr, Denholm
first settled there and few have done more
unostentationsly than he has to push it ahead.
The Spit has in turn done well for Mr.
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Denholm, who, during his forty years' resid-
ence, accumulated a good deal of property
there. In military matters he took an active
part and was in the militia from its organisa-
tion to its disbandment. He took part in the
fight at Omaranui, and in the hunt after Te
Kooti, for which service he obtained the New
Zealand war medal, Mr Denholm was a
member of the first loeal school committee,
and for many years was an active member of
the Spit Fire Brigade. For about fifteen years
he was a prominent member of the Ancient
Order of Oddfellows, having passed through
all the prinecipal chairs; he is also a member
of Muasonic Lodge Victoria. He was on the
manazjement committee of St. Paul's Preshy-
terian church, Napier, until the crection of
the 8pit church, in which he was elected to
a similar office. In 1862 he married the
daughter of the late Mr. John Slater, of Napier,
and has six daughters and four sons. Of the
former, one is married to Mr. Henry Bull,
another to Mr. Edward Bull, and another to
the Rev. R. MeCully, His eldeat son is in
West Australia, and the others are employed
in the bhusiness,

WIDERSTROM, UNO THURE GIDEON,
Ship Chandler, Sail and Flag Maker, Tent
and Olskin Manufacturer, Waghorne Street,
The Spit. Established 1878. I'rivate resi-
dence, Roslyn Road. Capt. Widerstrom's
business s an extensive one and ecmploys
over six hands. The premises are large and
spacions, with an immense stock of the
various articles required in the trade. Capt.
Widerstrom ig n native of Finland and was
brought up to the sea from his early years.
He commanded various vesselsand has sailed
under the British flag for fifteen years and

Carrary WinpeErsTROM.

the American flag for five years. For a
number of yeuars he was engaged in the inter-
colonial trade, commanding the “May Wad-
ley™ and afterwards the “Pendle Hill.”' He
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sold out his interest in the latter vessel in
1895 and purchased his present business.
Capt. Widerstrom has been a Mason and an
Oddfellow for many yvears. He is married
anil has three children.

GREENMEADOWS.

GREENMEADOWS. This township lies to
the sounth-west of Napier, from which it is
distant three miles. It is within the county
and electoral district of Hawke's Bay. There
is a daily postal service between the township
and Napier, but the nearest telephone office
is & mile distant at Taradale. Conveyance
between Napier and Greenmeadows is by coach,

_BOWRON AND BUTCHER (late Bowron
Bros.), Wool-Brokers, Wool-Scourers, Fell-
mongers, etc, Greenmeadows. P.0O. Box 149:
telephone 262. Bankers, Bank of New Zealand.
This firm's business was established many
vears ago by Messrs. Bowron Bros., of Christ-
church, by whom it was carried on until 1894,
when Mr. H. F. Butcher joined the business.
The premises are situated on three acres of
ground, and in the busy season between forty
and fifty hands are employed. An eight-horse-
power steam engine drives the machinery, witer
being obtained from two artesinn wells, and
has a pressure of about twelve pounds to the
square inch. Wool and skins are bought from
the neighbouring farmers and pelts from the
freezing-works, large shipments being made
direct to London, Messrs. Bowron Bros. are
fully mentioned in the Canterbury volume of
the Cyclopedia in connection with their firm
in Christchurch,

MR. HENRY FAIRBURN BUTCHER, of
the above firm, is a son of Mr. H. R. Butcher,
woolcomber and fellmonger, of Kaiapoi.

TARADALE.

TARADALE is almost a suburb of Napijer,
from which it is only six miles distant, and
with which it has hourly communication by
coach. It is situated within the county and
electoral district of Hawke's Bay. Mails are
received and despatched twice daily, and there
is a telephone office in the township. The
local school has an attendance of
about 150 pupils.

POTHAN BROS. (B. J. and J, A, Pothan),
Coachbuilders, Wheelwrights, and General
Blacksmiths, Taradale. The business now
owned by this firm was established many years
ago, by Mr John Drummond now of Dannevirke,
and was purchased by the present proprietors
from Mr. Bower in 1897. Messrs. Pothan Bros.
have made for themselves a reputation as
builders of rustic dogearts with patent movable
seats and spring folding-back seats. They have
greatly increased their business, and have a
good town and country connection.

Average

Mr. R. J. POTHAN was born in Canterbury
and his brother in Westland, and both wers
educated and brought up in Hokitika, The
firat-named worked in Christchurch and at
Ahaura on the West Coast before settling at
Taradale.

Mr. J. A. POTHAN , on the expiry of his
apprenticeship, went to Eketahuna, and was
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in partnership with Mr Wright, coach-builder,
until buying into the present business. Whila
im Kketahuna he was a member of the school
comm ttee, a trustee of the cemetery, and
master of the local brass band, which was
formed by mm. In Greymouth he was an
active member of the Fire Brigade, and besides
being the winner of a cup and several medals,
he holds a certificate for general efficiency.

WATERHOUSE, WILLIAM, JP,
Orchardist, Taradale and Papakura, Hawke's
Bay. Mr. Waterhouse has two orchards an |

Mr. W. WATERHOUSE.

attends to both with the assistance of his four
sons. The one at Taradale is the original
holding, on which the homestead is situated.
Its area is eight and a half acres, and there
are four hothouses for grapes and ome for
tomatoes, the total ares wunder glass heing
nearly 4000 square feet. Large gquantities of
table-grapes are ruised every vear and besides
supplying the local markets, Mr Waterhouse
forwards supplies of them to both the Wal
lington and Taranaki districts. The Papakura
property contains thirty acres, of which about
a sixth is occupied by fruit trees in zveat
variety, the major portion being cropped with
oats, muaize, potatoes, carrots, mangolds,
melons, etec. Both places are in excellent
order. Mr. Waterhouse was born in Burwash,
Sussex, England, in 1848, where he had a large
experience, and came to this Colony in 1874
per ship “Bebington,” landing at Napier. In
the following year he establizshed himself at
Taradale. Mr, Waterhouse has been in various
ways connected with local matters: he has
been a member of the Taradale Town Board
and School Committee, of which latter body
he was secretary for two years and chairman
for a year. For a few vears he was clerk to the
Meanee Road Board, and for the past fifteen
years clerk to the Taradale River Board. He
was appointed a Justice of the Peace in 1893.



Mr. THOMAS ANDREW SHIRLEY,
Settler, “AMt, Wensley,” Taradale, iz a well-
known and highly respected Colonist, who has
spent almost the whole of his life in New
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Me. T. A. SHIRLEY.
Zealand. He was born in 1837 in the parish

of Horsington, Somersetshire, England, and is
the son of Mr. Thomas Shirley, who landed in
Wellington with his family from the ship
“Arab ' in 1841, and leased some sections of
land at the Lower Hutt. At that time it was
common for all residents of the Hutt Valley
to be called into barracks for protection from
hostile Maoris, but Mr. Shirley was averse
to giving in to them, and he and his sons had
to carry on their farming operations under
martial lgw and efficiently armed. Many were
their narrow escapes Krom violence at the
hands of the natives. When at length war
openly broke oul, the Maoris killed eleven
soldiers, and one who was dangerously wounded
would certainly have made a twelfth victim
but for the bravery of Mr. Shirley, senior, who
ran to his assistance and amidst a shower of
bullets carried him to a place of safety. After
the war was over the hero of thiz incident
continued farming at the Hutt until 1856, when
he purchased land at Puketapu, near Napier,
and resided there until his death in 1887 at
the advanced age of eighty-six, being followed
a year later by his wife, who was also eighty-six
at the time of her death. Both are buried at
Napier in thedfamily grave, which already
contains foud” generations. Educated and
trasned fo farm life, Mr. T. A. Shirley joined
in Fox's "rush” to Lake Wakatipu, and for
s few months kept a store at Queenstown.
Going afterwards to Invercargill, he entered
the employment of Messrs, Morison and Law,
merchants, and remained with them until 1867,
when he returned to Wellington and began
farming at “Longwood” in the Wairarapa,
now the property of Mr. Charles Pharazyn.
Three years later Mr. Shirley took Abbott's
Featherston Hotel, and after a similar period

TARADALE.

Hotel in the

also conducted
replacing the old build-
ing in_ 1874 with a fine new hotel of
about forty rooms. He then retired to
“Underhill,”” a large private house which he
had built near Featherston, but in 1880 he
let this, and moved to Napier, where he
bought the Masonic Hotel. Selling out of that
two years later he bought “Korokepo, a pro-
perty of 340 acres, which he farmed until 1885,
when he leased it, and in 1897 he sold it to
Mr. William Nelson, of Tomoana, Mr. Shirley
now lives in retirement at “Mt. Wensley,” a
charming home on a block of eighteen acres
of land all thoroughly cultivated and with
orchard, tennis lawn, flower gardens , and
paddocks.  Mrs. Shirley was also born in
Somersetshire, and came to Wellington with
her parents (Mr. and Mrs. Bicknell) in 1841,
being then but a few months old.

thers  bought the Royal
same town. This he
for three years,

Mr. WILLIAM SMITH, of Upper Papakura,
near Taradale, was born and educated at Mont-
rose, Scotland, where hiz father was an

Mr. W. SmiTH,

architect. He came to New Zealand, via Mel-
bourne, in the clipper ship “Shalemar,” and
landed in Napier, then known as Port Ahuriri,
in the end of 1855. Since then he has gone
through & varied experience. Taking up land
on the bank of the Tutaekuri river, near
Puketapu, he underwent all the difficulties
and privations of a pioneer. He remembers
the starting of the first pullock-sledge in the
district, at Poraite, and heard the rumble of
the first horse-dray in Napier. When Hawke's
Bay Province was separated from Wellington
in 1858, he wus appointed to the barren office
of deputy-provincial aunditer, which he held
until the abolition of provineialism in 1876.
During the disguieting times of the Maori
disturbances his family lived quietly in the
country, whilst he was engaged as a militiaman
at the Omaranui fight, for which he holds the
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New Zealand medal. Having been a quiet,
sober, unassuming and efficient settler, he
ultimately succeeded in acquiring sufficient
property to enable him to retire to his present
comfortable homestead. Though he has com-
pleted his seventieth year, he still enjoys
vigorous health, is an active member of the
Napier Bowling and Golf Clubs, and thinks
nothing of cycling into Napier and back, =
distance of seven or eight miles each way.
He was married in 1851 to a daunghter of Mr.
Thomas Alexander, a Forfarshire farmer, and
niece of the late Mr. Alex. Alexander, one of
the first European settlers in this district, who
had almost unbounded influence with the
natives at a time when law and order could
scarcely be said to prevail. Mr. Smith has had
eleven children, of whom nine survive; he and
his good wife are highly respected throughout
the district, and are enjoying a green old age,
hoping in a year or two, to celebrate their
golden wedding.

BENNETT, JOHN SAMUEL, Sheep-farmer,
Nga Taihira, Mr. Bennett was born at Puke-
tapu in 1867 and is the eldest son of Mr John
Bennett, of Newstead; he was educated at the
Napier High School and Wellington College,
and brought up to pastoral pursuits by his
father, and latterly has been managing a pro-
perty of 163 acres, which are under ¢rop and in
grass. Mr. Bennett grazes a flock of about
1000 Lincoln sheep. He is o member of the
Hawke's Bay Agricultural and Pastoral Society
and is much interested in sporting affairs, in-
cluding football, golf ete. Mr. Bennett is a
member of the famous Wharerangi Polo Club,
which played against all New Zealand in the
Champion Tournament and won the junior

M=r. J.

S. BexyuTr.

cup at Auckland, as well as running second for
the Saville Cup at Hastings in the following
year. He was married in 1892 to the daughter
of Mr. Heslop, and has one son.
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CODD, CHARLES, Sheep-farmer, Moteo.
Mr. Codd occupies & very fine property of 369
acres of arable land in a sheltered valley.
About 100 acres are under crop and the re-

Mg. C. Copn.

m-inder iz in grass. The land produces sixty
bushels of oats and eseventy bushels of barley
to the acre; 809 Lincoln sheep are depastured,
besides cattle and horses. The farm is fur-
nished with the latest machinery and imple-
ments, ineluding a Cambridge roller, combined
threshing and traction engine, an elevator for
stacking, three of Hornby's reapers and
binders, two of Kersley's mowing machines, a
double-bagging chaff cutter by Andrews and
Beaven, two double-furrow ploughs, sowing
drill, dise and Tyne harrows, etc. Born in
Grainthorpe, Lincolnshire, England, in 1858,
and the son of a farmer, Mr. Codd was
educated in his native place and brought up
to agricultural pursuits on his father's farm.
In 1881 he came to this Colony, per ship
“Rakaia,” Captain Metcalf, and landed in Wel-
lington. Proceeding to Hawke's Bay, Mr. Codd
found suitable employment with the Hon. J. D.
Ormond for over two years. Mr. Codd was
afterwards with Mr. John Bennett and with
Mr. Philip Dolbel, and closed his career as an
employee with a few months in Mr. Lowmen's
service. Removing to Taradale, he spent three
vears there as a contractor for ploughing, road
metalling, carting, ete., and then, in 1890, he
leased his present holding. Mr. Codd is a
member of the Manchester Unity Oddfellows,
and when in Taradale was a member of the
school committee. He was married in 1887
to 8 niece of Mr. Philip Dolbel, and has two
sons and two danghters.

HESLOP, WILLIAM, J.P., Sheepfarmer,
Omaranui, near Napier. Mr. Heslop, who has
led & life full of interest and activity, was born
at Blackhill, Northumberland, in 1845, and
came to this colony with his parents in 1856,
His estate is probably the one spot of great
historical interest in Hawke's Bay, for on it

was fought the battle of Omaranui, the site
of which is now marked by a large willow-tree.
The interest of the place is, of course, very
much heightened by the fuct that Mr. Heslop
himself was in the thick of the fight. For
over forty wears he has taken an active part
in all local movements. He joined the militia
in 1864 and the cavalry in 1868, and wears the
New Zealand war medal. Te Kooti, the great
rebel chief, at one time, under the name of
Hiroke, worked for Mr. Heslop's father in
charge of the men employéd to drain the Puke-
tapu property, and was well known to the
family. Some time aiter this Hiroke was tried
at Poverty Bay for some trivial offence, and
obtained the nickname of “Te Kooti,” the
Maori rendering of ““The Court,” or “the man
who was tried by the court.)' Even after Te
Kooti had broken out in open hostility, Mr.
Heslop received messages from the redoubtable
warrior under the old name of Hiroke. After
the memorable massacre of Poverty Bay, in
1868, Mr. Heslop, as a mounted trooper, was
sent to the district to assist in the burial of
the mutilated bodies of the victims, many of
whom had been personally known to him. This
he describes as the saddest work he ever per-
formed, though in April of the following year
he had to take part in a similarly sad interment
of the victims of the Mohaka massucre, whither
he went as orderly trooper to Major Lambert.
Mr. Heslop claims that during his two years
of patrol duty he never once missed his drill,
and that he was the only militiaman of whom
that could be truthfully said. Accustomed
from boyvhood te mix amongst the Maoris, he
had little fear of them. He is said to have
been the first Eurepean to carry the mails
between HRessington and Puketapu. Mr. Heslop
has always taken a keen interest in politics,

M=r-"W. Hesrop,

and ever since the old provineial davs has been
chairman of Captain Russell's Omarsnui and
Puketapu election committees. He has been
a member of the Okawa Road Board and chair-
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man of the Puketapu School Committee, is a
member of the Hawke's Bay Racing Committes,
Napier Park Racing Club, and has always been
prominent as an exhibitor at the agricultural
shows of the district. No fewer than thirty
silver medals for cattle, horses and sheep have
fallen to Mr. Heslop's family in Hawke's Bay,
including first prizes for a shorthorn bull and
shorthorn cow as far back as 1863 at the first
Havelock Show, As a judgd of sheep at Gis-
borne, and draught horses % Wanganui, Mr.
Heslop has earned a reputation, whilst Mrs.
Heslop has carried off a number of dairy prizes.
Mr. Heslop was married to the daughter of
Mr. Thomas Waldrom, farmer, of Waipawa,
and has three daughters and two soms, the
eldest daughter being the wife of Mr. J. S.
Bennett, of whom mention is made in these
pages. The daughters are artists of no mean
order, and s number of their paintings adorn
the walls of the homestead at Omaranui.

MEAREE.

MEANEE Is a post town and old mission
station on the Tutaekurl river, five miles
from Napier with which it is connected by
coach. There is an hotel, publi¢ and private
schools, and Roman Catholle church. The
drive from Napier is n very enjoyable one,

MEANEE MISSION AND SEMINARY.
The Roman Catholie Mission at Meanee was
founded in 1858 by the Very Rev. Father
Regnier, 5.M. Elght years previously, In
December, 1850, he had, with the assistance
of Rev. Father Lampila, S.M,, and two lay
Brothers, Basin and Florentin, established
the first Catholic Mission o the Ahurirl
Plains, now the Province of Hawke's Bay,
at Poukawa on the banks of the river Nga-
ruroro.  The Maorl chief of the district gave
them o few acres of land which the two lay
Brothers eultivated, and on which they bullg
a hut or whare, and afterwards a somewhat
more comfortable dwelling in a position less
exposed to the Inundatlons of the river. In
1851 Father Lampila left Poukawa to estab.
lish a misslon on the banks of the Upper
Wanganui, and Father Regnler remained
alone to carry on the work of the mission in
a vast district which extended beyond the
limnits of the present province of Hawke's
Bay. He had to travel long distances on
foot, aerossg rongh country without roads or
bridges, with no other food but coarse Maori
fare and with no place of rest but a wretched
whare. Nothing daunted, Father Regnler
persevered in his good work for forty years,
spreading the light of faith amongst the
natives and bringing the consolations of
relicion to the early settlers. In 1856 the
missionaries, finding that, on account of hos-
tilities between their friend Powore and
another chief, their position at Poukawa had
become very precarious, purchased from the
Government a large tract of land at Meanee
on the left bank of the Tutaekurl, and on
11th of May, 1858, after the death of Powore
in a battle with Karaitiana, they transferred
thither the mission and all its belongings,
inelnding the cottage, which continued to be
the residence of the missionaries for more
than twenty-five wears. While the lay
Brothers were converting a wilderness into
productive land, Father Regnier laboured for
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GRAPE GATHERING,

the spiritual welfare of the natives and also
of the Europeans, whose numbers were then
fast Increasing. Through his exertions land
was bought and churches were built, at
Napler in 1859, at Walpawa In 1874, at Hast-
ingz in 1881, and at Wairoa In 1882, Thesa
churches soon became centres of missionary
districts with resident priests, and all elalm
IPather Regnier as thelr founder. At Meanee
divine service was held for some years in
the mission house, nntil in 1863 a small
choreh was built, to which a transept was
added in 1874. As the Catholie population
gradually increased it was found necessary
in 1802, when it reached the number of five
hundred, to enlarge the ehureh to its present
form. ¥¥ather Regnier alzo erected a sehool
In Napler In 1869 for native and half-caste
girls, and another for Maorl children at
Mennee In 1872, Owing to the difficulty,
however, of recrniting Maorli boys;, the
Meanee school became eventnally the parish
gchool, and sinece 1886 it has been under the
direetion of the Sisters of St. Joseph. The
average attendance of day-pupils is ninety
and the building, whieh now bears the name
of 8t. Mary's Collerze, has, bezldes, accom-
maedation for abont thirty boarders., Amongst
the many improvements made by the lay
hrothers In the Mlission estate is the enlti-
vation of grape vines. Some samples of the
Mianee Mission wine were sent, at the
redquest of the French Consul, Comte D'Ab-
bans, to the Paris Exposition in 1802, and
were awarded a silver medal for excellence
and purity. The local medical faculty fre-
quently recommend the mission wine to
their patients, and it Iz owing to its sucecess
that a considerable number of vineyards
have been planted by other settlers In
vorious parts of the district. In 1880 a large
and commodiouns bullding was erected, which
was Intended to serve as a residence for the
members of the mission and as a retreat for
members of the Society of Mary, who are

MEARNEE STATIOY.

incupacitated by age or Infirmities. Here
Father Regnier ended his days on 28th of
October, 1885, His hononred remains rest in
the cemetery at Taradale under 8 monumen-
tal eross erected by his numerons friends of
every denominantion, as a tribute of thelr
respect and esteem. Drother Basil, who had
been the falthful companion of Father Heg-
nler and his principal co-operator In the
foundation of the Meanee Mission and the
promotion of its material prosperity., and
who spent fifty-seven years Inbouring on the
mission field in New Zealand, went peace-
fully to hizs reward on the 2nd of April, 1895,
at the ripe old age of eighty-four. Mention
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must also be made of Father Michel, 8.M.,
who had been a misslonary in Fiji and who
waorked for nearly twenty years as curate at
Meanee, till his death in October, 1887. In
1884 the property of the mission was sold
with the exeeption of the buildings and
about sixty acres of land reserved for the
wants of the establishment, and in 18530 the
old mission house was destroved and in its
place a large house was erected for the lay
Brothers, who generally number about ten.

THE SEMINARY. In 1889 the districts
entrusted to the Marviat IMathers in New Zea-
land were canonleally ereeted into a religions
provinee, and the house of Meanee was made
fthie Novitiate and Scholasticate; that is, a
house of probation for those who wish to
join the society and of study for aspirants
to the priesthood who have already ecom-
pleted thelr classical course of studies. The
Yery Rev. Dr. Pestre, B.M., who had been
for many years professor of Theology In
France, Ireland, and America, was appointed
first :Buperlor and Master of Novices. The
classes opened in February, 1800, with three
or four students, but the number gradually
increased to fifteen or sixteen, and additions
were made to the bullding in 1892 and 1896,
The now completed house presents a most
imposing appearance, being a noble 1wo-
storey bui!ql_in;.a: with two long wings. On
one side, on the ground floor, are situated
the parlounr, dining-room, and kitehen, with
other neceszary oiffices: above these are
rooms, a small oratory, & dormitory, bath-
rooms, ete. On the ground floor of the left
wing and surrounded by a beautifol veran-
dah are the study and recreatlon halls, and
above these are a large oratory and another
dormitory. The centre of the building is
occupied by the professors’ rooms. In
front is a beantifully laid out flower garden,
while on each gide and behind are an
orchard, a vegetable ganrden, and vineyard.
The average number of students Is fourteen

MzEAREE Mission StTaTION,
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or fifteen, and sinece the foundation of the
institution In 1800, twenty-six priests have
been educated and ordalned within its walls.
Most of these are young New Zealanders,
who received their classical tralning in
&t Iatrick's College, Wellington, and who are
now engngred either as professors in thelr
old Alma Mater, or assistant priests in varl-
ous parishes of the Colony. Some French
students have alzo been trained and ordained
here, who are now labouring as mission-
aries amongst the natives of the South Sea
Islands., The course of studies comprises the
usual sabjects of a Catholic seminary, viz.,
Dogmatic and Moral Theology, Holy Serip-

ture, Philosophy, Canon Law, Sacred
Liturgy, Church History, Eeclesiastical

Chart, and Sacred Eloguence; and recently
other classes have been added in which the
students continne the study of classics and
the natoral seclences. The present stoff
consists of the Very Rev. Father John
Goutenoire, S.A., superior and manager:
Rev., Pl Huaul, S.M., vice-superior and
Master of Novices, professor of Moral Theo-

logy: Rev. D. Keunedy, S.M., D.D., B.A,
B.C.L., professor of Dogmatic Theology,
Holy Scripture, Sacred Elogquence, Plain

Chant, and Natural Sclences; Rev. L. Leser,
S.M., professor of Philosophy and Classics,
The Very Rev. Dr. Pestre, S.M., Provincial,
teaches temporarily Canon Law and Sacred
Liturgy. Another resident in the seminary
is the Yenerable Father Yardin, S5.M., well
known in New Zealand, who laboured for
many years with great success in the sacred
ministry both in France and in New Zealand,
In 1807 he celebrated the golden jubllee of
hizs religions profession and of his ordi-
nation to priesthood, and he is now enjoying
a well-earned rest after his long years of
arduons labours.

The Very Reverend Father JOHN GOUTE-
NOIRE is a native of France. He was or-
dained priest in 1863, and has since then
been engaged In the sacred wministry in
Amerlea and New Zealand. He has bheen
in the Colony over thirty years, and has
been directing the Meanee Seminary since
18835,

The Very Reverend Dr. PESTRE, 8.M.,
the present Provineial of the Marist Fathers
in New Zealand, is also a native of France.
He took hig degree in Divinity at Maynooth
College, Ireland, and was Immediately after-
warids appointed by the Archbishop of
Dublin, professor of Theology at Holy Cross
College, Clonliffe, where he had as a fellow-
professor his Eminence Cardinal Moran, of
Sydney, and as president Dr, Verdon, Bishop
of Dunedin. Dr. Pestre hag been engaged
all his life teaching in seminaries in varions
parts of France, Dublin, Dundalk, S8an Fran.
cisceo, and finally in Meanee.

ST. MARY'S IROMAN JATHOLIC
CHURCH, Meanee, was founded by Father
Regnier, is dedicated to Our Lady of the
Assumption, and was originally built in 1863,
the present fine structore taking Its place
in 1893. The church, which cost £1300, Is of
Gothie style, and is capable of seating SO0
worshippers., Adjacent is the Convent of
St. Joseph, originally intended for the edu-
cation of Maori children, but after-

wards changed Into an establishment for
the education of European children. It Is
presided over by the Reverend Mother Aloy-
sius and three sisters of the Order of St

Rev. 4. N. BISSFELD.

Joseplh from Bydney. There i1s an attend-
ance of 112 pupils, who can also receive in-
struction in the hizgher bramnches of educa-
tion. The school iz yearly inspected by the
Government Inspector, whose reports are of
a1 very zatisfanctory character.

Reverend Father JOHN NICHOLAS
BINSIFELD, of 8t. Mary's Church, Meanee,
is n native of the Grand Duchy of Luxem-

M=z. P. G.

THORNTON.
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bourg, studied at the Royal Grand Ducal
Gymnpasium, in that eity, and was ordained
at Treves in 1850. After ministering in
France, England, Ireland, and America, he
came to New Zealand in 1869, where he has
Inboured in several parts of the Colony and
took over his present charge in 1895,

CLive.

CLIVE is a prosperous township in n
thriving district on the south side of the
Ngararuro river, connected by n suspension
bridge with Farndon on the opposite bank,
and Is gix miles from Napler. It is situated
in Hawke's Bay County and I.'I}Iif.lilllbiiﬂﬂ‘h'l"ﬂll
business places, wool-washing and otlisr fae.
tarles, flour-mills, brewery, and dalry. The
railway station iz at Farndon, and it
receives and despatclhies malls daily through
the local post oflice.

THORNTON,P.G..General Store and DPost
Office, West Clive. HEstablished in 1866 by
Mr. J. Bray, and taken over by Mr. Thoru-
ton in 1888, The store contains a large and
varied atock of general goods, and does o
considerable trade with the settlers In the
surrounding districts. Mr. Thornton is local
agent of the Alllance Assurance Company.
The post office was opened in 1886 at the same
time as the store. Mr. Thoroton Is a native
of Clive, where he was born in 1876, is a
gon of Mr. 8, G. Thornton, was edoeated
locally, and trained to the business by his
father.

OTAWHAO.

OTAWHAO is a small post town, sixty-three
miles distant from Napier, and three miles from
Ormondville, which has the nearest telegraph
office, There is daily mail communication
with Napier.

FOUNTAINE, THOMAS FRANCIS, J.P.,
Farmer, Otawhao, Mr. Fountaine's farm is one
of the choice spots of a fine and fertile dis-
trict. It consists of 1075 acres in splendid
condition, with & handsome homestead, which
has recently been erected. One of the apart-
ments is a billard-room, fitted with one of
Thurston’s best tables. Two men are employed
on the farm, which is stocked with thirty head
of cattle and 2700 crossbred Lincoln sheep.
The orchard occupies about one and a half
acres., Mr. Fountaine was born in Bucking-
hamshire in 1842, and is the son of Mr. T, F.
Fountaine, farmer, of Stoke-Hammond, was
educated at Banbury, Oxfordshire, and brought
up to farming by his father. In 1861 he left
for Queensland per ship “Wanatah,” and, fol-
lowing various  occupations, travelled the
country from the Gulf of Carpentarin to Mel-
bourne. In 1871 Mr. Fountaine came to New
Zealand, landing in Wellington, worked for
gome time in Hawke's Bay on the station of
the Hon. J. D. Ormond, then later on went
to Norsewood and worked en the main road
opening up the bush district. In 1874, in
conjunction with Mr, J. H. Monteith, he con-
tracted for the construction of the road between
Woodville and the Manawatu river. In March,
1876, they opened the first store in Woodville,
and continued in parinership until June, 1881,
when Mr. Fountaine retired. In the following
March he went home for a twelve months'



visit, and on his return to the Colony took up
his present estate. Mr. Fountaine was chairman
of the Woodville Road Board for many years,
member of the Waipawa County Council for
three vears, member of the Kumerca Road
Board, and has also served on other loeal
bodies;

PrETANE.
PETANE is six miles from Napler by
conch, and I8 a pleasant suburban distriet.

It has a telephone office and dally mail
service.

ARNOTT, J. B, Post Office Store, Petane,
Mr. Arnott is a native of Scotland, was
born in 1858, brought up to the tailoring
businesz, and served his time with  his
father. He came to the Colony In 1843 by
the s.5. “Walhora,” and worked at his trade
in Dunedin for nine years. Removing to
the North Island five years ago, Mr. Arnott
purchased the above store, which had been
established some twenty years. A good
stock of proceries and general stores is kept
on hand and the post and telegraph oflice
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Is conducted on the premises. Mr. Arnott
Is an Oddfellow, and has been a member of
the Hand and Heart Lodge for many vears.

GILMOTUR, Sheepfarmer,
“White House, Petane. Mr. Gilmour's
station Is situated at Walkarl and consists
of GO0 acres of good pastoral land, with
about 8000 sheep. The property has been
under occupation for the last twenty years.
This old colonist was born in the North of
Ireland in 1838, and brought up to farm life
there, In 1861 he went to Vietoria, and
after some yearzs on the Bendigo digglngs
erossed to Otago and went to Gabriel's
Gzully, thence to the lakes, where he went
in for stock-dealing, He afterwards had a
farm at the Shotover, where he remajned

WILLIAM,
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PETANE AND PUKETAPU.

for a period of elght years. Whilst at the
Shotover he erected a Hourmill and did very
well with it, selling out to eome to Hawke's
Bay.

MILNE, DAVID, Settler, “Burnside”
Petane. Mr, Milne's homestead is situated
sole seven miles from Napier and consists
of fifteen acres, being part of the farm of
which T85 acres are let to a tenant. The
house, which containg fourteon dwelling-
rooms, has been recently renovated, Mr.
Milne having purchazed the property about
elghteen months ago. He Is a native of
Beotland, where he wag born In 1859, came
with his parents to New Zealand by the

Mgr. D. MiLxE.

ship “Gananoque,” and was trained to agri-
cultural pursuits in the Colony. He, In
company with his father nand brother,
neguired n sheep run at Mohaka, where he
lived for some time, finally dissolving part-
nership and coming to reside at “Burnside,*
Mr. Milne was married in 1893 to a daughter
of the late Mr. George Bowman., a well-
known Napier settler, and has two sons and
one dauvghter.

NORTH BRITISH ESTATE (A. Mitchell,
manager), Petane., This estate is used for
running stock by the North British Freezing
Company, prineipally duoring the winter
months. A stud flock of Shropshire Downs
is to be seen on the property, which com-
prises 740 acres and a homestead,
the manager resides,

Mr. ANDREW MITCHELL, the Manager
was born In Seotland in 1855, and followed
farm life, He came to the Colony In 1879,
and after a time purchased a farm at Pahia-
tun. He leased this farm and about three
years ago accepted his present position, Mr.
Mitchell has taken considerable interest in
Church matters, and has for several years
been on the committee of the Presbyterian
Chyrch, He is married to a danghter of Mr.

where
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George Mills, of Glenmore Park, Victoria,
and has one danghter,

PUkETAPU.

PUKETAPU is nine miles south-west from
Nuapior, in the county of Hawke's Bay, and in
the electoral district of Waiapu. It has a
public school, with an average attendance of
thirty. A coach plies daily between the town-
ship and Napier, via Taradale. Mails are
received and despatched daily, and there is
a telephone office in the township.

BENNETT, STANLEY, Shespfarmer,
“Wharerangi,” Puketapu. Mr. Bennett is the
second son of Mr. John Bennett, of “New-
stead,” and was born at Puketapu. Educated
at the Wanganui Collegiate School, Mr. Beunett
learned farming with his father. His property
consists of 1700 acres of first-class land, carry-
ing 5000 Lincoln sheep, hesides cattle and
horses. On the football field, Mr. Bennett has
won honours as a representative of Hawke's
Bay, but the result of an aceident has pre-
vented further indulgence in the game. He
is, however, a member of the Wharerangi Polo
Club, and took part in the tournament at
Hastings, Palmerston, and at Auckland, and
his c¢lub won the Junior Cup. Mr. Bennett
was married in 1898 to the daughter of the
lute Mr. W. Balfour, of Mohaksa.

BROOKLANDS ESTATE, Puketapu, con-
sista of 2315 acres, all {fenced and grassed.
It was the property of the late Mr. Gavin
Peacock, and is now mansged by his son, Mr.
W. I. Peacock, on behalf of the family. About
6500 Lincoln sheep are shorn every season, and
the stock includes 100 head of cattle and about
thirty horses.

Mr. GAVIN PEACOCK came to the Colony
in 1854, at the age of fifteen. Settling in
Hawke's Bay, he took up land at Meanee, and
in 1874 acquired Brooklands. Mr. Peacock
was for many vears sheep inspector for Hawke's
Bay, was a membher of the Puketapu Road
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Board and other loeal bodies, and very much
respected. He died in 1881, at the age of forty-
two years, leaving a widow, two daughters and
four sons. Mrs. Peacock is a daughter of Mr.
Frank Bee, formerly of Wellington, and now
of Gisborne.

My, WILLIAM IRVING PEACOCK, third
son of the late Mr. Gavin Peacock, and
manager of Brooklands, was born in Hawke's

Tae caTe Mr. (. PEACOCK.

Bay in 1869, educated at the Napier High
School, and was brought up to sheepfarming.
He is a first-rate cricketer and footballer, as
well as a good golf and polo-player. He 1s
a2 member of the Wharerangi Polo team, which
was “runner-up’’ for the Senior Cup at the
New Zealand Tournament, held at Hastings
in 1898.

MOTEO STATION, Hawke's Bay, owned by
Mr. Lawrence Higgins, 15 a fine run of 4000
acres of mixed flat and hilly limestone country,
stocked with 10,000 Lincoln sheep, 200 head
of shorthorn cattle, and a few horses. The
land has a considerable frontage to the Tutae-
kuri river. It iz well watered in every part,
and contains a large gquantity of rich swamp
goil, which is being drained and scientifically
treated.

Mr. LAWRENCE dIGGINS was born in
Treland in 1853, and is a son of Mr. Francis
Higgins, a farmer and stock dealer, and was
educated in his native town. Mr. Higgins
came to this Colony in 1866, per ship “Strath-
allan,” Captain Paddle, and entered into busi-
ness in the boot trade, at which he did very
well for five or six years. He then went to Gis-
borne, and built the Shellbourne Hotel at
Makaraka. He conducted the “Shellbourne”
for about four years, and then sold out to Mr.
George Saunders. In 1878 Mr. Higgins took
up his present property, which was unimproved
native land, which he has cleared, ploughed

and sown in grass and also fenced and sub-
divided.
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PUEKETAPU ESTATE, the property of the
late Mr. John Heslop, and held in trust, is
a block of grazing country, 5600 acres in extent,
well-improved, and containing about forty
miles of fencing.

Mr. JOHN HESLOP, a farmer of Belling-
ham in Northumberland, was born in 1812,
and at one time was caretaker and had charge
of some 200 horses of the Ridsdale Ironworks,
and subsequently worked as a miner at Nether-
ton, near Newcastle. Coming to the Colony
in 1856, per ship “Indian Queen,” Captain
Jobson, his first employment was on the road
from the Lower Hutt to Waiwetu. He next
had charge of a farm near the Huft Bridge
for Mrs Bircham: but, being advised by Mr.
Purvis Russell to try Hawke's Bay, he accepted
the management of that gentleman's run until
1859, when he was employed by the late Mr.
Lowry at “Okawa'" Estate for about a year,
afterwards leasing and ultimately purchasing
the run at Puketapu, which consists of up-
wards of 1100 acres. Some years after, when
his son William bought the Omaranui pro-
perty of 4000 acres, the two went into partner-

ship and worked both runs comjeintly. On .

the two estates there are now about 11,000
sheep, 800 head of cattle of the shorthorn cross,
and about forty horses. Prior to this partner-
ship the subject of this sketch had been in
partnership with his twin brother, Mr, George
Heslop, of the “Chesterhope” Estate, which,
on the dissolution of the firm, was retained by
the latter. In 1894 Mr. Heslop, senior, died,
and since then the estates have been partially
managed by trustees.

Mr. WILLIAM CARSWELL, the Manager,
was born in Fifeshire in 1839, and his father,
Mr. John Carswell, a well-known manu-

Me. W. CARSWELL.

facturer, came to Wellington with his
family early in 1852. Mr. Carswell, whilst
still a lad, worked for Mr. Gillies, of

Otaraia, and afterwards for Mr. Robert Russell,
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of Whangamoana, Wairarapa. After four years
of colonial experience he left for Castle Point,
where he was a shepherd on Mr. J. V. Smith's
run, and was next manager at Mataikuna for
a further period of four years. Mr. Carswell
then moved to Hawke's Bay, where for two
years he was manager for Mr. Samuel Begg,
of Mangawhare. After this he was associated
with others in leasing from the natives the
Te Haroto Block of 30,000 acres, but sold his
ghare to his partners about three years later.
At this time the country was disturbed by Te
Kooti's rebellion, and for two years Mr. Cars-
well was employed in the difficult and dangerous
work of packing from Petane to Taupo for the
Government. He next leased the Puketitiri
Estate for about six years, after which period
he was engaged by the New Zealand Loan and
Mercantile Agency Company as manager of the
Seafield and Eskmount Estates. ‘Lhen he
managed “Awamate,” in the Wairoa district,
and afterwards “Lochinvar,” at Taupe, for the
Bank of New Zealand. In conjunction with
his son James, Mr. Carswell acquired “The
Incline’” property, which is managed by the
former. This estate consists of 1603 acres of
open country, partly ploughed and grassed,
and stocked with 2500 sheep, besides ecattle
and horses. It is situated on the Tutaekuri
river, about four hours' ride from Puketapu.
Mr. Carswell was s member of the Wairoa
County Council for some three years, and has
held seats on the Petane School Committee and
Board of Trustees of the Petane Cemetery.
He was married in 1860 to Miss Orrock, of
Scotland, and has four sons and four daughters
living; the eldest son, John, died at Petane
at the age of twenty-seven.

EsKDALE.

ESKDALE is a farming district ten miles
from Napler, with which there Iz a daily
mail service and telephone communieation.

COUPER, DONALID MeLEAN, Sheep-
farmer, ‘“‘Glenora,” Eskdale. Mr. Couper's
estate consists of some 1135 acres of good
Innd, which with “The Ridge,”” another pro-
perty of 1450 acres, depastures altogether
about 3500 sheep and 150 head of cattle.
“Glenora™ iz fully improved and has
been in oceupation for about twelve years.
The homestead Is on this property. M.
Couper wns born in Napier, and is a son of
the late Mr. William Couper, a well-known
colonist of Hawke's Bay. Educated at the
Napier Grammar School and Nelson College,
Mr. Couper entered the mercantile office of
Messrs, J. (. Kinross and Co., wlth whom
he remained two years. After a short stay
on his father's property, Mr. Couper pur-
chased ““Glenora.” In public matters he has
done much for the welfare of the district
and benefit of the settlers. Mr. Couper
married a daughter of the late Mr. .
Le Luesine, and has three sons and four
daunghters.

HEDGLEY STATION, Eskdale. This fine
property consists of about 6300 acres, and is
one of the model estates in the district. The
station ean winter about 12,000 crossbred sheep
and 250 head of cattle, besides horses. The
necessary appliances and sheds are thoroughly
up-to-date. The woolshed is a fine, substantial
building, and accommodates ten shearing hands.



The homestead is surrounded by beautiful
grounds, tastefully laid out, and it is a perfect
picture in summer time.

Mr. THOMAS CLARK, of Hongofea, Mana-
watu, recently bought “Hedgley” from Mr. W.
H. Smith, J.P., who had long been known in
Hawke's Bay as the owner of the property.

Mr. WILLIAM HENRY SMITH, J.P., is
a native of Northumberland, and is a son of
Mr. Thomas Ulster Smith, of Newcastle. After
roceiving his education at Harrow, he was
articled to Messrs Prior, Waterhouse and Co.,
of London, with whom he remained for three
years. Mr. Smith came to Napier in 1878, and
was for some time on “Hedgley” as cadet under
Captain Carr, from whom he subsequently
bought the estate. He has taken great interest
in public matters, and has been connected with
all the local bodies, while a resident of Hawke's
Bay. He married a daughter of Mr. T.
Tanner, of Riverslea, and has a family of three
daughters and two sons.

Ponuvr,

PPOHUI is an outlying district twenty-sis
miles from Napler. There Is a weekly mail
service and also telephone connection.

CARMICHAEL, DUNCAN, Farmer, Glen-
garry Station, Pohui. Mr. Carmichael was
born in Argyleshire, Scotland, In 1841, and
came with his mother to New Zealand in
1863, landing in Southland. Shortly after
their arrival he started farming and was the
first settler to take up land north of Winton,
For a number of years he carried on success-
ful farming operations at Wallace, Toitol,
and at KEastburne Park, near Riverton.
Seeing the great capabilities of sheepfarming
in Hawke's Bay, Mr. Carmichael in 1888
acquired his present station. which consists
of 5700 acres now mueh improved and laid
down in English pgrasses, and on swhich
about 6000 sheep, 100 head of cattle, and
thirty horses are grazed. There are about
fifty miles of fencing and the property is
subdivided into paddocks. Mr. Carmichael

married in 1877 and has one son and one
daunghter,

THE POHOEKURA STATION (Walter
James Hill, manager), Pohui, Hawke's Bay,
consists of 52,000 acres of which 5000 are
already cleared and lald down In grass and
runs 8000 sheep and 250 head of eattle.
Twenty-five men are constantly employed on
the statlon at bush-felling, ete. The land
was under bush when Mr. Hill took charge
and the large area already cleared aund the
clasg of stock on the station reflect great
credit on his energy and management. This
station Iz one of the back blocks of the
North Island and when Mr. Hill took charze
there were no roads. But he arranged with
the Wairoa County Council and gave on
behalf of his firm £ for £, and thus obtained
a good bridle track for twenty-five miles
from the Taupo coach road to the station.
The estate was originally owned by Messrs.
Sutherland and Glendining, and is now the

property of Messrs. Riddiford and Co., of
Hawera,

Mr. WALTER JAMES HILL, Manager of
the above station, was born at Bristol, Eng-
land, In 1863, and came ont with his parents

POHUI AND MOHAEKA.
to Auckland In 1864. His father, Mr. James
Hill, proceeded to Waiukn where he took up

a small property and was largely engaged in
the flax industry. The subject of this sketeh

Mr. W. J. HrL.

wias eéducated at Waluku and was engaged
with Mr. Edward Constable for seven years,
one of the largest farmers and oldest settlers
in the district. About 1884 Mr. HIll went fo
Hawera, Taranaki, which was then a rising
district, and was for some time head shep-
herd for Messrs. Hammond Bros. of Rangi-
tikei, remaining with them for three years.
He then determined to start on his own
acecount and successfully speculated and
dealt in sheep and eattle for some years,
until he received his present appointment,

MoHAEKA.

MOHAKA iz a small township forty-three
miles from Napler, with which it is con-
nected by telephone. There iz a weekly
mail service and other postal facilities.

UPPER MOHAKA HOTEL (William
Huimes, proprietor). This hotel was estab-
lished many years ago, was enlarged in 1804,
and now contains thirteen or fourteen good
ropoms. It is one of the stopping-places for
the coaches, and the proprietor, Mr. Halmes,
is, like his hostelry, more than ordinarily
popular. Every convenience is provided for
vigitors, including paddocking, there being
n small grazing ron attached to the hotel,
The waterfall, a short distance down the
river, iz a favourite zdurce of attraction,

Mr. W. HAIMES, the Proprietor, was born
at Rhyl, North Wales, and was  educated
there. He worked as a baker in London and
was In India, before coming to this Colony
in 1880, About a year after landing in
Lyttelton, Mr. Haimes removed to Hawke's
Bay and took a situation on a station.
Subsequently, he took up a Government
lease at Puketitiri, where he was the pioneer
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settler, Four years later he sold that property
and bought Mr. Viller's Petane store, and con-
ducted it for two yvears, when he sold out
to the present proprietor, Mr. J. B. Arnott.
Before taking up land at Puketitiri, Mr.
Halmes learned wool-classing and scouring
and worked at these occupations for some
thme. He was married In 1800 to the
daughter of Mr. Thomas Jennings, a Wor-
cestershire farmer,

McKINNON, JOHN, Runholder, Arapa-
wanui. This well-known and much respected
early colonist has had a varied and interesting
career, and the story of his life shows how
industry and enterprise, tempered by good
judgment, must make headway in spite of
many difficulties. Born in the year 1825, in
the island of Lewis-with-Harris, the largest
and most northerly of the Outer Hebrides,
Mr. McKinnon was educated in his native
island, and at an early age followed a seafaring
life. For twelve vears he voyaged round the
world and experienced many hardships, in-
cluding shipwreck. On the occasion of the
wreck of the “Mary Florence,” off the coast
of Africa, when seven of the ship’s company,
including the captain's wife, were drowned,
Mr. McKinnon was one of those who were
fortunate enough to be rescued, after four
months of doubt and dread, and taken to Aden.
He then joined the service of the East India
Company. Later on, he was for two years on
# Mississippi river steamer. In 1854 he left
Dundee for Melbourne as mate of the ship
“Kossuth,” and came to this Colony as mate
of the brig “Kirkwood,” with which he severed
his connection at Wairoa to take command of
the schooner “Wave,” owned by Messrs. Hamlin
Bros. He was shortly after this appointed

Mr. J. McKisxox.

pilot for the port of Napier, being the first
to hold that position, and in that capacity
he took the first steamer, the p:s. “Wonga-
wonga,”’ into the harbour, and also brought
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the first English ship to her anchorage in the
roadstead.  After two years as pilot, Mr.
McKinnon had the ferry at Clive for about
four years. In 1863 he settled at Arapawanui.
His property iz situated close to the sea, and
contains 5000 acres, on which 9000 crossbred
sheep and 100 head of cattle are depastured.
In 1848 Mr. McKinnon, a young sailor of
twenty-three yours, returning to his native
isle, was married to Miss Meclver, of Storn-
away, little dreaming that, fifty vears after-

Mgs. J. McoEIxyNoN,

wards, he and his bride, at the head of four
generations, would be celebrating their golden
wedding in New Zealand, then almost unheard
of, surrounded by a stalwart family of run-

McoKixxox's HoMESTEAD.

holders and other well-to-do colonists. Yet
in December, 1898, this happened. Of their
family of eleven, five sons and four daughters
survive, and of these two sons and three
daughters are married. Mr. McKinnon is hale
and hearty, is an old member of the Napier
Harbour Board, and was a member of the
first County Council of Wairoa. In their de-
clining years Mr. and Mrs. McKinnon have
the good wishes of a large circle of friends and
acquaintances,

TAIT, JAMES, Settler, Waikare. Mr. Tait's
farm consists of 4000 acres, on which 6200 cross-
bred sheep and 200 head of ecattle find good
pasturage, besides about fifteen horses. The
gstation was taken up in the sixtiezs by the late
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Mr. James Tait, who was one of the earliest
settlers in the distriet. The subject of this
sketch was born in 1870, and in due course
became manager of the estate.

KURIPAPANGO.

KURIPAPANGO lies forty-five miles dis-
tant from Napler, with which there is a
weekly mail service.,

EURIPAPANGQ HOTEL (Alexander
Macdonald, proprietor). This fine hotel is
gitnated at Kuripapongo within fifty miles
of Napler. 1t is the great health resort for
sulferers from chest complaints and
smuption and the medical faculty recommend
patients to go to this establishment. It is
a modern bullding of over thirty beautifully-
appointed rooms, and is In a most charming
part of the country 1800 feet above sed-
level, where the alr is eight degrees drier
than at Napier. Adjoining the hotel are
beautifully-laid-out gardens, bowling sreen,
aund tennks courts, and the surrounding
country is celebrated for its magnificent
scenery of mountains and dales, lake and
river, with some of the finest waterfalls in
New Zealand. “Gentle Annie,” 3200 feet,
Mount Cameron, 38800 feet, and Kawita,
HH0) feet, are within very easy distances of
the hotel, easily accessible, and afford magni-
ficent panoramic views from their summits,
To lovers of fishing the lakes and rivers
offer every attraction, being abundantly
stocked with trout. In the mountains red
deer are plentiful and to those who prefer
the more exeiting pastime of pig-hunting,
the mountain forests offer every inducement,
Phensants, wild duck, and every variety of
the smaller game abound. Patlents coming
to this hotel after a few months in the
balmy but Iinwvigorating climate are eom-
pletely cured and able to take their share
of aporting. The hotel table is supplied
with every modern luxury; vegetables,

ol-
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TIKOKINO, TURIROA AND WAIROA.

K orirarango HoTEL.

fruit, and pounltry are grown by Mr.
Macdonald, whose large orchard supplies
unlimited guantities of the choicest frait.
Mrs. Maedonald superintends all the domestic
arrangeéements of the hotel, her greatest care
being the comfort and welfare of her guests.
The stables provide sccommodation for alarge
number of horses, In connection with the
hotel is the post office and also a line of
cogehes ranning between Napler and Kurlpa-
pango. A five-horse coach leaves the Masoaic
and Albion Hotels, Napler, every Monday

at 7 am. for Kuripapango and Moawhango,
connecting with coaches for Tokaanu,

Mr. ALEXAXNDER MACDONALD, the
popular host, was born in Edinburgh in
1830, and has had a conslderable goldfield
eaperience In California, Australia, and New
Zealand, and alzo as an hotelkeoper.

TIROKINO.
TIKOKINO is fifty miles from Napier and

has a tri-weekly mall service, There are the
usnal posial and telegraph facilities,

HOWARD, JOSIAH, Junr., Sheepfarmer,
Smedley, Tikokino, Mr. Howawrd was born
in 1836 in Manchester, where his father, Mr.
John Howard, was engaged In commeree,
He wis brought up as a machine joiner and
came to New-Zealand In 1862; first making
his way to the Otago goldfields, where not
meeling the success he anticipated, he
turned his attention to hiz trade at which
large wages were then to be sarned. He
cemgined In Oftago and Dunedin about fonr
vears, then eame to Hawke's Bay, and
worked at his trade In various parts of the
couniry until 1870, Mr. Howard graduaally
purchased land until he acquired a fine estate
of 7o) acres, which is earrying 14,000 sheep.

He g a fine type of a colonigt, who through
his own unaided efforts and with great pluck
and perseverance;, has assumed a foremost
position In the community. He is chairman of
the North Ruataniwha Road Board and de-
votes considerable attention to loeal matters.

TURIROA.

TURIROA. This township is in the Couaty
of Wairoa and the electoral district of Waiapu.

A steamer plies between Clyde and Napier,
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seventy-five miles distant, and from Clyde to
Turiroa, three and a half miles, there is a
coach road. The nearest telegraph office is at
Clyde, and there is a weekly mail service be-
tween Napier and the township.

McKINNON, JOHN MURDOCK, Settler,
Turiros. Mr. McEinnon's homestead 1s situated
on o farm of 100 acres, and on the Cricklewood
Road is his “Kaihunahuna Station, a run of
4000 acres, stocked with 3500 crossbred sheep
and forty head of cattle. The proprietor is the
gecond son of Mr. John McKinnon, a well-
known and highly-esteemed settler of Arapa-
wanui. He was born at Clive in 1861 and edu-
cated at the Napier Grammar School. Brought
up to farming, he acquired his present pro-
perty in 1888. He is married to a daughter oi
Mr. J. Davis, of Wairoa, and has two sons.

WaAIROA.

WAIROA iz a coast town seventy miles
by land north of Napier, and forty by sea,
and is approached by the river Walroa,
which is navigable for small craft. The
surrounding country is rough and broken,
but provides good grazing for stock. There
is a weekly mail by steamer, and also a
telegraph station. post, money order, and
offices. The “Wairoa
dian' is the local paper.

CLYDE TOWN BOARD. The population
of the town district Is 580, and the capital
value of property £45.560, on which there
is o geperal rate of 3jd. in the £.

Mr. GEORGH BRITNELL, Chalrman of
the Clyde Town Board, has held that posi-
tion Tor some time and has done moeh for
the advancement of the Walreoa district.
He was born in Buckinghamshire, England,
came out to Auvstralin in 1864 with his
parents and for some years resided in Vie-
torin. Brought up to commercial pursuits,
Mr. Briinell eventually started In business

savings bank Far-

OPENIZG oF THE Bar, Wanoa.
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in Creswick, Vietoria, which he carried s
for Yenrs, In 1880 Le
came to this Colony and took up land in the
Taranakl district where he remained until
comumencing business in Walroa five years
Mr. Britnell takes a great Interest in
all matters affecting the welfare of the dis-
triet, and Is a member of the Wairoa Har-
honr Board.

anceessfally muany

LN

WAIROA HARBOUR BOARD. This Board
manages the affairs of the port of Wairoa at
Clyde, in the County of Wairon. There is com-
munication with Napier, thirtv-zix miles dis-

tant, by means of small steamers. The depth

Mn. J. COREILL.

&

TITRET A
EEREANITE

WATROA BRIDGE,

of water is from seven to nine feet at |'u1.'-.}'|
tide, and the board's revenue is derived from
pilotage, port charges, and a harbour improve-
ment rate. The present members of the board
are Messrs J. Corkill («hairman), J. H. Brown,
(. Britnell, T. Carroll, J. P. Lomax, W.
Moloney, G. B. Flint. Some time since the
board had a bill passed through Parliament
to enable it to borrow £5000 for river conservi-
tion works, and the loan was duly sanctioned
by a poll of ratepayers with only five votes
against it. Thereupon the money was raised
and tenders were called in
May for the works, the expenditure on which
is to be limited to £5000. The future of Wairoa
greatly depends on these works, as communica-
tion with other ports is at present very irregular
owing to large shingle beds forming in front
of the river entrance, and making it too shallow
for steamers to come over. The proposed
training walls will, if sucecessful, do away with
all this, and then the river will be able {o take
in the largest boats afloat, There is
notable future in store for the district.
be mentioned

at five per cent,,

thus a
It may
that the whole of the work in
connection with the Loan Bill and loan itself
was carried through within twelve months

a fact which reflects credit on the adminis-
trative ability of the board and its officers.

Mr. JOSEPH COREKILL, Chairman of Wai-
Harbour Board, has held that position
since 1897, and is one of the most progressive

T

and energetic men in the distriet. He is &
warm supporter of the River Improvement
gcheme, and it iz mainly due to his efforts

that active stops have been taken in the matter,
Born in the Isle of Man, he was educated
there, and was apprenticed for three years to
a joiner and cabinet-maker. He left his native
land for this Colony in 1884, and for
timoe worked uns a journeyman in Dunedin.
After removing to the North Island he worked
at New Plymouth with Mr. Fowler, builder,
and afterwards with Mesars. Weir and Seilar,

rOImMe

ZEALAND.

of Hastings, and with most of the large builders
ofi Napier. He afterwards went to Wairoa and
established himself in business as cabinet-
maker, ironmonger, etc., in conjunction with
Mr. P. Wilson, who retired from the firm
in 1880. In all public matters Mr. Corkill
takes a lively interest, and he is extremely
popular with all who have the pleasure of
meeting him. He is bandmaster of the Wairoa
Band, which he started seven vears ago. Mr
Corkill is married and has two of a family.
Mr. STE'HEN GEORGE STACEY, who
is5 & member of the Walroa County Council
and Wairon Harbour

Board, was born in
Tasmanin, He came to New Zealand In

1864, landing at Napier, and i a son of the
late Mr. Stephen Stacey, a well-known
military settler., The subject of this notice
commendced buslness as a butcher at Fraser-
town in 1883, and has sinee been joined by
hiz brother, the business now belng carried
on under the name of Stucey Bros. Mr.
sStacey has done much In publie matters: he
has been connected with the County Counetl
for two years and has been a member of
the Harbour Board for eighteen months, and
Iz one of the progressive members strongly

supporting the scheme for lmproving the
rivier. He iz a member of the Frasertown
School Committee, and has been connected

Mnr. 5. G. SraceY.

with the Church of England for many yvears.
Mr.S8tacey married In 1800 a danghter of the
Inte Mr.Gosnell, a well-known and respected
gettler.

WAIROA COUNTY COUNCIL meets at
Clyde, the county town, on the second Fri-
day In each month. The popunlation of the
comnnty Is abont 1500, and there Is an annual
revenue of £0805 obtalned from all
Property within
vialue of £000,334.

COUNCILLOR JOHN HUNTER BROWN,
who since 1884 has represented the Waikare-

SONFe¢es.
the county has a capital



viding in the Wairos County Council,
resides at “Aorangi,” his handsome homestead.
The run, “Whakaki,” consists of 14,000 acres,
a'l sown in English grass, and grazes 18,000

Moiana

H. Browsx.

Couxncinruonk J.

crossbred sheep and 500 head of -cattle.
“Whakski” was purchased by Mr. Brown in
1881. Nearer town is s special stud farm of
140 ncres, where Mr. Brown runs a stud flock
of 2 Lincoln sheep, besides horses and cattle.
Mr. Brown was born in Dumiriesshire, Scot-
land, in 1852, and is the eldest son of Mr. Adam
Brown, of Bennan, Thornhill. He was edu-
cated at Marlborough College, was engaged for
some time in scientific farming in Ross-shire
and Inverness-shire, and in 1880 came to this
Colony. After looking round the country, Mr.
Brown purchased “Whakala,” and has since
then been an active colonist, in regard to the
management of his own estates and the publie
dutiezs which he nas undertaken. He has on
several occasions been elected to the Wairoa
Harbour Board, and is a member of the school
committee, Gisborme Hunt Club and Hawke's
Bay Agricultural and Pastoral Society. Mr.
Brown was married to a daughter of the late
Mr. John Hunter, C.E., of London, and has
a son and a daughter.

COUNCILLOR THOMAS CARROLL, who
represents Clyde Riding on the Wairoa County
Council, has been a member since the second
vear of the council's existence, and has taken
a keen interest in all matters concerning the
district. He has been s member of the Har-
bour Board for a mumber of wears; and ha=s
filled many other important positions, including
the secretaryship and wice-presidency of the
local jockey club. Councillor Carroll was born
in Mahia in 1851, educated at public schools,
and brought up to pastoral life. At Taupo he
had four years' experienge under Mr. Hold, of
the Telegraph Department, and for a while
he worked on the estate of the late Mr. William

Heslop, of Puketapu. He resides on his

WAIROA.

“Huramua' Station, which was acquired by
him in 1880, and is a property of upwards of
2000 acres, of which a third is good flat agricul-
tural land. The stock includes 5000 sheop of
the Lincoln variety, besides cattle and horses,
amongst the latter being “Dudeen,” “Thyn,”
“Dynamite,” and other well-known racers,
mostly bred by Mr. Carroll. The yiold of wool
amounts to about 100 bales per annum.

COUNCILLOR FARQUHAR McRAE, who
represents the Waikaremoana Riding in the
Wairoa County Council, resides at “Springhill,”
a run of 4600 acres, stocked with 5000 crossbred
sheep and about twenty head of cattle. He is
the owner of another property, near Eltham,
Taranaki, of 655 scres, which is leased to seven
dairy farmers. Mr. M¢HRae was born in Ross-
shire, Scotland, in 1855, where he was edu-
cated and brought up to farming pursuits.
He came to the Colony in 1882, and for seven
years managed Mr. Hunter Brown's run. He
then took a trip to Australia, and on his return
speculated praperty,

succoasiully in visited

CouxNcinr.or F. McRAE.

Europe, and on his return to the Colony pur-
chased his present property. He takes a
generil interest in public and social matters.

COUNCILLOR WILLIAM MOLONEY, J.P.,
who represents his riding for the fifth suecces-
sive term in the Wairoa County Council, was
chairman of the council when the Wairoa
bridge was completed, and in his official
capacity he declared it open for traffic in 1887.
For twelve yvears he was a member of the
Wairoa Harbour Board, and for a fourth of
that time its chairman, snd he was a member
of the old Town Board and other public bodies.
He was born in Queen's County, Ireland, in
1840, is the son of Mr. James Moloney, and
was educated and brought wp to farming in
his native county. Mr. Maloney left the Old
Land in 1860 for Melbourne, and spent four
years on the New South Wales goldfields, and
two years on the Otago and Westland fields.
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cetthng m Wairoa in 1866, on a farm near to
his present holding, he had the misfortune to
be turned off in 1869 by Te Kooti. He then
Joined the Wairoa Rifles and was present at

CouxcinLor W. MoLoxey.

the Lake Whaikaremoana skirmishes. In 1872
Mr. Moloney started business in Whairoa as
a storekeeper, and has done well there. He
was olected to the Council on its inception in
1876. Councillor Moloney has taken an active
interest in public and social matters generally,
and was one of the founders of the Roman
Catholic Church in Wairoa.

CounciLLor J. POWDRELL,
See Page 186,
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COUNCILLOR JOSEFPH POWDRELL, who
represents the Clyde Riding in the Wairoa
County Council, is an ex-member of the Wairoa
Harbour Board, member of the Hospital Com-
mittee, chairman of the Railway League, and
was for some vears chairman of the Couneil,
of which he has been a member almost since
its inception. He iz vice-president of the
Wairoa Rifle Club, and has been a Justice of
the Peace since 1888, Born in Cheshire, Eng-
land, he is the third son of the late Mr. Thomas
Powdrell, of “Barhill Farm,” was edunecated at
Malpas Grammar School, and came to New
Zoaland in 1861, at the age of twenty wyears,
per ship “Indiana."” Purchasing a farm at
Kereru, Mr. Powdrell remained there for six
years, and then settled in Wairoa on an excel-
lent farm of 1400 acres, now known as “Turi-
roa’ Station, and stocked with 150 head of
cattle, about twenty horses, and 3500 crossbred
sheep.

COUNCILLOR JAMES STARK, who repre-
gents Mohaka Riding in the Wairca County
Couneil, is in his third term of office. A son
of the late Mr. William Stark, who came to

CounciLLOR J. STARK.

this Colony in the early days and settled in
the distriet, Mr. Stark was educated by private
tuition at Mohaka, where he has lived since
1864, Councillor Stark owns “Rangiriri"
Station, which contains nearly 1000 acres of
good pastoral land, and is stocked with 2000
crosshred sheep and forty head of cattle. The
annual vield of wool is about forty bales. Mr.
Stark is szecretary of the Mohaka Rifle Club
and was chairman of the school committes for
severnl vears. He married a daughter of the
late Mr. H. C. Chapman, a well-known settler
of Hastings, and has an only son.

WAIROA HOSPITAL. This hospital, situ-
ated at Clyde, the county town of Wairos, 1s
of particular service to an extensive district,
which, on account of its distance from Napier,

and Gisborne, would otherwise be without
public provision for the proper treatment of
accidents and other cases of human suffering.

Mr. THOMAS BUTTLAR BAX, Warder of
the Wairoa Hospital, has been connected with
that institution for about two years. Born
in London in 1850, Mr. Bax was educated there.
For mnineteen years he was at sea, trading
between the Colonies, India and the Old
Country. He came to New Zealand in 1879
as first mate of the barque *“Nancy,” and
decided to settle in the Colony. Having had

Mzu. T. B. Bax.

considerable experience in hospital workduring
the Indian Mutiny, Mr. Bax obtained a posi-
tion in the Wellington Hospital, and afterwards
joined the staff of the Blenheim Hospital. He
then went to Hawke's Bay and kept several
hotels in the district, and was eventually ap-
ponted warder in the Wairoa Hospital. Mr.
Bax is well known throughout the Colonies
as a professional club-swinger, and in 1837
he defeated the Queensland champion, J.
Griffiths. Mr. Bax is married and has a family
of one son and two daughters.

ST. PETER'S CATHOLIC CHUROCEH,
Wairon. This Is one of the oldest churches
in Wairoa and was erected with money col-
lected during the late Father Regnier's time,
The strocture I8 of wood and has seating
accommodation for 100, A good choir of
twelve i led by Mr. Cosgrove and Mrs,
Coggrove and Miss Douglas act as organisis,

Fiather LEPRETRE, the Priest-in-charge,
has a large district and helds mass at fre-
nuent intervals at Frasertown, Pakipaki,
Tamaki., and Tinlroto. He was born In Brit-
tany, France. was edneated at Nantes,
Chateaubriant, and Ancenis. He then went
to Dundalk, in Ireland, where he joined the
Society of Mary there, was ordalned sub-
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deacon at Armagh in 1881. He returned to
France, where he was prefect for two years
at 5t. Joseph's College, Montlucon. He then

Faraen LEPRETRE,

went to Barcelona, In Spain, and after comi-
pleting his studies in theology, was ordained
priest at Lyons, France, in 1884, and came
to this Colony In the sawme wear. Pather
Lepretre was first stationed at Jernsalem,
near Wangnoui, where he learnt the Maori
language, and was afterwards In charge of
the Hawke's Bay and Wairarapa Mnori dis-
tricts. He built the Maori church at Te
Ore Ore, near Masterton, and came tfo
Wairon as first resident priest in 1804, and
built the presbytery there. He is extremely
popular amongst all classes and well known
throuwghout Walroa.

WAIROA BRASS BAND (Mr. Joseph
Corkill, bandmaster), Wairoa. This band has
s creditable musical record, but it has some-
thing else as well in its list of achievements.
It is probably the only band in the Colony
with a record ride to its credit. In April, 1896
Mr. 5wan, the Mayor of Napier, invited the
band to attend and assist at Napier in a de-
monstration in aid of the Brunner Relief Fund.
The invitation was cordially responded to by
Mr. Corkill on behalf of himself and his fellow
bandsmen, but- when the time came to take
steamer from Wairoa to Nuapier, the Wairoa
bar was in what was then its too frequent condi-
tion of impassableness, The visit to Napicr
had, therefore, to be abandoned, or undertaken
on- horseback overland, a distance of seventy-
five miles. In wview of all the circumstances,
Mr. Corkill and his corps of instrumentalists
determined to face the latter alternative, and
they set out in the evening to accomplish their
long journey by mnight. The novelty of the
undertaking and the object in view inspired
the party with high spirits, and as there was
bright moonlight to help them on their way,
they anticipated no serious difficulties. These,
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however, soon presented themselves in divers
shapes. For instance, the big drum received
its mortal quietus from a hook on the pack
saddle to which

and one inland.

along the edges of bestling precipices.

You going up

I' 1 L ]
am going nome.

Mg,

it was fastened, and various
other misadventures took place in connection
with the choice of tracks, one by the beach,
Creeks were found to be in
flood, and the bandsmen had to get off their
horses and lead them up scraggy hillsides and

there?" said the drummer to
o fellow bandsman, as the latter with his horse
faced a precipitous ridge.

W. TiMrERLEY.

“If vyon are, not
and home he went.
others, however, pushed on to their journey’s
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Warnoa Brass Baxn.

end, where they were cordially welcomed hy
the Mayor of Napier, sumptuously entertained
in many ways, and presented with a purse of
money to help to defray the expenses of what
is still talked of in Hawke's Bav as “Corkill’s
Ride."

“"WAIROA GUARDIAN" (William Tim-
perley, proprietor), Wairoa. This paper was
established over twenty years ago and has
a rapidly increasing circulation in Wairoa,
I'1ri|:!i01'h'r“'!=, Tl:lrirnl-l, \\vlii]-iltr{';]"[rm[}ﬂ" },iﬂru-
maru, Nuhaka, Morere, Mahia, Mohaka, Wai-
kare, and Petane, and is a splendid medium
for advertising throughout the distriet.

Mr. WILLIAM TIMPERLEY, the pro-
prietor, i8 a native of Darwen, Lancashire.
England, where he was educated, and was
trained in the leading printing offices in Darwen
and Manchester. He came to New Zealand
in 1886 and settled in Wairoa in 1895. Tn
addition to the newspaper and printing busi-
ness, he has a high-class stationery department,
and receives shipments of all the latest books,
music, etc., by every steamer. Photographs
and paintings of the beautiful Wairoa ECenary
are also obtainable at his establishment.

SOMERVILLE, JOHN, M.B., M.8. (Edin.i,
I'hysician and Surgeon, Walroa, Hawke's
Bay.

ROBB, JOHN, Photographer, Iainter,
ete., Whairon, Agont for Messrs. Howe
Bros., booksellers and stationers of Napler.
Alr. Itobb has been in business in Wairoa
about flve vears, and is nequiring a good
connection. All kinds of photographic work
and enlargements are finished in first-class
style. Mr. Robb keeps on hand a laree
stock of mouldings for picture frames. Hp
is also ngent for Mr. 8. MecLernon, watceh-
maker, of Napler, and forwards repairs by
every steamer. Mr. Iobb was born at Gis-
borne, was educated there and learnt his
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trade under his father, with whom he re
mained until starting on his own acecount.
He is well liked In the district and takes
considerable interest in public matters.
FERRY HOTEL (Peter Craver, proprie-
tor), Wairoa. This well-known hostelry is
situated on the bank of the Wairon River,
and is within a few minutes walk of the
township. The “Ferry' i= probably the
oldest hotel in the distriet, and has been o
the hands of the present proprietor for the
last nine Years, It rontainsg sixteen roones,
excingive of dining, sitting, and drawing
rooms, and is comfortably furnished
throughout. For tourists the house is cou-

Mr. P. CraveR,
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veunlently sitoated on the maln road to the
lake, where fine shooting, boating, ete., may
be obtalned.

Mr. PETER CRAVER, the Proprietor, is
i native of Perthshire, Scotland, and cane
to this Colony with his parents in the ship
“Rangoon™ in 1863, landinz at Napier. He
wns educated at Waipukuran, and after-
warids was for some time farming with his
father. He first commenced hotel-keeping
at Tahoraiti, nenr Dannevirke, where he
had the Tamaki Hotel for four years,
eventually taking the Ferry Hotel. Mr.
Craver takes a great Interest In all loeanl
matters, and Is well known and respected
in the distriet,

WAIROA HOTEL (Arthur
prietor), Wairoa. Established 1877. This fine
hotel, which has lately been rebuilt, was
established by the present proprietor about
twenty-one wyears sgo. Situated close to the
wharf, it is8 handy for travellers and visitors
to Wairoa, and Mr. Poyzer has a good connee-
tion with the travelling public and settlers in
the district. @ The Wairoa Hotel, which is
beantifully furnished, twenty-five
rooms, including large dining-room, sitting-
room, billiard-room, etc. From the balcony
a fine view of the surrounding country is
obtained, and as the house is directly opposite
the river, shooling and boating are within
ensy reach of those seeking pleasure in that
way.

Mr. ARTHUR POYZER, the popular host,
i3 a native of Leicestershire, England, and was
educated in his native town. He came to
the Colony in 1863, and landed in Auckland

per ship “Gertrude,” and was for some time
in the employment of Sir George Grey and

Poyzer, pro-

contains
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Bishop Selwyn, He then settled in Hampden,
and for two wvears kept the Tikotike Hotel,
and aflerwards established the Wairoa Hotel,
Mr. Poyzer has devoted a good deal of time

to public matters, and was for many years
chairman of the harbour and town boards. He
has also been connected with the school com-
mittee, and has done much for the welfare
of the district. Mr. Poyzer is married and
has four daughters and two sons.

JOHANSEN, OLAF, Plumber, Painter,
Paperhanger, Wairon. The business was
established by Mr. Johansen in 1878. Most
of the plumbing and palnting work in the
district has been carried out by him. A
large stock of tinware and material neces.
sary for carrying on a good business are
kept on the premises. Mr. Johansen is n
native of Norway, and came to New Zealand
with his parents in 1873 in the ship “Hov-
ding,' landing at Napler. He learnt his
trade with Mr. Nash, of Walpawa, and was
with Mr. Abrabams of that town for
seven years, Coming to Walroa In 1878, Mr.
Johausen decided to settle there, and shorily
afterwards established his present business,
As a member of the Foresters he has held

also

Mg. O, JOHANSEN.

office as S.0C.R., and has been
the chalrs, Mr. Johansen is
has o son and danghter.

through all
married anid

BEIRD, DAVID, Boot and Shoe Dealer and
Importer, Wairon. Mr. Bird's buslness has
been established about seven years, and con-
ducted by the present proprietor sinece 1806,
A liarge and wvaried stock of English and
Colonial boots and shoes iz kept, and be-
spoke work and repairs are executed on the
shortest notice. Born at the Thames, North
Island, Mr. Bird learnt his trade under the
Northern Boot and Shoe Company of Auck-
land, and was afterwards with Messrs.
Wihson and Co., of Napler and Wanganaul,
for five vears as manager of thelr Emerson
Street branch in Napier, He purchased the
above buglness, and has every prospect of
good success. As 4 member of the Druids
he has held office at Napier and Wanganui.
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CENTRAL STORE (Mrs. Parker, pro-
prietress), Wairoa. This well-conducted store
was established thirty years ago by the late
Mr. Parker, and receives a fair share of sup-
port from the settlers in the distriot.

Mr. PATRICK COSGROVE, the Manager,
is a native of Napier, and after receiving his
education was with Mesars Alex. Brown and
E. Bibby, of Waipawa, for ten years. He came

Mg, P. CosGRrOVE.

to Wairoa in 1893, and has since managed Mrs.
Parker's store. Mr. Cosgrove has taken a
considerable interest in loeal matters, and is
secretary of the school committee and an active



member of the Debating Society. He was one
of the originators of the Dramatic Club, and
i3 choirmaster of 8i. Peter's Church. Mr.
Cosgrove married a daughter of the late Mr.
Robert White, a well-known settler.
PERKINS, GEORGE, General Starekeeper,
Walroa. Mr. Perkins s an old settler of
many years standing and was born In Wel-
lington. He resided at the Hutt for over
thirty years during which time he worked
an extensive siwmill in that valley. He
came to Wairoa in 1888 and purchased a
station of some 2500 acres, which at present
carries  abont 2000 crossbred sheep, and
abont fifty head of eattle. The station is
managed by Mr. Perey Heott, Mr. Perkins
devoting part of hizs thme to the manage-
ment of his store. In publiec matters he has

M=z. G. PERKINS.

been elogely connected with the various loeal
badies, both at the Hutt and Walroa, e
wis a member of the Hutt County Counefl
for several years and held the position of
chairman for time. In leaving the
district for Walroa the residents showsed
their appreciation of his services by present
ing him with n hand=ome gold wateh and
iMlmminated address. In Wairoa he s con-
nected with the loeal school committes and
Is secretary of the Walron Brass Band., Mr.
Perking is married and has two children.

CRAM, PETER, Walroa Livery and Balt
Stables, Walroa. Mr. Cram's well-known
gtables were established by him five years
ago and contaln ten stalls and two loose
boxes, with an accommodation paddoek for
fifty horses. Traps and saddle-horses can
always be obtained by the travelling publie.
Mr. Cram's coaches carry most of the pas-
sengers overland to Napier or Gisborne, He
wiag born In Scotland, and ecame to this
Colony when only nine years old in the ship
“"Timar," For many years he was farming
on the Henley Estate, near Dunedin, and

Bolie

eventually settled at Walroa,
married and has two children.

WATROA.
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Crax's LavERY AND BarT STABLES.

Mr. Cram is

M. P.

CRAM,

BARKER, W. E., Sheepfarmer, “Avalon,”
Frasertown, Walroa. Mr. Barker was born
in 1875 at Glastonbelle, Somersetshire, Eng-
land, his father, Mr. Eustace Barker, being
manager of the Wilts and Dorset Bank in
that city. The sabject of thisa notice, after
receiving his education at Blundel school,
followed wvarious official pursuits. Contem-
plating a farming life he came to New Zea-
land In 1883, landing at Wellington, nand
procesded to Hawke's Bay some time after-

wirds where he purchased his present ruan
of 1000 acres, Since then great Improve-
ments have been made by Mr. Barker and Le
now depastures 900 sheep on the property,
which will be e¢apable of carryving a much
larger number a8 the land 1s brought under
ZETrnss,

M=r. W. E. BARKER.

CRICELEWOOD STATION (H. L. Donuelly,
owner), Whairoa. This station i1s one of the
finest in Wairona, and consists of about 15,000
acres, carrying about 12,000 Lincoln sheep and
2300 head of eattle.

Mr. HARRY LANGLEY DONNELLY, of
Cricklewood Station, is o native of the South
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of Ireland, was educated at Limbrick College,
and came to New Zealand with his mother,
brothers and sisters in 1862 per ship “Indian
Empire,” and shortly afterwards he and his

Mer. H. I.. DoNNELLY.

brother took up a property at Nearatia, Auck-
land. In 1874 he went to Hawke's Bay, and
was for many years engaged in trading in
cattle and managing various stations in the
Wairoa and Inland Patea districts. Mr.
Donnelly's varied and extensive experience of
station management has stood him in good stead,
and during his term of management “Crickle-
wood"” has been brought to its present state
of perfection. Mr. Donnelly takes a great
interest in local matters, and has been con-
nected with several road boards. He married
a daughter of the late Mr. William Couper,
of Havelock, and has a family of two sons and
one daughter.

GOLDSTONE, WILLIAM, Sheepfarmer,
Frasertown and Riverslen, Wairon. Mr.
Goldstone iz a native of Suffolk, England,
and son of the late Mr., James Goldstone,
of the same place, and formerly in the
Guards. He was edueated at Newmarket,
Cambridge, and entered the 12th Royal
Laneers (Prince of Wales' Own), in 1851,
shortly after went to South Africa to take
part in the Kaffir war under Sir Harry
Smith and saw about eight months' active
service there and in Basutoland. At the
battle of Berrier the troops under 8ir George
Catheart were Lkept In square for eight
hours, repeatedly charged by the enemy who
were finally repulsed and the foree marehed
to Willlimstown In British EKaffraria. A
portion of the troops were cut off whilst
coming through a narrow pass and a number
were shot. Captain (now 8ir Goorge) Whit-
more, of the Cape Mounted Rifles, took part
In that aflalr. Shortly afterwards the 12th
were ordered to India where they arrlved in
184 and a few months later proceeded Lo
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the Crimen, 'They landed at Suex, marched
through to Cairo, and down the Nile to
Alexandria, which formed a curious ecoinci-
dence and was brought to their memory by
one of the inhabitants. The same regiment,
then known as the 12th Light Diragoons,
had marehed down the banks of the river
exactly fifty years previously under =ir
Ralph Abercrombie. The 12th were present
at many engagements and formed a part of

famous Light DBrigade. After the fall of
Sebastopol, the regiment was ordered to

Upatoria and next to Upper SBeutarl. PPeace
being proclaimed the 12th were ordered
back to India but through the Influence of
Sir George Paget they were taken to Eng-
Iand firvst, In 1856 the Lancers landed at
Madras and proceeded to Bungalore, just as
Nana Sahib’s great mutiny broke out. In
1557 the 12th formed part of General Whit-
lock’s brigade and proceeded to the Kanool
district, which was In o most dizturbed
state. Some native troops, who formed part
of the ecolnmn, mutinied on the mareh: the
ringleaders were flogzed in the presence of
the dizsaffected men, and the revolt
quelled to a great extent. The 12th Lancers
afterwards went to the Hyderabad and Dee-
can districts. Mr. Goldstone's troop was
stationed till 1860 at Trimingalll, a cavalry
station four miles from Secunderabad. In
1860 he embarked with his regiment for Eng
land, where he jolned the 4th Dragoon
Guards, remaining with the regiment till
18738, when he retired from the army with
the rank of sergeant. He ecame to New
Zealand by the ship “Donglas' and joined
the Armed Constabulary In which he served
for five years. He retired from the foree to
enter into business In Frasertown ani

Wils

Mzr. W. GoLDsTONE.

carried it on successfully for several yvears,
Mr. Goldstone has also acquired two valu-
able properties, one of which is a sheep
farm. He holds the Kaflir medal for

NEW ZEALAND.

1851-62-53, the Crimean and Turkish medals
with clasps, and the long serviee and good
conduet  medals. Mr. Goldstone married
previous to his departure for New Zealand,
and has three sons and four daunghters.

KIWI ESTATE (Messes., Chamber DBros,,
proprietors; Mr. Murdoch Maekay, manager),
Wairon., This well-known station
aof some 18,000 peres of  fivst-class  slieep
country; about 24,000 cross-bred sheep and
800 head of eattle are grazed oo the property
which is one of the finest in the Walroa
district, Twelve hands are constantly em-
ployed and in the shearing season, as many
as twenty shearers are engaged. The popular

COnsists

Me. M. DMacray.

manager, Mr. Murdoch Mackay, has had econ-
gliderable expeérience in sheep farming and it
Is under his care the estate has been brought
to its présent state of perfection.

Mr. MURDOCH MACEKAY, the manuger,
wils born In Hawke's Bay and broonght ap (o
pastoral pursnits on Mr. McHardy's ran at
Blackhead. He was afterwards with Mr,
Johnston of Tamumu., He then managed
the DPutere station for Messrs, Murray,
Robertz and Co. for twelve years, and took
up his present position in 1885, Mr. Mackay
is married and has four sons and one
daughter.

MANGARUHE STATION is
the Wairoa river, and is the property of Messrs.
Twige Bros. 1t consists of 5630 acres, hounded
on two sides by the Mangaruhe and Wairoa
rivers and on the third by “Ruakaturi” Station.
It is stocked with 5500 crossbred sheep, the
annual yield of which averages 100 bales oi
wool. The land, being of papa formation, is
excellent for sheep carrying. For the season
of 1897-8 1500 wether freezers were sent to Gis-
borne from this estate.

Mr. SAMUEL TWIGG, managing owner of
Mangaruhe Station, is the eldest son of Mr.

situated on



H. J. Twigg, of Petane, and has been at Wairoa
since 1895. Born at Petane in 1872, and edu-

cated at the Napier High School, Mr. Twigg
was two Years

with the North British and

Mr. S. Twica.

Hawke's Bay Freezing Companv. He then
spent five years at Moeangiangi Station, his
father's eatate, which he left to take up his
present position.

WHITIE, FREDERICK,
“Maungataniwha Station,”
Wairon. This gentleman, who is a son of
Mr. Bertram White, resident magistrate,
was born at Mongonui and edneated at the

Sheepfarmer,
Lower Mohaka,

WAIROA AND FRASERTOWN.

Church of England school, Parnell, Anckland,
and afterwards spent two years at the Lin-
coln Agricultural College, Canterbury. He
then went on Archdeacon Williams’s sheep
run at Mangatarl, where he remained five
years, obtalning a thorough knowledge of
farming. In 1800 he purchased, in
conjunction with hiz brother William, the
Mavpgataniwha Station of 36,000 acres

"illi"i"ij

which was then covered with bush and
serab. 5000 acres have been eleared amil
aown with English grasses on which T000

shieep and a number of eattle are depastured,
Several men are kept employed In clearing
to make more grazing ground for inereased
steck. The preperty promises to be one
of the most valuable in the distriet and
flready reflects great eredit on the industry
ol Messrs. White Bros. Mr. White was a
well-known athlete in his college days, wans
one of the first team who visited Australia
from this Colony and sunccesafully contested
viunuing races in Hawke's Bay for five venrs,
He holds the record  for

amateur high

nmping.

FRASERTOWN.

FRASERTOWN is a village in the County
of Wairoa, It is situated on the Wairoa river,
twelve miles above Clyde, the county town,
which is three miles from the mouth of the
river. Small craft go up the river as far as
Frasertown, which is seventy-five miles by
road from Napier and sixty-seven from Gis-
There is weekly communication by

post with both Napier and Gisborne.

McKINNON, NORMAN, Settler, Stratholm.
Mr. McKinnon is the youngest son of Mr. John
MeKinnon, of Arapawanui, where he was born
in 1871. KEdueated at the Napier High Scheol,
he learned farming on his present estate, which
consists of B000 acres, about half of which
is sown in English grasses, and grazes 6000

borne.

Mr. F. WHITE.

Mrn. N. McKiNxos.
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crossbhred sheep, with fifty head of cattle. Mr.
MeEinnon was married in 1895 to n daunghtor
of the late Mr. Petor Walker, of Wuireoz, and
has a son and a daughter.

Mgr. D. McKixzoxs.

“MOEANGIANGI STATION" iz situated on
the East Coast between Napier and Whairoa,
and consists of 5000 acres of freehold and 5000
acres leasehold native lands. It was taken up
in the sixties by Messrs. Gordon and Finlayson,
but passed into the possession of the McKinnon
family, and has recently been taken over by
Mr. Donald McKinnon. The stock includes
12,000 crossbred sheep and 100 head of cattle,
and about 200 bales of wool are annually sent
to market.

Mr. DONALD M¢KINNON is the third son
of Mr. John MeKinnon, and was born in 1863
at Arapawanui. Educated at the Napier
Grammar School, he was brought up to station
life, and managed his father's station for a few
years before moving to Moeangiangi.

THE “RIVERINA STATION" contains
4600 acres, and is an education reserve in the
occupation of Mr. Colin Munro and his sons,
Megsra W. C. and Duncan Munro. The stock
includes 3500 erossbred sheep and about thirty
head of cattle. The homestead stands on the
river bank.

Mr. COLIN MUNRO, the proprietor, was
born in Ross-shire in 1826, and was educated
and brought up there to farming pursuits.
Landing in Australia in 1853, per ship “Ida,
he managed a large station on the River Murray
for twelve years. In 1869 he came to New
Zealand and purchased a farm in South Canter-
bury. This he worked for ten wears, and then
moved to Hawke's Bay and settled on a run
of 55,000 acres on the Taupe Road.
remained ten vyears, and then
present property.

Theze he

acquired his
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AMlw. 'W. C. Muonmo.

Mr. W. C. MUNR®O was born in Victoria in
1855, was educated there, and accompanied his
parenta to this Colony. He was a member of
the Wairoa County Council for six vears and
takes a keen interest in loeal affairs.

Mr. DUNCAN MUNRO was born in Vie-
toria in 1886, and was educated in this Colony.

“WINDSBOROUGH STATION" (Mr. T. J.
Tuuks, proprietor), Waikaremoans, contains
4500 acres of pastoral land, all drained, fenced,
grassed, and subdivided, and is stocked with
G000 crossbred sheep, 100 head of cattle, and
about twenty horses. A portion of the estate
is devoted to the growth of winter feed. Tho
output of wool avernges about ninety bales per
annum. The “Mahangza” Station, which is
sitaated on the road to Lake Waikaremoana,
is also the property of Mr. Tunks, and is
managed by Mr. D. Anderson. It contains
3000 acres of good pastoral land, and carries
8000 crossbred sheep and twenty horses.

Mr. T, J, TUNKS, proprietor of the above
property, though now residing in Frasertown,
was one of the first to take up land in the Wai-
karemoana district. Born in Warwickshire,
England ,in the early fifties, Mr. Tunks camo
with his parents to Auckland, per ship
“"Northumberland,” in 1861, and was educated
at Prince Albert College. In 1870 he left Auck-
land for Wairoa, and after spending five years
in commercial purauits, he acquired and entered
upon his present property at Waikaremoana.
Ag ecounty councillor, chairman of schoal,
licensing, library, and chureh committees, ete.,
Mr. Tunks has taken an active part in public
matters and is very highly esfeemed throughout

the district.
Manmra.

MAHTA. The Mahia Peningula, at which
there is a village of the same name, is in the
County of Wairoa, Its distance from Clyde,
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the county town of Wairoa, is thirty miles,
and it lies 103 miles to the north of Napier.
A steamer plies once a month from Napier.

THE WHANGAWEHI STATION, Mahia,
is situated about 100 miles inland from Napier,
and is one of the many station properties owned
by the Ormond family in Poverty Bay and
Hawke's Bay. 1ts area comprises 20,000 acres
of table-land and hills, partly in bush, the
balance being laid down in English grasses
and well-watered. About 17,000 crossbred
Lincolns, with a fow head of cattle and horses,
are depastured on the run. The average clip
of wool is about eight and a half pounds per
fleece; equal to a total output of 320 bales,
which are shipped from Mahia to Napier.
There i3 a comfortable homestead, with wool-
sheds and accommodation whares, and a num-
ber of permanent station hands are employed.

Mr. GEORGE CANNING ORMOND, Run-
holder and proprietor of the above station,
is the eldest son of the Hon. J. D. Ormond,
M IL.C., formerly a Minister of the Crown, a
notice of whom appears in the political section
of the Wellington volume. The subject of this
notice was born at Napier, and received his
education at Napier Grammar School and Wel-
lington College, during the headmastership of
Mr. Kenneth Wilson, one of the first principals
of the college. On leaving the latter institution,
Mr. Ormond visited England, and returned io
the Colony in 1883, He then commenced his
experience in sheepfarming on the Hon. J. D.
Ormond’s Paremata Station, Tologa Bay, where
he remained two years, and in 1885 he acquired
the Whangawehi Station. My, Ormond is s

member of the Wairca County Council and
Racing Club.

¥ .
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TIisIROTO.

TINIROTO Hawke's Bay and Iz a
small outlying district forty-two miles south
of Gishorne.

ig In

It has a weekly mail service.

LAKE HOUSE HOTEL (Samuel Jumes
Cooper, proprietor), Tinirote. This hotel has
been established =ome cight years, nnd being
centrally situated Dbetween Gisborne and
Whairoa is practieally a half-way house.
Tourists visiting the lakes can make this
their headguarters while In the distriet,
Some of the most beautiful falls In the North
[sland are within easy distance and in
Tiniroto (“‘mapy lakes'), splendid shooting
cin be obtained. A general store, post office,
amd stables are condueted Iin connection with
the hotel, which has been ereeted only three
years. No pains are spared by the proprietor
and his wife to make visitors feel at home,
and In the smmmer a pleasant hollday ¢an
be spent hore.

Mr, 8 1. COOPER, the Proprietor, Iz a
native of Yorkshire, England., and eame to
New Zealand with his pareats in 15860 in the
ship “Derwentwater,” landing at Welling-
ton, where he was educated. He afterwards
went to Dunedin and setiled in Roslyn for
a few years. In 1877 he removed to Gls-
borne and shortly afterwards took the hotel
at Waerenga-n-hika, eight miles from Gis
borne where he remained six years. Mr.
Cooper  then land in the same
locallty and was engaged In farming until
taking over the abové hotel in 1800, He
has been chairman of the loeal sclios] eom-
mittee for many vears and is starter of the
Wiairoa Racing Club. Mr. Cooper is married
and has seven sons amd six danghters.

tosk up

Hor BatH, NUHAEKA.



NUHAKA.

NUHAEKA is situated ninety-six miles north-
east from Napier in the county of Wairoa,
within the electoral district of Waiapu. There
is a telephone office in the township, which
has a weekly mail service with Napier. The
means of conveyance from Napier is by steamer
to Wairoa and thence by road to Nuhaka.

TaE rate Mr. G. WALKER.

“WAI" STATION, MNuhuka. This run con-
taing B500 pcres, of which 1000 are under culti-
vation for fodder. There are 14,000 pure Lin-
coln sheep and a pure stud flock of 300 from

Mn.

7. WALKER, JUNR

NUHAEKA

AND HASTINGS.,
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imported stock. The cattle number about 400.
The land was taken up in 1870 by the late Mr.
Greorge Walker, and for the last quarter of a
century the flocks have enjoyed a reputation
for excellence,

Mr. GEORGE WALKER, the present pro-
prietor, was born at Whangawehi in 1886. Edu-
cated at the Napier High School